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Cohesion 
in Vision



OUR CORE VALUES

Service 

Excellence

Providing excellent services 
to our customers

Working together as one 
cohesive team to achieve 
our missions

Value and care for our 
employees, community and 
the environment

Upholding the highest ethical 
conduct and good corporate 
governance

Strong commitment to act 
and accomplish through 
innovation and creativity

Unity of 

Purpose

Respect

Integrity

Achievement

Leveraging the strong synergy of our businesses and the unity of our people, we at SuriaGroup 

are confident of our ability to rise above any challenge and realise our strategic vision to deliver 

greater value to our shareholders and stakeholders. This cover concept illustrates the cohesion 

of vision of a united 1Suria, with the arrangement of the containers alluding to our nature of 

business while referencing the life-giving sun that serves as the namesake of our Company. 

Together, we will ensure the continued success of SuriaGroup, the State of Sabah and Malaysia.

Cohesion in Vision



To be a leading investment entity in ports and port-related
services in Malaysia.

To enhance the long-term value of the Group by:

• Creating sustainable returns to our shareholders;
• Achieving excellence in all our business undertakings;
• Embracing best practices in our business processes;
• Enriching the lives of our employees;

whilst always caring for the environment and community within
which we operate.

OUR VISION
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SURIA CAPITAL 

HOLDINGS BERHAD 
(Suria) is a public-listed 

company on the Main 

Board of Bursa Malaysia 

Securities Berhad since 

1996.

Corporate Profile

The Company is mainly involved in the provision of port 

services and facilities in Sabah through its subsidiary, 

Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd. (Sabah Ports) which manages 

and operates eight major ports of the State. The ports 

comprise Kota Kinabalu Port, Sapangar Bay Container Port, 

Sapangar Bay Oil Terminal and Kudat Port located on the 

West Coast of Sabah while Sandakan Port, Tawau Port, 

Lahad Datu Port and Kunak Port on the East Coast. 

Apart from the port services, Suria together with its other 

subsidiaries has widened its business sphere into the 

logistics and bunkering services, maintenance of port 

equipment, the construction and engineering services as 

well as the operation of ferry terminal services, which also 

includes International Cruise Terminal. These arrays of 

activities have been undertaken by S.P. Satria Logistics 

Sdn. Bhd.. (S. P. Satria Logistics), S.P. Satria Sdn. Bhd. 

(S.P. Satria) and SCHB Engineering Services Sdn. Bhd. 

(SCHB Engineering). Together they have been referred to as 

SuriaGroup.

During the last extraordinary general meeting on the 

24 October 2013, the shareholders had approved the 

proposed diversification into property development 

pursuant to the Joint Venture Agreement with SBC 

Corporation Berhad signed on 21 May 2013 to develop 

Jesselton Quay. 

SuriaGroup has been very active in the investment 

activities in Sabah by leveraging on the accelerating 

growth of the State’s economy and the State’s strategic 

geographical location within the vibrant East Asian and 

BIMP-EAGA regions. Besides contributing actively towards 

the economic growth of Sabah, SuriaGroup is also 

committed to fulfil its obligation towards achieving better 

shareholdsers’ values through its concerted efforts towards 

greater efficiency and continuous growth.
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One with
the Nation

In line with the aspirations of the 

nation, we have taken aggressive 

measures to improve our port 

infrastructure to help promote Sabah 

as an emerging investment destination 

in the country and in the region, 

leveraging on the operational synergies 

of our core businesses.



Chairman’s 
Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

of Suria Capital Holdings Berhad 

and its Group of Companies 

(SuriaGroup), I am pleased to present 

the Annual Report and Audited 

Financial Statements of the Group 

for the financial year ended  

31 December 2014.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE IN 2014

The year 2014 had been another commendable year for 

SuriaGroup as it continued to build upon its strong business 

platform, enabling the Group to register another year of 

sustained growth albeit with some moderation. 

The Group’s total revenue grew by 4% to RM273.14 

million in 2014 from RM263.33 million generated in 2013. 

The improved performance was mainly due to the higher 

contribution by the Port Operations segment from its major 

subsidiary, Sabah Ports. In addition, the Logistics and 

Bunkering as well as the Ferry Terminal businesses also 

recorded improved revenue in 2014. However, the growth 

was muted as the Investment Holding and Engineering 

segments achieved lower returns.

The Group, however, recorded lower profitability during the 

year. The consolidated pre-tax profit of RM72.81 million in 

2014, was down by 3%, as compared to RM75.17 million 

in 2013. The after-tax profit was down by 8% at RM52.12 

million in 2014 as compared to RM56.86 million, as it was 

affected by higher operating expenses and partly as a result 

of the adoption of new accounting standards. 

As the core activity of the Group, Port Operations segment 

continued to be the backbone of the Group’s income 

stream, contributing 85% of the Group’s total revenue 

in 2014. This was followed by Logistics and Bunkering 

Services which accounted for 12% while the rest came 

from the Contract and Engineering, Ferry Terminal and 

Investment Holding activities. 

CORPORATE DEVELOPMENT

In 2014, SuriaGroup continued its journey to tap new 

business opportunities and enhanced its presence in the 

strategic sectors in Sabah, particularly in the port services, 

oil and gas business as well as in property development in 

the State. 

Among the significant development of the Group during the 

year was the signing of a Memorandum of Understanding 

with Sipitang Oil and Gas Development Corporation 

(SOGDC) in June 2014, which will see the involvement of 

Sabah Ports in the operations of port terminals at the 1,645 

hectare Sipitang Oil and Gas Industrial Park (SOGIP). The 

development is seen to be a potential focal point for new oil 

and gas investments in the economic triangle comprising 

Sabah, Brunei and Labuan Federal Territory. With the 

collaboration, it will assist SOGDC in making SOGIP into an 

important hub for petro-chemical activities in the region.
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The Group was a step closer in making its market debut 

into the local property development. In 2014, Suria 

successfully obtained the land title for the 23.25 acres of 

Kota Kinabalu Port land from the State Government of 

Sabah. This will pave the way for the commencement of 

the mega Jesselton Quay development, a joint venture with 

SBC Corporation on 16.25 acres of the acquired land.

THE WAY FORWARD

The year 2015 remains challenging for the Group as 

the global economic recovery is predicted to be more 

moderated and the external environment to remain 

vulnerable to downside risks. The uneven growth 

momentum across the advanced and emerging economies, 

coupled with the significant decline in global oil prices 

are likely to give some differentiated impacts on the world 

economy. 

As an open economy, Malaysia is exposed to these 

global uncertainties. However, its diversified economic 

structure and strengthened fundamentals are expected to 

provide some resilience to the economy that will enable 

the economy on a steady growth path. According to Bank 

Negara Malaysia, the Malaysian economy is expected to 

register steady albeit slower growth of 4.5% - 5.5% in 2015 

after expanding by 6% in 2014 (Bank Negara Malaysia, 

2015). Economic growth in 2015 will continue to be driven 

by private sector-led domestic demand and expansion in 

the export sector. 

Against this economic scenario, the Group will continue to 

remain cautiously optimistic but with strong conviction that 

the new financial year will bring in positive results for the 

Group. We shall endeavor to respond to the situation with 

new approach to strengthen our base while at the same 

time tapping new opportunities for business expansion, 

with the ultimate aim of enhancing stakeholders’ values and 

returns. 

We will make every effort to further affirm our role as an 

efficient port operator, through Sabah Ports, particularly 

in supporting the State Government’s investment and 

trade activities in Sabah. Towards this end, we are 

looking positively towards the State Government’s 

proposal to establish Sapangar Bay Container Port as the 

Transshipment Hub of the East under the 11th Malaysia 

Plan, leveraging on the State’s strategic location within the 

BIMP-EAGA and the East Asian region. 

We plan to launch our property projects for the Jesselton 

Quay mixed development together with our new venture, 

One Jesselton Waterfront, on the Kota Kinabalu Port land 

during 2015. 
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served as Chairman of Audit Committee and a member of 

Risk Management Committee. Tuan Haji Salimi, who joined 

on 3 May 2010, had sat as member in the Appointment/

Nomination, Remuneration, Audit and Risk Management 

Committees. En Mohamad Nor had been an alternate 

Director in the Board. On the same vein, I wish to welcome 

on board two new members, namely Datuk KY Mustafa 

and Mr. Vincent Chin Kiang Ming. Their long involvement 

in both the public and private sectors would be an added 

advantage in guiding the Board and the Group.

To the stakeholders, I would like to express our heartfelt 

thanks to the State Government of Sabah and its agencies, 

in particular Sabah Ports Authority, the State’s Ministry 

of Infrastructure Development, the Ministry of Finance as 

well as the State Economic Planning Unit for their strong 

support and assistance. I also wish to record my gratitude 

to all the shareholders, customers, financiers and business 

associates for their continued loyalty and confidence in 

SuriaGroup throughout the years.

 

Finally, my special thanks to fellow members of the 

Board, the Management and Staff of SuriaGroup for their 

continued spirit of excellence, dedication and perseverance 

to enable SuriaGroup deliver another year of commendable 

performance.

Thank you.

PJN, DMSM, ASDK, BSK

Chairman

Chairman’s Statement (Cont’d)

DIVIDEND QUANTUM

As gratitude to our shareholders for their loyalty and 

confidence in the Group, the Board of Directors had 

approved the payment of interim dividend of 3.0% per 

ordinary share in respect of the financial year ended  

31 December 2014, the same as in the previous year. This 

represents a net dividend of RM8.5 million which had been 

paid-out in December 2014.

The Board will also be recommending a final tax-exempt 

dividend of 4.0% at the forthcoming Annual General 

Meeting of the Holding Company which is subject to 

approval of members. If approved, this will bring the total 

dividend payout in respect of the financial year ended  

31 December 2014 to RM19.83 million which is equivalent 

to 7.0 sen net per ordinary share and represents a payout 

ratio of 38.1%. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Group and the Board of Directors, I 

would like to take the opportunity to record our special 

appreciation to resigning members of the Board, namely 

YBhg Datuk Anthony Lai Vai Ming @ Lai Kheng Ming, Tuan 

Haji Salimi Maralim and En Mohamad Nor Bin Tahir for 

their invaluable contributions to the company. Datuk Lai, 

who had been with the Board since July 2001, had also 

DATUK HJ. FAISYAL BIN DATUK YUSOF HAMDAIN DIEGO
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Group Managing 
Director’s Review 
of Operations

REVIEW OF SEGMENTAL PERFORMANCE

PORT OPERATIONS

Port operations continued to be the major 

driver for SuriaGroup’s performance. In 

2014, Sabah Ports registered an increase in 

cargo throughput (excluding containerised 

cargo) which totalled 22.8 million tonnes 

as against 22.4 million tonnes in 2013. 

The higher tonnage was pushed mainly by 

higher throughput at wharf operations.

Sabah Ports had handled more containerised cargos during 

the year under review. A total of 398,800 TEUs (twenty-foot 

equivalent unit) was recorded in 2014 with an increase of 

7% in comparison to 373,042 TEUs in 2013. Sapangar Bay 

Container Port, as the main port for containerised cargo, 

handled 70% of the overall container throughput handled 

by Sabah Ports. We are pleased to note that in 2014 the 

Container Port achieved an average net handling rate of 20 

boxes an hour which had been an impressive improvement 

when compared to 17 boxes an hour averaged out in 2013. 

Sapangar Bay Container Port reached even higher net 

handling rate of 23 boxes per hour in September 2014.

The types of cargo handled by the ports during the year 

comprised mainly liquid cargo (palm oil and petroleum) at 

47%, containers 30%, dry bulk (palm kernel expeller or PKE 

and fertilizer) 8% and other general cargo at 15%.

In terms of port operations, Sandakan Port remained as the 

major handler of cargo throughput as the port registered 

7.5 million tonnes or 33% of the overall cargo volume 

(excluding container). This was followed by Lahad Datu 

Port (4.7 million tonnes), Tawau Port (4.2 million tonnes), 

Sapangar Bay Oil Terminal (2.5 million tonnes), Kota 

Kinabalu Port (2.3 million tonnes), Kunak Port (1.4 million 

tonnes) and Kudat Port (0.2 million tonnes).

Sabah Ports also received more vessels in 2014 which was 

recorded at 14,178 vessels (13,228 vessels: 2013) with 

Tawau Port receiving the highest number of vessel arrivals, 

followed by Sandakan Port, Kota Kinabalu Port, Lahad Datu 

Port and the rest of the ports. 

Despite the safety concerns in the East Coast of Sabah, 

the tourism sector continued to do reasonably well in the 

State. Reflecting the resilience of this sector, tourist arrivals 

continued to be strong. A total number of 974 passenger 

vessels carrying 220,661 passengers docked at our ports 

in 2014. Of this, Kota Kinabalu handled a total of 118 cruise 

calls with two mega-size cruise liners handled at anchor. 

Sandakan Port handled 10 cruise calls carrying a total of 

2,936 passengers as well as 52 ferry vessels with some 

36,532 passengers during the year under review.

In 2014, the Group undertook several initiatives to further 

enhance operational efficiency. This has been in line 

with the objective of providing adequate and effective 

port services in the State as specified in the privatisation 

agreement of Sabah ports.

SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD | ANNUAL REPORT 2014 7

Group Managing Director’s Review of Operations



Group Managing Director’s Review of Operations (Cont’d)

Improvement efforts in 2014 continued to focus on the 

enhancement of port service efficiency, in particular through 

the upgrading of ports and acquisition of new equipment. 

These included the acquisition of two rubber-tyred gantry 

(RTG) cranes for Sapangar Bay Container Port as well as 

the extension works of jetty and wharf at Sapangar Bay Oil 

Terminal and Sandakan Port respectively.

Other infrastructure works to be carried out will include the 

extension of berth and container stacking yard at Sapangar 

Bay Container Port and the extension of the main jetty and 

container yard at Tawau Port.

In tandem with the increase in port operations and the 

need to maintain port efficiency, the Group continued to 

equip the ports with the necessary equipment. S.P. Satria a 

subsidiary which has been entrusted to supply and provide 

maintenance of equipment, had assisted sister company, 

Sabah Ports in the purchase of new port equipment during 

the year. These included rubber-tyred gantry cranes for 

Sapangar Bay Container Port, pump sets and flow metres 

for bunkering facilities and slewing jib crane for Sapangar 

Bay Oil Terminal as well as rubber fender for both Sandakan 

and Kota Kinabalu Ports. The company had also invested in 

the overseas and on-site technical training programmes for 

its personnel in particular for the handling of different types 

of port machineries. The company had also been recertified 

with QMS ISO9001:2008 by SIRIM.

LOGISTICS AND BUNKERING 

The Logistics and Bunkering segment made a turnaround 

during 2014, especially with the presence of more vessels 

calling at Kota Kinabalu and Sandakan Ports for bunkering 

services. 

S.P. Satria Logistics, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sabah 

Ports, recorded sales volume of 15.04 million litres of fuel 

during the year, an increase of 49% from 2013. 

To improve business liquidity, the company had 

collaborated with marine fuel oil and lubricant traders on 

a back-to-back arrangement to stockpile these products 

and to ensure consistent availability of supply to calling and 

passing vessels in Sabah.

CONTRACT AND ENGINEERING

There had been minimal engineering works secured for the 

year under review. However, the subsidiary is anticipating 

new book order for 2015 which will include the Jesselton 

Quay property project and port extension works at 

Sapangar Bay Container Port and a temporary oil terminal 

at POIC Sandakan.

FERRY TERMINAL OPERATIONS 

The Ferry Terminal operations were boosted further in 

2014 particularly with the handling of StarCruises Aquarius 

calling at Kota Kinabalu Port, as home port bringing in 

international cruise passengers. 
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As part of the Group’s business strategy to strengthen 

synergy, two subsidiaries, namely SCHB Engineering 

Services and Suria Bumiria had undergone a rationalisation 

exercise to capitalise on the combined skills and expertise 

for both companies. With the streamlining, the business 

of Suria Bumiria is now transferred to SCHB Engineering 

Services. This places the latter to undertake the ferry 

terminal operation as well as the construction and 

engineering works, and to serve as the property developer 

for the Group. 

With these positioning and anticipation, the Management 

team of the Group looks forward positively to a fruitful 2015 

and beyond.

MOHD FOWZI HAJI RAZI

Group Managing Director

The port, equipped with CIQS facility at the cruise terminal, 

provided better services to receive international passengers 

which had been on the rise. The temporary facility is in 

anticipation of a much bigger and modern Kota Kinabalu 

International Cruise Terminal earmarked to cater for the big-

size cruise liners.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

Anticipating a more challenging year in 2015, the Group 

will remain committed to its mandated role and to seek 

improvements in all facets of its operations. It will leverage 

on its sound financial and operational track record within 

the core business in port services and other port-related 

business segments. 

Through Sabah Ports, the subsidiary will be involved in 

the upgrading works for Kudat Port which will include the 

reconstruction of its CIQ facilities and the upgrading of 

landing ramp at the Port. The upgrading works will enhance 

the ferry services plying between Kudat and Palawan of 

Southern Philippines and this augurs well for Sabah Ports 

as the operator.

The Group will also focus more on the property 

development venture as part of its strategy of broadening 

the revenue base. As our latest venture, Suria is 

collaborating with Gabungan AQRS Berhad to develop 

One Jesselton Waterfront project on the Kota Kinabalu Port 

land. The Waterfront will also house Suria Corporate Office, 

besides serviced suites and apartments, a condo residence 

as well as ferry ticketing office. Located adjacent to the 

upcoming Jesselton Quay, the new venture will further 

complement the city’s waterfront living landscape.

After some delay, the Group is also anticipating the ground 

breaking of Jesselton Quay development to take place 

in 2015. The mega project is jointly developed with SBC 

Corporation.
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5-Year Financial 
Highlights

2014 2013
(Restated)

2012
(Restated)

2011
(Restated)

2010

Results (RM’000)

Revenue 273,138 263,330 262,928 276,006 254,966 

Gross profit 107,847 111,361 106,895 110,277 108,530 

Profit before tax 72,810 75,169 69,279 74,352 75,562 

Profit net of tax 52,119 56,861 50,306 53,615 56,328 

Selected Balance Sheet Items (RM’000)

Cash and bank balances 122,465 121,961 82,463 45,528 73,772 

Property, plant and equipment 64,008 65,881 68,783 688,218 724,219 

Concession assets 773,811 804,905 807,444 – – 

Total assets 1,248,687 1,299,539 1,296,584 1,221,950 1,223,412 

Shareholders’ funds 850,297 821,137 781,786 761,445 730,034 

Financial Ratios

Current ratio (x) 3.2 2.0 3.4 2.4 1.9 

Long term debt to equity (%) 36.3 39.9 54.9 44.9 49.6 

Pre-tax return on average equity (%) 8.7 9.4 9.0 9.9 10.7 

Return on average equity (%) 6.2 7.1 6.5 7.2 7.9 

Share Information

Earnings per share (sen) 18.4 20.0 17.7 18.9 19.8 

Net dividend per share (sen) 7.0 7.0 6.2 6.0 4.8 

Net assets per share (sen) 300.1 289.8 275.9 269.7 258.6 

Market price per share (sen) 236.0 265.0 151.0 158.0 190.0 

Revenue (RM‘000) Shareholders’ Funds (RM‘000)

Profit Net of Tax (RM‘000) Net Assets Per Share (Sen)
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Group Corporate 
Structure

Sabah Ports 
Sdn. Bhd. 

(583073-H)

100%
S.P. Satria 
Sdn. Bhd.

(622494-V)

70%

S.P. Satria 
Logistics 
Sdn. Bhd.

(722286-V)

100%

SCHB Engineering 
Services Sdn. Bhd. 

(645642-W)

100%
Suria Bumiria 

Sdn. Bhd.* 
(633477-V)

100%

Port Operations

Logistics & Bunkering Services

Property Development, Passenger 
Gateway & Project Management

*  Suria Bumiria Sdn. Bhd. is currently dormant after the internal 

rationalisation exercise whereby the ferry terminal operations 

were transferred to SCHB Engineering Services Sdn. Bhd. with 

effect from 1 April 2015. 

Suria Capital Holdings Berhad
(96895-W)
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Corporate 
Information

Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof 
Hamdain Diego
Chairman, Independent &  
 Non-Executive

Datuk Dr. Mohd. Fowzi Bin Hj. Razi
Group Managing Director, 
 Non-Independent & Executive

Datuk Ismail Bin Awang Besar, J.P.
Independent & Non-Executive

COMPANY SECRETARY

Suryani Binti Mohd. Saidi
(LS. 0005574)

Email: suryani@suriaplc.com.my

REGISTERED OFFICE

1st & 2nd Floor, Menara Jubili
No. 53 Jalan Gaya 
88000 Kota Kinabalu
Sabah, Malaysia
Tel : +6 088-257788 
Fax : +6 088-260355, +6 088-231032
Email : info@suriaplc.com.my

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young
Suite 1-10-W1, 10th Floor
CPS Tower, Centre Point Sabah
No. 1, Jalan Centre Point
88000 Kota Kinabalu
Sabah, Malaysia

BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS

Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub Bin Hj. 
Johari, J.P.
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

Datuk Mohd. Hasnol Bin Ayub
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar @ Wahab Hj. 
Abas
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

Hj. Muluk Bin Samad
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Alliance Bank Malaysia Berhad
AmBank (M) Berhad
Malayan Banking Berhad
Bank Kerjasama Rakyat Malaysia 
 Berhad
Bank Muamalat Malaysia Berhad
HSBC Bank Malaysia Berhad
Sabah Development Bank Berhad

SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Sdn. Bhd. 
(118401-V)

Level 17, The Gardens North Tower, 
Mid Valley City
Lingkaran Syed Putra
59200 Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia
Tel : +6 03-2264 3883
Fax : +6 03-2282 1886
E-mail : is.enquiry@my.tricorglobal.com

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTINGS

Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
- Main Market

QUOTATION DATA

Reuters Code SURIA.KL
Bloomberg Code SURIA MK
Bernama Code SURIA
BMSB Code 6521

WEBSITE 

www.suriagroup.com.my 

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Email: info@suriaplc.com.my 

Datuk Madius Bin Tangau, J.P.
Independent & Non-Executive

Datuk Hj. S. Abas Bin Hj. S. Ali
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

Vincent Chin Kiang Ming
Independent & Non-Executive

Kee Mustafa
Independent & Non-Executive
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Board 
Committees

CHAIRMAN
Datuk Madius Bin Tangau, J.P.
Independent & Non-Executive

MEMBERS
Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub Bin Hj. 
Johari, J.P.
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

Kee Mustafa
Independent & Non-Executive

SECRETARY
Suryani Binti Mohd. Saidi
(LS. 0005574)

Group Company Secretary

CHAIRMAN
Datuk Ismail Bin Awang Besar, J.P.
Independent & Non-Executive 

MEMBERS
Datuk Dr. Mohd. Fowzi Bin Hj. Razi
Group Managing Director
Non-Independent & Executive

Hj. Muluk Bin Samad
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

Kee Mustafa
Independent & Non-Executive

SECRETARY
Suryani Binti Mohd. Saidi
(LS. 0005574)

Group Company Secretary

CHAIRMAN
Vincent Chin Kiang Ming
Independent & Non-Executive

MEMBERS
Datuk Ismail Bin Awang Besar, J.P.
Independent & Non-Executive

Datuk Madius Bin Tangau
Independent & Non-Executive

Kee Mustafa
Independent & Non-Executive

SECRETARY
Mary Sii Lee Mieng
Senior Manager, Group Internal Audit

CHAIRMAN
Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof 
Hamdain Diego
Independent & Non-Executive

MEMBERS
Datuk Mohd. Hasnol Bin Ayub
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar @ Wahab Bin 
Hj. Abas
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

SECRETARY
Suryani Mohd. Saidi
(LS. 0005574)

Group Company Secretary

CHAIRMAN
Hj. Muluk Bin Samad
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

MEMBERS
Datuk Dr. Mohd. Fowzi Bin Hj. Razi
Group Managing Director  
Non-Independent & Executive

Vincent Chin Kiang Ming
Independent & Non-Executive

Kee Mustafa
Independent & Non-Executive

SECRETARY
Asmah Mohd Nor
Senior Manager  
Group Risk Management

NOMINATION/
APPOINTMENT 

COMMITTEE

RISK
MANAGEMENT 

COMMITTEE

REMUNERATION 
COMMITTEE

INVESTMENT
COMMITTEE

AUDIT
COMMITTEE
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Board of 
Directors’ Profile

Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof 

Hamdain Diego
Chairman, Independent & Non-Executive

Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof Hamdain Diego, 52, was 

appointed as an Independent and Non-Executive Chairman 

of Suria on 1 January 2013. He chairs the Investment 

Committee of the Board. He is also the Chairman of Suria 

Bumiria Sdn. Bhd., a wholly owned subsidiary of Suria. He 

is currently the Executive Chairman of Arus Sutera Sdn. 

Bhd. since 1997 and a Board of Director in Perkasa Trading 

Sdn. Bhd. since 1996. He is currently on the Board of KUB 

Malaysia Berhad since 1995 as well as an Audit Committee 

member. He is also the Chairman of KUB Telekomunikasi 

Sdn. Bhd. since 2006. He also sits in the Board of KUB 

Singgahsana (PJ) Sdn. Bhd., Restoran Kualiti Sdn. Bhd., 

KUB Agrotech Sdn. Bhd., Utama Steel Works Sdn. Bhd. 

and KUB Sepadu Sdn. Bhd. until 2012. He also held the 

post as the Deputy Chairman of KUB Malaysia Berhad from 

2005 to 2012.

Datuk Hj. Faisyal, a Malaysian, holds a Bachelor of Arts 

(Hons) in Economics from York University, Toronto, Ontario, 

Canada and a Diploma in Accountancy from Toronto School 

of Business, Toronto, Ontario, Canada.

Datuk Hj. Faisyal was also the former Chairman of Yayasan 

Bumiputra Sabah a wholly owned company of the State 

Government of Sabah from 2010 to 2012.

From June 2004 until June 2010, he was in the Board of 

Directors of Bursa Malaysia Berhad. During his tenure in 

Bursa Malaysia Berhad, he was the Chairman in the Market 

Participation, Listing and Compensation Committee. He 

also sits as a member in the Risk Management, Investment 

& Advisory and Compensation Committee. He was the 

Chairman and Director of Associated Concrete Products 

(Sabah) S/B Joint Venture between SEDCO & ACPI (M) from 

1996 to 2006. 

Datuk Hj. Faisyal Datuk Yusof Hamdain Diego has no 

securities holdings in Suria and no family relationship with 

any Director and/ or major shareholders nor has any conflict 

of interest with Suria.
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Datuk Dr. Mohd. Fowzi Bin Hj. Razi
Group Managing Director, Non-Independent & Executive

Datuk Dr. Mohd. Fowzi, 

61, was appointed as the 

Group Managing Director 

of Suria on 29 April 2009. 

He sits in the Remuneration 

Committee and Risk 

Management Committee 

of the Board. He also holds 

directorships in Sabah 

Development Bank, UMS 

Link Holdings and Desa 

Group of Companies. 

Datuk Dr. Mohd. Fowzi, a 

Malaysian, graduated with 

a BEc from the University 

of Adelaide, Australia. He 

obtained his MBA and 

MSc (Finance) from the 

University of Strathclyde, 

United Kingdom and also holds a Ph.D (Economics) from 

the University of Exeter, United Kingdom. He also holds 

the following professional qualifications: CA (Malaysia) and 

FCPA (Australia); and is a member of the Malaysian Institute 

of Management and a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of 

Management, United Kingdom.

He joined the Sabah State Civil Service as an accountant 

in 1979 and was appointed the State Treasurer in 1994. 

In 1996, he was then appointed the Permanent Secretary 

of the Ministry of Finance (Sabah). He had also served in 

several other key appointments such as the Chief Executive 

Officer/Executive Director of Sabah Bank Berhad and 

Sabah Development Bank Berhad, Group Chief Executive 

of Innoprise Corporation Sdn. Bhd. and General Manager 

of Ko-Nelayan. His last appointment before he took up his 

present position was the Director of the State Economic 

Planning Unit (Sabah).

Datuk Dr. Mohd. Fowzi holds 20,000 shares in Suria and 

has no family relationship with any Director and/or major 

shareholder nor has any conflict of interest with Suria.

Datuk Ismail Bin Awang Besar, J.P.
Independent & Non-Executive

Datuk Ismail Bin Awang Besar, 70, was appointed as 

Director of Suria on 6 June 1996 and as the Chairman from 

1 July 2001 until 20 May 2002. He was made the Managing 

Director of Suria from 14 September 2001 until 1 February 

2004. He chairs the Remuneration Committee and is a 

member of the Audit Committee of the Board. He also sits 

on the Board of the Company’s subsidiary, Suria Bumiria 

Sdn. Bhd.. Datuk Ismail, a Malaysian, is the Chairman of the 

Sabah Public Services Commission. 

Datuk Ismail holds a Bachelor of Arts (Hons) majoring in 

International Studies from the University of Staffordshire, 

United Kingdom. He also has a postgraduate Diploma 

in Development Administration from the University of 

Birmingham, United Kingdom.

Once a senior member of staff in 

the Sabah State’s Civil Service 

under various appointments, he 

joined Sabah Development Bank 

Berhad in 1985 as a Training 

Manager and moved his way up 

to Executive Director until he left 

in 1998. He was the Chairman of 

Saham Sabah Berhad, a state-

sponsored unit trust management 

company until 2001. 

Datuk Ismail has no securities 

holding in Suria and its 

subsidiaries and no family 

relationship with any Director and/

or major shareholder nor has any 

conflict of interest with Suria.
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Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub Bin Hj. Johari, J.P.
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub Bin 

Hj. Johari, 59, joined the Board 

of Suria on 24 August 1996 as 

a Non-Independent and Non-

Executive Director. He also sits 

as a member of the Nomination/ 

Appointment Committee of the 

Board. Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub, 

a Malaysian, is the President/

Chief Executive of Sabah 

Economic Development and 

Investment Authority (SEDIA). 

He also sits on the Boards of 

Warisan Harta Sabah Sdn. Bhd., 

Institute for Development Studies 

(IDS) Sabah, Creative Business 

Services Sdn. Bhd., IDS Infotech 

Sdn. Bhd., Borneo Natural 

Products Sdn. Bhd., Konsortium 

Pasifik Sama Sdn. Bhd., Faradale 

Development (Sabah) Sdn. Bhd., Sabah Techno-Park 

Corporation Sdn. Bhd., Borneo Essential Oils Sdn. Bhd., 

and Kimanis Power Sdn. Bhd.. He is also the Chairman/

Acting Managing Director of the Sabah Institute for Small 

and Medium Enterprise. 

Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub holds a Bachelor of Science 

(Hons) from the University of Sussex and a Master of 

Science (Liberal Studies) from the University of Manchester, 

England. In 1982, he obtained his Ph.D in Sociology from 

the University of Salford, England.

In 1983, he joined the Sabah State Civil Service as an 

Assistant Director (Research and Consultancy) in the Sabah 

Chief Minister’s Department. A year later he was made the 

Principal Assistant Director (Management Development). 

In 1985 he joined the Institute for Development Studies, 

Sabah (IDS) as an Associate Director (Social Affairs) and 

later moved up to Deputy Chief Executive/Senior Research 

Fellow in 1991. In 1994, he became the Executive Director/

Chief Executive of the Institute until February 2009. 

Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub has no securities holding in Suria 

and its subsidiaries and no family relationship with any 

Director and/or major shareholder nor has any conflict of 

interest with Suria.

Datuk Mohd. Hasnol Bin Ayub
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

Datuk Mohd. Hasnol Bin Ayub, 50, joined the Board of 

Suria on 1 July 2001 as an Independent and Non-Executive 

Director. He sits as a member of the Investment Committee 

of the Company. He is currently the Chief Executive/

Executive Director of Institute for Development Studies 

(IDS) Sabah and also as the Executive Chairman of Kerjaya 

Borneo Sdn. Bhd.. He is also the Managing Director of 

Jahsia Construction Sdn. Bhd. and Jahsia Sdn. Bhd.; and 

Director of Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd., S.P. Satria Sdn. Bhd., 

Rumah Anak Yatim Tambunan, Employees Provident Fund 

(KWSP), Serudong Power Sdn. Bhd. and also President of 

Sabah Bumiputera Chamber of Commerce since 2009. He 

was the former Chairman of Abad Mesra Sdn. Bhd. and 

was a Director of City Finance Bhd. from 1994 to 2000.

Datuk Hasnol, a Malaysian, holds a postgraduate Diploma 

in Business Administration and a Masters Degree in 

Business Administration both from the University of Wales, 

United Kingdom.

He has become a Non-

Independent & Non-

Executive Director by virtue 

of his appointment as 

Chief Executive/ Executive 

Director of Institute for 

Development Studies (IDS) 

Sabah on 2 April 2009. 

He holds 2,500 shares in 

Suria and has no family 

relationship with any 

Director and/or major 

shareholder nor has any 

conflict of interest with 

Suria.
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Datuk Haji Abu Bakar @ Wahab Bin Hj. Abas
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar @ Wahab Bin Hj. Abas, 57, was 

appointed as the Director of Suria on the 18 May 2011. 

He sits as member of the Investment Committee of the 

Board. He is currently the Chief Executive Officer of 

Warisan Harta Sabah Sdn. Bhd. (WHSB) since 1 March 

2011. Prior to this, he was the Executive Director of Suria 

from 10 December 1996 until he was appointed as the 

Group Managing Director of the Company on 1 February 

2004. He held the position until 28 April 2009. He is also a 

Board Member cum Chairman of Warisan Harta Sabah’s 

subsidiary companies namely, WHSB Trading Sdn. Bhd., 

WHSB Nominee (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd., WHSB Property 

Development Sdn. Bhd. WHSB Energy Ventures Sdn. 

Bhd. and WHSB Plantation Sdn. Bhd.. He also acts as a 

Chairman of Celcom Timur (Sabah) Sdn. Bhd., Common 

Tower Technologies Sdn. Bhd. and Tawau Millenium 

Centre Sdn. Bhd.. He was later appointed as WHSSB 

representative Director within its group of companies 

(Angkatan Hebat Sdn. Bhd., Borneo Housing Mortgage 

Finance Berhad, Eastern Sabah Power Consortium Sdn. 

Bhd. and Mercury Crest Sdn. Bhd.). Between 2012 until 

2014, he was appointed as a member of Majlis Ugama 

Islam Sabah (MUIS) Investment Committtee.

Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar, a 

Malaysian, graduated with 

a Bachelor of Economics 

(Hons) from Universiti 

Kebangsaan Malaysia 

(UKM) in 1980. He had 

obtained his postgraduate 

Diploma in Economics 

Development from the 

University of Swansea, 

United Kingdom.

He began his career in 

1980 with the Sabah State 

Civil Service serving the 

State’s Economic Planning 

Unit, the State’s Ministry of 

Communication and Works 

and the State Ministry of 

Finance in various positions. 

He was the Secretary General of the Sabah Bumiputra 

Chamber of Commerce (SBCC) from 1983 until 1988. A 

year later, he was attached to the Financial Review Section 

of the State Ministry of Finance until 1994. In 1995, he was 

Hj. Muluk Bin Samad
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

Tuan Hj. Muluk Bin Samad, 59, 

was appointed as a Director 

of Suria on 26 June 2011. He 

chairs the Risk Management 

Committee and a member of the 

Remuneration Committee of the 

Board. He also sits on the Boards 

of Sabah Credit Corporation and 

Angkatan Hebat Sdn. Bhd. He is 

currently the Deputy Permanent 

Secretary (Management) of the 

State’s Ministry of Finance. In 

August 2003, he was the Deputy 

Director (Macro) of Economic 

Planning Unit, Chief Minister’s 

Department until February 

2010. He gained his corporate 

experiences when he was seconded to Sabah Electricity 

Sdn. Bhd. (SESB) as the General Manager (Corporate 

Affairs) from 1 August 1999 to July 2003. 

Tuan Hj. Muluk began his career in 1980 as an Executive 

Officer at the Training and Career Department in Chief 

Minister’s Department. He was seconded to Majlis Ugama 

Islam Sabah (MUIS) on 1 January 1986 where he served 

in various capacities such as Investment Assistant Officer, 

Finance Officer, Deputy Treasurer and Acting Treasurer of 

the Council.

Tuan Hj. Muluk, a Malaysian, graduated with a Bachelor 

of Science in Business Administration from Indiana State 

University, Indiana, United States. He obtained his Master 

of Business Administration (International Business) from 

University of New Haven, Connecticut, United States. He 

also holds a Diploma in Business Studies from Institut 

Teknologi MARA, Shah Alam, Selangor.

He holds no shares in Suria and has no family relationship 

with any Director and/or major shareholders nor has any 

conflict of interest with Suria.

appointed as Senior Confidential Secretary to the Chief 

Minister of Sabah under the Chief Minister’s Department. 

He holds 57,503 shares in Suria and has no family 

relationship with any Director and/or major shareholder nor 

has any conflict of interest with Suria.
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Datuk Madius Bin Tangau, J.P.
Independent & Non-Executive

Datuk Madius Bin Tangau, 57, 

was appointed to the Board 

of Suria on 22 June 2012 as 

an Independent and Non-

Executive Director. He chairs 

the Nomination / Appointment 

Committee and is a member 

of the Audit Committee of the 

Board. Datuk Madius is currently 

the Chairman of Malaysia Timber 

Industrial Board since June 

2010. He is also the Chairman 

of Asian Supply Base Sdn. Bhd. 

(a wholly owned subsidiary of 

Sabah Energy Corporation) and a 

Board member of Sabah Energy 

Corporation since 1 October 

2014. Prior to this, he was the 

Chairman of the Sabah Cultural 

Board from May 2003 to August 2009 and Chairman of 

Forest Plantation Sdn. Bhd.

Datuk Madius began his career in Forestry as a Research 

Officer (Silviculturist) in Sabah Forestry Development 

Authority (SAFODA) in 1983. He then joined Institute for 

Development Studies Sabah (IDS) as a Research Associate 

in 1985. In 1994, Datuk Madius was appointed as the 

Executive Director for Institute for Indigenous Economic 

Progress (INDEP) Sabah until 1999.

Datuk Madius, a Malaysian, holds a Masters Degree 

in Development Management from Asian Institute of 

Management (AIM), Makati, Philippines. He obtained his 

Bachelor of Science (Forestry) from Universiti Pertanian 

Malaysia (UPM), Selangor and his Certificate in Forest 

Plantation Management and Forestry Research under 

Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA) in 1985. 

He is a member of the Public Account Committee of the 

Malaysian Parliament.

He has no securities holding in Suria and its subsidiaries 

and no family relationship with any Director and/or major 

shareholder nor has any conflict of interest with Suria.

Datuk Hj. S. Abas Bin Hj. S. Ali
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

Datuk Hj. S. Abas Bin Hj. S. Ali, 67, was appointed to the 

Board of Suria on 29 August 2013 as a Non-Independent 

and Non-Executive Director. He also sits as a Director in 

Suria Bumiria Sdn. Bhd.. He is currently the Chairman 

of Warisan Harta Sabah Sdn. Bhd. (WHSSB), Jesselton 

Wellness Sdn. Bhd., KOJASA Holdings Berhad and serves 

as a Director of WHSB Energy Ventures Sdn. Bhd. (a 

subsidiary of WHSSB). He also holds Directorship in Sana 

Kaya Sdn. Bhd. and Sasakaya Ent.

He began his career with the Sabah State Civil Service 

in 1976 as the Development Officer (Division 1) under 

the Ministry of Industrial Development where he served 

until 1978. From 1979 until 1981, he served as the State 

Assemblyman for Balung constituency (N.47) of Tawau and 

in 1981 to 1985, he was appointed as a Political Secretary. 

In 1985, he was appointed as the Deputy Chairman 

of Sabah Ports Authority and in 1986 he became the 

Chairman of Ko-Nelayan Sabah. In 1986 to 1990, he sat 

on the Board of Sabah Finance Berhad. In 1990, he served 

as the Chairman of SAMA (Sabah Marketing) group of 

companies until 1992. In 2004, he was again elected as the 

State Assemblyman for Balung (N.55) Tawau and by virtue 

thereof was appointed as the Chairman of Majlis Ugama 

Islam Sabah (MUIS) until 2010. Between 2011 until 2013, he 

served as the Science and Technology Advisor to the Chief 

Minister of Sabah. In May 2013, he was re-elected as the 

State Assemblyman for Balung constituency (N.55) Tawau.

Datuk Hj. S. Abas, a 

Malaysian holds a Bachelor 

of Science Degree in 

Applied Economics from 

University of East London, 

United Kingdom (previously 

North East London 

Polytechnic) in 1976.

He has no securities 

holdings in Suria and 

its subsidiaries and no 

family relationship with 

any Director and/ or major 

shareholders nor has any 

conflict of interest with 

Suria.

Board of Directors’ Profile (Cont’d)
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Vincent Chin Kiang Ming
Independent & Non-Executive

Mr. Vincent Chin Kiang Ming, 45, has been appointed as 

the Director of Suria on 1 July 2014 as an Independent and 

Non-Executive Director. He has also been appointed as the 

Chairman of the Audit Committee on 15 August 2014.

 

Mr. Vincent Chin holds 

a Bachelor of Business 

(Accounting) from Curtin 

University of Technology, 

Australia. He is also a 

member of CPA Australia, 

a member of Malaysian 

Institute of Accountants 

and a member of Malaysian 

Institute of Taxation.

Mr. Vincent Chin is currently 

one of the partners in 

Messrs. Yong Tan K.M. 

Chin, a local based audit 

firm. He has more than 24 

years of audit and finance 

experience. Prior to joining 

Messrs. Yong Tan K.M. Chin 

as a partner, he first started 

his training at KPMG. Mr. Chin started his own audit firm 

in 2000 under the style of K.M. Chin & Associates, and the 

merger took place in 2014, culminated into Messrs. Yong 

Tan K.M. Chin.

Mr. Vincent Chin was formally attached with the accounts 

and finance division in three public-listed companies in 

Malaysia. Apart from that, he also assumed the position 

of Investment Manager in Malaysia Ventures Berhad, the 

first venture capital company in Malaysia, where he gained 

experience in corporate finance and corporate exercises.

He has no securities holdings in Suria and its subsidiaries 

and no family relationship with any Director and/ or major 

shareholders nor has any conflict of interest with Suria.

Kee Mustafa
Independent & Non-Executive

Kee Mustafa, 64, was appointed to the Board of Suria 

as an Independent and Non-Executive Director on 1 July 

2014. He was then appointed as a member of the Audit 

Committee of the Board on 15 August 2014.

Kee Mustafa holds a Bachelor of Arts of Anthropology and 

Sociology from University Malaya, Kuala Lumpur.

Kee Mustafa has 33 years of service with the Sabah 

State Government. He began his career in 1974 with the 

Establishment Office, Chief Minister’s Department as an 

Executive Officer, Service Division and was appointed as 

Principal Assistant Director, Service Division on 1 June 

1982. In 1984, he was seconded to Sabah Gas Sdn. 

Bhd. as Personnel Manager and later became the Senior 

Manager (Administration). In 1991, he returned to work 

with the State’s Civil Service where he served several 

Government’s departments. In January 1996, he was 

appointed as the Permanent Secretary at the Ministry of 

the Infrastructure Development. He was then appointed 

as a Director at State Public Services Department, Chief 

Minister’s Department in March 

2000. He became the Sabah 

State Secretary in April 2000 until 

he retires from the government 

service in 2007. Datuk Kee 

Mustafa also sits in the Board of 

Malaysia Airlines System Berhad 

from 2000 to 2003. He was also a 

member of the Royal Commission 

of Inquiry on Immigrants in Sabah 

from 2012 to May 2014.

He has no securities holdings 

in Suria and its subsidiaries 

and no family relationship with 

any Director and/ or major 

shareholders nor has any conflict 

of interest with Suria.

SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD | ANNUAL REPORT 2014 19

Board of Directors’ Profile



Executive & Management 
Committee Members

1. Datuk Dr. Mohd. Fowzi Bin Hj. Razi

 Group Managing Director

2. Ng Kiat Min

 Chief Financial Officer

3. Mohd. Sahid Bin Hj. Nawab Khan

  Chief Operating Officer  

(Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd.)

4. Loh Boon Hon

  Executive Director  

(S.P. Satria Sdn. Bhd.)

5. Azman Amarashikin

  Chief Executive Officer  

(SCHB Engineering Services Sdn. Bhd.)

6. Erwin Chua

  Chief Executive Officer  

(S.P. Satria Logistics Sdn. Bhd.)

7. Siti Noraishah Binti Azizan

  General Manager  

(Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd.)

8. Suryani Binti Mohd. Saidi

  Group Company Secretary/Legal Advisor 

9. Junita Binti Tajul Ariffin

 Group Human Resource Manager 

10. Datin Mariam Binti Mahmun

  Senior Manager, Group Corporate Affairs 

& Communications

11. Mary Sii Lee Mieng

 Senior Manager, Group Internal Audit

12. Asmah Mohd Nor

  Senior Manager, Group Risk Management

13.  Hikmah Rahmaniyah Binti Ahmad 

Khatib

  Manager, Group Finance & Administration

14. Imelda Marie Milus

  Assistant Manager, Group Information 

Technology

1

4

7

10

13

3

6

9

12

2

5

8

11

14

20



Corporate Social 
Responsibility

In line with its corporate mission, SuriaGroup has always been committed towards 

community engagements through its annual corporate social responsibility (CSR) 

programmes. The Group has focused its philanthropic efforts collaborating with learning 

institutions, children’s homes, non-governmental organisations (NGOs) as well as those 

in need at the surrounding community. 

The Group hence places great value in developing a CSR programme that can enrich 

lives whilst being sustainable in nature. Embedding these strategies in business practices 

has been pivotal in bridging the trust of stakeholders while establishing SuriaGroup as a 

responsible entity fully engaged with society.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

The number of institutions adopted under the Group charity 

programmes continued to grow in 2014. The Group views 

donations as an essential means in building the community 

relationship and ensuring that a basic standard of life is met 

for the less fortunate. In July 2014, the subsidiary Sabah 

Ports welcomed Emmanuel Homes in Kudat to experience 

SuriaGroup’s warmth. A team led by Group Managing 

Director and senior officials from the subsidiary spent time 

to learn about the institution and pledged support to the 

needs of this children’s home. 

The Group’s engagement with the youths was carried out 

through programmes with secondary school students 

across Kota Kinabalu. One of the programmes was the 

sharing of knowledge in health and safety practices with 

pupils from SMK Likas, Kota Kinabalu during their Safety, 

Health and Anti-Drug Week in April 2014. Through the 

campaign, youths benefited from learning basic lifesaving 

skills and ways to inculcate healthy habits for a brighter 

future. 23 April 2014
Sabah Ports participates in the “Safety, Health and 

Anti-Drug Week” at Sekolah Menengah Kebangsaan 

Likas, Kota Kinabalu.
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As a yearly tradition, Suria as the holdings company 

regularly treats children from welfare homes to an 

excursion at the scenic Jesselton Point. In February 2014, 

35 children from Rumah Kanak-Kanak Kota Kinabalu 

boarded a chartered bus to Jesselton Point’s Chinese New 

Year festival. The outing was a day to enjoy the acrobatic 

lion dance and the skilful drum performances, a popular 

event flocked by local and island-hopping tourists, eager 

to witness the colorful lunar celebrations, which was 

organised by Suria Bumiria.

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION

With its key involvement in the port business, SuriaGroup 

is keen to take on maritime conservation and encourages 

efforts that promotes better sea life and shores in Sabah. In 

2014, the Group launched a large-scale collaboration with 

Marine Research Foundation (MRF) on the conservation of 

marine turtles at Mantanani Island, Kota Belud, Sabah. The 

grant provided MRF a leap forward in efforts to manage 

marine turtles through laparoscopy studies. The data 

gathered from the procedure, which ascertains gender and 

reproductive status of sea turtles, will assist MRF to create 

an effective management regime. 

Inspired to set a positive example to its employees, the 

Group strives to limit its environmental footprints. Since 

launching the ‘Green Office’ campaign in 2011, green 

education has been on-going in the holding company. 

Whether pushing for energy conservation or introducing 

recycling activities, Suria continues to re-educate 

employees through its green lectures scheduled every two 

months. 

MARKETPLACE RELATION

In view of the nation’s Goods and Services Tax (GST) 

implementation in April 2015, SuriaGroup organised 

a learning session for corporations in Sabah under its 

luncheon talk series. The talk was presented by Mr. Tan 

Sim Kiat, Deputy Director of the Royal Malaysian Customs 

Department (GST Unit) from Putrajaya Kuala Lumpur. 

‘Empowering The Millennials’ was the second part of 

Suria’s luncheon talk series. Presented by Mr. Prabha 

Peter of Future Base Development, the talk brought to 

the forefront the growing need to engage and inspire the 

younger demographics at the workplace, as those who will 

carry on the leadership and the business of organisations.

Corporate Social Responsibility (Cont’d)

22 April 2014

Luncheon Talk on “Salient Features of GST 

in Malaysia, Transitional Issues & Business 

Preparation”.
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MANPOWER DEVELOPMENT

SuriaGroup views employees as an essential asset and 

is committed to provide development programmes 

towards solidifying its human capital. It strives to create an 

environment where all employees can excel. In this respect, 

the Group has continued to reward high achievers through 

the various recognition programmes which included 

Employee Recognition Award, Process Improvement 

Award, Employees Wellness Award, Long Service Award 

and Blood Donor Appreciation Award. By establishing a 

high performance culture and a cohesive workforce, the 

company endeavours to attract and retain talents whilst 

making SuriaGroup a preferred place of employment. 

The Anugerah Pelajar Cemerlang (Excellent Student Award) 

has been an added recognition extended to the family of 

great achievers as tributes for the excellence in education 

among children of SuriaGroup employees. 

Apart from these activities, 

SuriaGroup also focus on the 

health of its staff through various 

programmes such as health 

screenings among staff that 

included the body mass index 

(BMI) check, cholesterol and 

blood pressure checks. In order to 

foster closer relationship among 

family of staff, the Group had its 

Family Day at one of the most 

beautiful beach fronts at Rasa Ria 

Resort, Tuaran.

Through the range of CSR 

programmes, SuriaGroup hopes 

to see the Group, the subsidiaries 

and employees be socially 

responsible. CSR has been an 

integral part of the way the Group 

functions as a business entity 

and therefore it has become a necessity to align business 

practices and decisions with what is beneficial to the 

society, the environment and the Group as a whole.

3 May 2014
SuriaGroup’s annual 

Blood Donation Drive 

with the public at 

Centre Point Sabah, 

Kota Kinabalu.

12 May 2014
Spreading cheers to young 

children at Rumah Kanak-

Kanak Kota Kinabalu.

27 June 2014
Sabah Ports’ adoption 

programme with 

Emmanuel Homes in 

Kudat.
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Corporate Social Responsibility (Cont’d)

16 July 2014
Ramadhan Outreach 

program by Tawau Port with 

the local community.

28 August 2014 
Donation of sundry items 

and clothes to fire victims 

of Kampung Gentisan, 

Sapangar.

17 July 2014
GMD hands over Hari Raya 

goodies for the Security 

Forces.

22 August 2014
Cloth Donation 

to Mohd Fahmi’s 

family, staff of 

SCHB Engineering 

Services, whose 

house was 

damaged by fire.

18 July 2014
GMD presenting a mock cheque to Marine Research 

Foundation for “Conservation of Marine Turrles Through 

Laparoscopy Studies at Mantanani”.
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12 October 2014

Staff joined the 

Colourful Hope Run in 

aid of National Stroke 

Association of Malaysia 

(NASAM Sabah).

30 October 2014
Sabah Ports ran an Occupational Safety and 

Health (OSH) Awareness and Love Reading 

Campaign at Sekolah Kebangsaan Pengiran 

Siti Hafsah, Karambunai.

27 October 2014

Luncheon Talk on “Empowering The 

Millennials” by Mr. Prabha Peter.

22 October 2014

Sabah Ports’ Recycle, Litter Free 

and Beautification Campaign 

at Sapangar Port to promote 

recycling habit and create 

environmental awareness.

29 October 2014

Green Office environmental awareness talk 

on “Energy Efficiency and Safety” by Mohd 

Nizam Atailah of Sabah Electricity Sdn. Bhd.

SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD | ANNUAL REPORT 2014 25

Corporate Social Responsibility



Highlights
of Events

1. 31 March 2014

  Recipients of SuriaGroup’s Employee Recognition 

Award 2013.

2. 24 April 2014

  GMD distributed the SuriaGroup windshield sticker in 

conjunction with Labour Day.

3. 28 April 2014

  Jesselton Quay premium payment to Sabah Lands 

and Survey Department led by Director, Datuk Ismail 

Awang Besar.

4. 1 May 2014

  Tawau Port celebrates Labour Day and Family Day.

5. 16 May 2014

  Jesselton Quay Loan Signing Ceremony between 

SBC Corporation Berhad and RHB Bank Berhad, and 

Preview Event witnessed by Chairman of Suria.

6. 23 May 2014

  Recipients of Appreciation Awards with Sabah Ports’ 

Chairman and the management during the Customer 

Appreciation Dinner held in Kota Kinabalu.

7. 27 May 2014

  SuriaGroup’s Kaamatan finalists with the winners of 

Kaamatan Queen and Mr. Kaamatan.

8. 7 June 2014

  Children participating in the apple eating competition 

during Sandakan Port’s Labour and Family Day 

celebrations.

9. 13 June 2014

  Children of SuriaGroup employees received the 

Outstanding Academic Achievement Award from 

GMD, witnessed by their parents.
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10. 23 June 2014

  MoU Signing Ceremony between Sipitang Oil and Gas 

Development Corporation (SOGDC) and Sabah Ports 

witnessed by Sabah’s Chief Minister and Chairmen of 

Suria and Sabah Ports.

11. 24 June 2014

  The 31st Annual General Meeting of Suria held at 

Sabah Ports headquarters, Sapangar.

12. 16 July 2014

  GMD presents prayer mat donations for students 

during the Break Fast at UiTM campus with the Chief 

Minister of Sabah, YAB Datuk Seri Panglima Musa Haji 

Aman.

13. 17 July 2014

  GMD with guests and management during 

SuriaGroup’s Breaking of Fast and Tarawih Prayers 

with staff and villagers of Gentisan, Wak Wak and 

Kuala Teluk Sapangar.

14. 23 July 2014

  GMD officiating a surau during breaking of fast 

ceremony at Lahad Datu and Kunak Port.

15. 18 August 2014

  The Group’s Hari Raya Aidilfitri open house held at 

Kinabalu Golf Club, Tanjung Aru.

16. 19 August 2014

  GMD presenting sponsorhip for Sabah International 

Expo (SIE 2014) at MICCI Sabah Branch’s Annual 

Luncheon.

17. 27 August 2014

  Goods and Services Tax (GST) In-House Training.

18. 6 September 2014

  General Manager of Sabah Ports, Puan Siti Noraishah 

Azizan receiving appointment as Chairperson of 

Women in Logistics and Transport Sabah (WiLAT).

10
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16 17 18

14 15

11 12
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Highlights of Events (Cont’d)

19. 18 September 2014

  GMD briefing Tan Sri Datuk Seri Panglima Joseph 

Pairin Kitingan and dignitaries at SuriaGroup’s booth 

during the Sabah International Expo (SIE) 2014.

20. 29 October 2014

  Wayleave Agreement between Sabah Ports and Shell 

Timur Sdn. Bhd.

21. 7 November 2014

  SuriaGroup Annual Dinner with the theme “A Night of 

Masquerades and Hats”.

22. 7 November 2014

  GMD with winners of Employee Recognition Award 

(ERA) 2014.

23. 15-16 November 2014

  SuriaGroup staff participated in the Toh Puan Netball 

Championship.

24. 13 December 2014

  SuriaGroup Family Day 2014 held at Rasa Ria Resort, 

Tuaran.

25. 18 December 2014

  The Magic of Christmas in 1Suria during the Group’s 

Christmas and New Year luncheon, hosted by S.P. 

Satria Logistics.

26. 27 February 2015

  The Group celebrates Chinese New Year at Jesselton 

Point, Kota Kinabalu.

27. 16 March 2015

  The signing of Joint Venture Agreement for One 

Jesselton Waterfront between Suria and Gabungan 

AQRS Berhad.

28. 30 March 2015

  GMD presents a farewell card to Mr. Kwong Chou 

Thien, General Manager of SCHB Engineering Services 

Sdn. Bhd. before his retirement.
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Strength  

in Synergy

With clear strategic direction and 

strong leadership at the helm as well 

as the support of a united workforce, 

we are forging ahead on a steady path 

of growth. Our dynamic team of skilled 

and experienced employees play an 

integral part in the continued success 

of the company. As such, we continue 

to place a high priority on attracting, 

retaining and developing our talents 

and in fostering team spirit.



Share Price and 
Volume Traded 2014

Year 2014 - Daily Volume Traded and Highest-Lowest Share Prices

Year 2014 - Monthly Volume Traded and Highest-Lowest Share Prices

Market Capitalisation

 Jan  Feb  Mar  Apr  May  Jun  Jul  Aug  Sep  Oct  Nov  Dec 

High  2.68  2.50  2.72  2.70  2.64  2.96  2.99  2.90  2.75  2.65  2.68  2.50 

Low  2.23  2.21  2.38  2.52  2.50  2.60  2.75  2.50  2.55  2.39  2.51  2.01 

Daily Average 

 Volume Traded 128,986  64,745 131,867  98,209 101,595 233,071 245,835  98,843  48,668 118,796  75,790 124,648 

Total Volume  2,837,700  1,294,900  2,769,200  2,160,600  2,235,100  4,894,500  5,654,200  2,075,700  1,070,700  2,732,300  1,515,800  2,866,900 
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Statement 
of Corporate 
Governance

INTRODUCTION

The Board of Directors of Suria adopts and practices a 

high standard of corporate governance in conducting the 

affairs and business of the Group. The Board views this 

as a fundamental part of its responsibilities to protect and 

enhance long term shareholder value and the financial 

performance of the Group, while taking into account the 

interests of other stakeholders. In tandem with this, the 

Board is fully committed to the maintenance of a high 

standard of corporate governance by supporting and 

implementing the best practices and principles as laid out 

in the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2012 

(MCCG 2012) and Chapter 15 of Bursa Malaysia Securities 

Berhad (BMSB). Apart from the above, Suria Board had 

also on 14 May 2007 approved SuriaGroup Board Charter 

to be used in providing guidelines to the Board and the 

management (including subsidiaries) in improving their 

effectiveness, effective day to day operations and to fulfil 

their fundamental roles and responsibilities at best practice 

level. 

1. ESTABLISH CLEAR ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITY

 Principal Responsibility of the Board

  The Board maintains effective control of the Group. 

This includes responsibility for reviewing and adopting 

the Management’s proposals on Group’s operational 

policies, strategic business and action plans, including 

setting the annual budget for the Group. The Board’s 

other primary functions include regular overseeing of 

the Group’s business operations and performance; 

and ensuring the existence of appropriate processes 

and internal controls to measure and manage business 

risks in general and specifically, operational, credit, 

market and liquidity risk.

  At each regularly scheduled meeting, the Board will 

review the financial and operational performance of the 

Group against the annual budget previously approved 

by the Board for that year. Specific responsibilities 

have been delegated to the Board’s Committees, all of 

which have their clearly defined terms of reference. In 

line with the recommendations made under the MCCG 

2012 and the requirement for public listed companies 

to comply with corporate governance under the BMSB 

Listing Requirements, Suria had formed the following 

committees to assist the Management in its operation 

towards achieving the optimal governance framework.

 The Committees established are as follows:

 • Nomination/Appointment Committee

 • Remuneration Committee

 • Audit Committee

 • Risk Management Committee

 • Investment Committee

SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD | ANNUAL REPORT 2014 33

Statement of Corporate Governance
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  With the establishment of these committees, the Board is well informed of the running of the Group’s business and the 

various areas of risk management.

  For further information on the roles of the Committees, kindly refer to Board Committees on page 13 of the Annual 

Report.

 Supply of Information

  All scheduled meetings held during the year were preceded by a formal notice issued by the Company Secretary in 

consultation with the Chairman. The Chairman ensures that all Directors have full and timely access to information, 

with board papers distributed in advance of meetings. The notice of each meeting is accompanied by the minutes 

of preceding board meetings, together with relevant information and documents for matters on the agenda. Senior 

Management of the Group may be invited to attend board meetings to provide detailed explanations and clarifications 

on issues that are considered during the meetings. The Directors have access to all information within the Group in 

furtherance of their duty. They also have access to the advice and services of the Senior Management of the Group 

and the Company Secretary, and independent professionals as and when required. From time to time, the Directors 

are also provided with the latest updates on the industry developments in which the Group is engaged and on the 

rules and regulations relating to the day to day running of the Group that are imposed by the relevant regulatory 

authorities.

  The Company Secretary attended all Board meetings and has ensured that accurate and adequate records of 

proceedings of the Board meetings and decision made are properly kept.

2. STRENGTHEN COMPOSITION

 2.1 The Directors

  Composition and Balance of the Board

   The Board comprises experienced Directors with a wide and varied range of expertise. The Board currently 

has eleven (11) Directors consisting of one (1) Independent Non-Executive Chairman, one (1) Non-Independent 

Executive Group Managing Director, five (5) Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors and four (4) Independent 

Non-Executive Directors. The current composition complies with BMSB’s requirements in terms of the number 

of independent non-executive directors in the composition of the Board. The individual Directors bring a diverse 

range of skills and backgrounds. In view of the composition of the Board, and having regard to the calibre of the 

Directors and their range of experience, the Board believes that the interests of investors including the Group’s 

minority shareholders and the public are adequately protected and advanced.

  Appointments to the Board

   The Nomination/Appointment Committee is responsible for making recommendations for any appointment to 

the Board including those of its subsidiaries. In making these recommendations, the Nomination/Appointment 

Committee considers the required mix of skills and experience that the Directors should bring to the Board.
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   During the year, there were several changes in Suria Board’s composition as follow:

Name Designation Remark

Datuk Anthony Lai Vai Ming @ Lai Kheng 

Ming, J.P.

Independent & Non-Executive Retired on 24 June 

2014

Hj. Salimi @ Mohd. Salimi Bin Maralim, 

J. P.

Independent & Non-Executive Retired on 24 June 

2014

Kee Mustafa Independent & Non-Executive Appointed on 

1 July 2014

Vincent Chin Kiang Ming Independent & Non-Executive Appointed on  

1 July 2014

  Other Information on Directors

   None of the Directors has any family relationship with any Directors of the Company, its subsidiaries and/ or the 

major Shareholders of the Company. None of the Directors have been convicted within the past ten (10) years 

and all Directors have no conflict of interest with the Company.

  Re-Election of Directors

   In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, at least one third of the Directors (except for the 

Managing Director) for the time being or, if their number is not a multiple of three then the number nearest to but 

not exceeding one third, shall retire and be eligible for re-election at each Annual General Meeting. 

   The Nomination/Appointment Committee is responsible to recommend to the Board candidates for all 

directorships to be approved by the shareholders or the Board. At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, the 

Directors listed in the Notice of Annual General Meeting on page 160 are due to retire and being eligible, offer 

themselves for re-election.

 2.1 Nomination / Appointment Committee

   The Nomination/Appointment Committee is responsible for recommending to the Board, candidates for all 

directorships to be filled for their approval and for submission to the Annual General Meeting for re-appointments 

or re-elections. The Committee also recommends the appointment of the Chief Executive Officer and Senior 

Management of the Group. The duties and responsibilities of the Committee include:

  •  Recommend to the Board, candidates for all directorships to be filled by the Board;

  •  Consider, in making its recommendations, candidates for directorships proposed by the Group Managing 

Director and, within the bounds of practicability, by any other Senior Officer or any Director or Shareholder;
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  •  Recommend to the Board, Directors to fill the seats on Board Committees;

  •  Examine the size of the Board with a view to determine the number of directors on the Board in relation to its 

effectiveness;

  •  Ensure that at every Annual General Meeting, one-third (1/3) of the Directors for the time being shall retire 

from the office in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association;

  •  Review annually its required mix of skills and experience and other qualities, including core competencies 

which Non-Executive Directors should bring to the Board and disclose the same in the annual report; 

  •  Assess annually the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, the committees of the Board and the contribution 

of each individual Director based on the process implemented by the Board; and

 2.3 Remuneration Committee

   The Remuneration Committee is responsible to review and recommend to the Board the Group’s remuneration 

policy including that of the Group’s Executive Directors to ensure that their remuneration reflects the industry 

practice and their contributions to the Group’s growth and profitability. The remuneration policy also supports 

the Group’s objectives and Shareholders’ interests. The determination of the remuneration of the Non-Executive 

Directors which are paid in the form of monthly fees and attendance allowance is decided by the General 

Meeting of members based on the recommendation of the Board after making prior reference to industry practice 

involving comparable organisation.

  Directors’ Remuneration

   The Remuneration Committee proposes the Directors’ remuneration before tabling to the Board prior to 

endorsement by the Members during the Group’s Annual General Meeting. The Remuneration Committee and 

the Board also make necessary reference to industry practice involving comparable organisations in making the 

recommendation. 

   The Remuneration Committee ensures that the executive directors do not participate in making decisions on their 

own remuneration packages.
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   The details of remuneration receivable by directors of the Company during the financial  year ended 31 December 

2014 are as follows:

 Group  Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Executive:

Salaries and allowances 366 366 366 366

Bonus 162 135 162 135

Defined contribution plan 83 105 83 105

Estimated money value of benefits-in-kind 18 23 18 23

629 629 629 629

Non-Executive:

Fees 669 356 600 296

Other emoluments 326 303 313 291

995 659 913 587

1,624 1,288 1,542 1,216

The number of directors of the Company whose total remuneration during the financial year fell within the 

following bands is analysed below:

 Number of Directors

2014 2013

RM’000 RM’000

Executive Directors:

RM600,001 – RM650,000 1 1

Non-Executive Directors:

Below RM50,000 3 7

RM50,001 – RM100,000 7 3

RM100,001 – RM150,000 1 –

RM200,001 – RM250,000 1 1

During the 31st annual general meeting on the 24 June 2014, the shareholders have approved the revision of 

Directors’ fee from RM 30,000.00 to RM 60,000.00 per annum. The Directors’ fee has not been revised for more 

than ten (10) years and was not based on market practice. A consultant had been appointed by the Remuneration 

Committee to assist in the revision. The consultant when making the recommendation is guided by the MCCG 

2012, the Listing Requirements and the Green Book issued by the Putrajaya Committee (2006).
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3. REINFORCE INDEPENDENCE

  The Board is mindful of the Recommendations 3.2 and 3.3 of the MCCG 2012 that the tenure of the independent 

director should not exceed cumulative of nine (9) years. None of the independent directors had served a tenure of nine 

(9) years and above in an independent capacity.

  There is also a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman (who had never been the CEO of the Company) 

and Group Managing Director to ensure that there is a balance of power and authority in managing the Group. The 

Group Managing Director reports to the Board and seeks approval from the Board on major matters as and when 

necessary. The Chairman, having the necessary skills and experience to manage the Board, encourages healthy 

debate and ensures that resolutions are put to a vote. Hence, Board decisions reflect the collective will of the Board 

and not the views of an individual or group.

4. FOSTER COMMITMENT

 4.1 Time Commitment

   The Director’s commitment in carrying out their duties and responsibilities is affirmed by their full attendance at 

the Board meetings and held during the financial year ended 31 December 2014, as reflected below:

Name of Director

Attended 

Meetings

Percentage 

(%)

Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof Hamdain Diego 6/6 100

Datuk Dr. Mohd. Fowzi Bin Hj. Razi 6/6 100

Datuk Ismail Bin Awang Besar, J.P. 6/6 100

Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub Bin Hj. Johari, J.P. 6/6 100

Datuk Mohd. Hasnol Bin Ayub 5/6 83

Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar @ Wahab Bin Hj. Abas 6/6 100

Hj. Muluk Bin Samad 6/6 100

Datuk Madius Bin Tangau, J.P. 4/6 67

Datuk Hj. S. Abas Bin Hj. S. Ali 4/6 67

Kee Mustafa1 4/4 100

Vincent Chin Kiang Ming2 4/4 100

Datuk Anthony Lai Vai Ming @ Lai Kheng Ming, J.P.3 2/2 100

Hj. Salimi @ Mohd. Salimi Bin Maralim, J.P.4 2/2 100

Notes:

1. Appointed on 1 July 2014

2. Appointed on 1 July 2014

3. Retired on 24 June 2014

4. Retired on 24 June 2014
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 4.2 Training

All Board members have completed the Mandatory Accreditation Programme in accordance with the Listing 

Requirements.

The Board members continued to attend various programmes as well as retreats organised by the Company to 

keep themselves abreast of developments in the economy and industry. In addition, the Directors are also briefed 

from time to time during Board Meetings by Group staff on any changes in laws and regulations that are relevant 

to the Group’s operations.

The Group Company Secretary will also facilitate in organizing seminars, workshops and training sessions for 

Directors.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, all Board members attended various programmes, 

conferences and courses organised by regulatory authorities and professional bodies. The programmes in which 

members of the Board have participated are as follows: 

No. Directors & Training Date

1. Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof Hamdain Diego

•  Goods and Services Tax “Salient Features of the GST in Malaysia, 

Transitional Issues and Preparation”

•  “Institutional Investors as Stewards in Promoting Governance in the 

Malaysian Capital Market”

• Board Chairman Series : The Role of the Chairman

• The New Landscape for Global Political Risk Management

• Qualified Risk Director Program (Green & Brown Belt)

22 April 2014

27 June 2014

6 November 2014

18 November 2014

24 November 2014

2. Datuk Dr. Mohd. Fowzi Bin Hj. Razi

• Credit Regulatory Framework Under the Financial Service ACT 2013

• 6th Annual Corporate Governance Summit

•  Corporate Directors Advance Programme (CDAP) 2014 Strategy & Risk 

Managing Uncertainty

•  Goods and Services Tax “Salient Features of the GST in Malaysia, 

Transitional Issues and Preparation”

• MIA International Accountant Conference 2014

• Qualified Risk Director Programme (Black Belt)

3-4 March 2014

4-5 March 2014

12-13 March 2014

22 April 2014

4-5 November 2014

16 December 2014

3. Datuk Ismail Bin Awang Besar, J.P.

•  Goods and Services Tax “Salient Features of the GST in Malaysia, 

Transitional Issues and Preparation”

• Conference and Working Visits “5th Resort & Entertainment Macau, China”

•  Annual ASEAN Corporate Governance Summit 2014 “Governance and 

Regulatory Updates”

22 April 2014

25-26 September 2014

1-2 October 2014
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No. Directors & Training Date

4. Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub Bin Hj. Johari, J.P.

•  Goods and Services Tax “Salient Features of the GST in Malaysia, 

Transitional Issues and Preparation”

•  Annual ASEAN Corporate Governance Summit 2014 “Governance and 

Regulatory Updates

22 April 2014

1-2 October 2014

5. Datuk Mohd. Hasnol Bin Ayub

•  Goods and Services Tax “Salient Features of GST in Malaysia, Transitional 

Issues and Business Preparation”

22 April 2014 

6. Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar @ Wahab Bin Hj. Abas

•  Goods and Services Tax “Salient Features of GST in Malaysia, Transitional 

Issues and Business Preparation”

•  Annual ASEAN Corporate Governance Summit 2014 “Governance and 

Regulatory Updates”

22 April 2014

1-2 October 2014

7. Hj. Muluk Bin Samad

•  Goods and Services Tax “Salient Features of GST in Malaysia, Transitional 

Issues and Business Preparation”

• Predicting Financial Crisis

• Qualified Risk Director Programme (Black Belt)

22 April 2014

18 November 2014

16 December 2014

8. Datuk Madius Bin Tangau, J.P.

•  Goods and Services Tax “Salient Features of GST in Malaysia, Transitional 

Issues and Business Preparation”

•  Annual ASEAN Corporate Governance Summit 2014 “Governance and 

Regulatory Updates”

• The New Landscape for Global Political Risk Management

22 April 2014

1-2 October 2014

18 November 2014

10. Datuk Hj. S. Abas Bin Hj. S. Ali

• View Point Visual Project Management

•  Goods and Services Tax “Salient Features of GST in Malaysia, Transitional 

Issues and Business Preparation”

18-19 February 2014

22 April 2014

11. Kee Mustafa

• Annual ASEAN Corporate Governance Summit 2014

•  Mandatory Accreditation Programme for Directors of Public Listed 

Companies (MAP)

• Managing in Uncertainty: Surviving the Turbulence

• Qualified Risk Director Program (White & Yellow Belt)

• Qualified Risk Director Program (Green & Brown Belt)

• Qualified Risk Director Program (Black Belt)

1-2 October 2014

19-29 November 2014

16 October 2014

21 October 2014

24 November 2014

16 December 2014
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12. Vincent Chin Kiang Ming

•  Mandatory Accreditation Programme (MAP) for Directors of Public Listed 

Companies

• National Tax Seminar 2014

• MFRS and MPERS Financial Reporting - The Tax Impact

6-7 August 2014

27 October 2014

11-12 December 2014

5. UPHOLD INTEGRITY AND FINANCIAL REPORTING

 5.1  Compliance with Applicable Financial Reporting Standard

   The Board is responsible for ensuring that the financial statements of the Group as reported in the quarterly 

announcements to BMSB and the Annual Report to Shareholders, are drawn up in accordance with the 

Companies Act, 1965 and applicable Approved Accounting Standards in Malaysia, and so as to give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at the end of the reporting period.

   The Audit Committee assists the Board in ensuring completeness, accuracy and adequacy of information by 

reviewing and recommending for adoption of information for disclosure. The Committee also reviews the Group’s 

accounting policies and the changes to these policies as well as ensures these financial statements comply with 

the accounting and regulatory requirements.

   The Statement by Directors for preparing the Annual Audited Financial Statements pursuant to Section 169 (15) 

of the Companies Act, 1965 is set out on page 58 of this Annual Report.

 5.2  Assessment of Sustainability and Independence of External Auditors

   The Audit Committee was previously known as the Audit and Risk Management Committee and on 29 January 

2010, the Board decided to separate the Committee into the Audit Committee and Risk Management Committee 

respectively to enable the Audit Committee to focus on compliance with auditing and accounting standards.

   The Committee meets with the External and the Internal Auditors at least twice annually to discuss the financial 

statements and their audit findings. It also meets with the External Auditors whenever it deems necessary.

   The minutes of the Committee meetings are formally tabled to the Board for noting and for action when 

necessary. 

   In addition to the duties and responsibilities set out under its terms of reference, the Committee acts as a forum 

for discussion of internal control issues and contributes to the Board’s review of the effectiveness of the Group’s 

internal control and risk management systems. The Audit Committee also conducts a review of the internal audit 

function to ensure the adequacy of the scope, functions and resources of the Finance Department and that it has 

the necessary authority to carry out its work impartially.

   The activities of the Audit Committee during the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out under the Audit 

Committee Report on pages 50 to 52.
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 5.3 Whistleblowing Policy

   Upon the introduction of the Whistleblower 

Protection Act 2010, the Management has tasked 

the Risk Management Department to spearhead 

the formulation of the SuriaGroup Whistleblowing 

Policy. The Board of Directors recognizes the 

importance the Whistleblower Policy and had 

approved the SuriaGroup Whistleblowing Policy 

on the 28 August 2012.

   By implementing the Whistleblowing Policy 

in SuriaGroup, it enables the Group to do the 

following:

  •  To monitor any disclosure in a responsible 

manner by way of internal procedure

  •  To address and manage a disclosure in an 

appropriate manner according to gravity or 

nature of the wrongdoing

  •  To protect the whistleblower from reprisal 

as a direct consequence of making a 

disclosure and to safeguard such person’s 

confidentiality; and

  •  To treat both the whistleblower and the 

alleged wrongdoer fairly.

6. RECOGNISE AND MANAGE RISK 

 6.1 Risk Management Committee

   The Risk Management Committee has been 

recently established on 29 January 2010 after 

the  Board decided to separate the Audit & Risk 

Management into two (2) separate Committees, 

namely the Audit Committee and the Risk 

Management Committee.

   For further information on the roles of the 

Committee kindly refer to page 46 of the Annual 

Report.

Statement of Corporate Governance (Cont’d)

 6.2 Sound framework to manage risk

   The Board is fully aware and acknowledges their 

responsibilities to maintain a sound system of 

internal control that covers not only the financial 

aspects but also the operations, risk management 

and compliance control to safeguard 

Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. 

The key management personnel are tasked 

with the responsibility to monitor, manage and 

provide reports to the Board on compliance of 

procedures, financial strength and the business 

activities of the Group.

 6.3 Internal Audit Function

   An Internal Audit Function has been established 

that is independent of the activities it audits, to 

regularly review and appraise the effectiveness 

of the Group’s system of internal controls. The 

Internal Audit Function reports directly to the 

Audit Committee. Audits are conducted based 

on operational, financial and administrative 

controls and compliance to the Group’s authority 

limits, policies and procedures; Securities 

Commission and BMSB’s Listing Requirements; 

and other applicable laws and regulations. In 

addition, Internal Audit Department monitors and 

checks for compliance and standards and the 

effectiveness of internal control structures across 

the Group.

   The Group’s Statement on Internal Control is set 

out on page 46 of this Annual Report.

  Relationship with Auditors

   The Board has appropriately established a formal 

and transparent relationship with the Group’s 

Auditors. The External Auditors have continued to 

report to members of the Group, of their findings 

that are included as part of the Group’s financial 

reports with respect to this year’s audit on 

statutory financial statements.
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   The Group has established a good working 

relationship with its auditors through the Audit 

Committee and the Internal Audit Department. 

The Audit Committee has always maintained 

a professional relationship with the External 

Auditors by ensuring the Group takes the 

necessary action to address the key issues 

highlighted to the Group. Where necessary, 

meetings with the External Auditors are held. 

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee 

has expressed authority to communicate directly 

with External and Internal Auditors.

   Meetings with External and Internal Auditors 

are held at least twice a year as appropriate to 

discuss the audit plans, findings and financial 

statements. External Auditors and Internal 

Auditors may, conversely, call for a meeting with 

the Audit Committee to discuss issues relating 

to the financial statements and other related 

matters. Other Directors and Senior Management 

of the Group attend the Audit Committee 

Meetings upon invitation. In addition, the External 

Auditors are invited to attend the annual general 

meeting and are available to answer shareholders’ 

questions on the conduct of the statutory audit 

and the preparation and content of their audit 

report.

   The Audit Committee also reviews the 

appointment of the Group’s External Auditors 

and the fees payable to them on an annual basis. 

Whilst the External Auditors may be appointed 

by the Company or the Group to provide services 

in relation to non-audit matters, the relationship 

with the External Auditors is monitored to ensure 

that their impartiality and independence remains 

unquestionable. The Audit Committee approves 

all ad hoc non-audit services and ensures that 

the objectivity and independence of the External 

Auditors are not compromised.

   The detailed Audit Committee Report is set out in 

pages 50 to 52 of this Annual Report.

7.  ENSURE TIMELY AND HIGHLY QUALITY 

DISCLOSURE

  The Company adheres strictly to BSMBs’ disclosure 

framework to disseminate the accurate information to 

the public in a timely manner.

  Suria has adopted an internal Investor Relation 

Policy as Suria is obligated to maintain its corporate 

credibility and instill investor confidence in the Group 

by having a structured approach to the communication 

of material information. The aim is to fairly and 

accurately represent the Group so that investors and 

potential investors can make an informed investment 

decisions.

8.  STRENGTHEN RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN 

COMPANY AND SHAREHOLDERS

  The Group acknowledges the importance of 

communicating to its shareholders, investors and 

analysts. The Board also recognises the importance 

of transparency and accountability to its shareholders 

and investors. This is done through the Annual General 

Meeting or the Extraordinary General Meeting that 

serves as the main communication channel and 

principal forum for dialogue with shareholders, and 

also through the distribution of Annual Report to the 

shareholders and investors.

  In the Company’s effort to enhance communication 

with the shareholders, the Corporate Affairs and 

Communications Department had set up an 

Investor’s email alert where the Company will update 

shareholders on latest news and announcements on 

the Company immediately after an announcement 

is released to BMSB. This service is available to 

shareholders who had registered for the email alert.

  Up-to-date information on the Group is also accessible 

via the Group’s website at www.suriagroup.com.my.

SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD | ANNUAL REPORT 2014 43

Statement of Corporate Governance



Statement of Corporate Governance (Cont’d)

COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

The Company has applied most of the Principles and Recommendations of the MCCG 2012 during the financial year save 

for the recommendation in respect of having gender diversity of the Board.

The Board recognises the value of having gender diversity in the Board. As an initial step, the Board will endeavour to 

ensure that gender diversity is taken into account in nominating and selecting new directors of the Company and will 

actively seek to identify suitable female candidates to sit in the Board.

The Board will continue to make considerable efforts in working towards aligning the Company’s governance framework as 

far as practicable to the Principles and Recommendations of MCCG 2012.

This statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors dated 16 April 2015.
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AMERICAN DEPOSITORY RECEIPT (ADR) OR GLOBAL 

DEPOSITORY RECEIPT (GDR) PROGRAMME

During the financial year, the Company did not sponsor any 

ADR or GDR programme.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

None of the Directors have any family relationship with 

other Directors or major shareholders of the Company. 

However, Datuk Dr. Mohd. Fowzi Bin Hj. Razi, Datuk Mohd. 

Hasnol Bin Ayub and Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar @ Wahab Bin 

Hj. Abas each holds 20,000; 2,500 and 57,503 shares 

respectively directly in the share capital of the Company.

CONTRACTS RELATING TO LOAN

There is no contract relating to loans by the Company 

involving Directors and major shareholders.

CONVICTIONS FOR OFFENCES

None of the Directors have been convicted for offences 

within the past 10 years other than traffic offences, if any.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

There were no material contracts between the Company 

and its subsidiaries involving Directors’ and major 

shareholders’ interests.

OPTIONS, WARRANTS OF CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES

No options, warrants or convertible securities were issued 

by the Company during the financial year.

Additional Compliance 
Information

PROFIT GUANRANTEE

During the year, there was no profit guarantee given by the 

Company.

RECURRENT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (RRPT)

There were no RRPT entered into during the financial year.

REVALUATIONS OF LANDED PROPERTY

The Company does not have a revaluation policy on landed 

properties.

SHARE BUYBACKS

During the financial year, there was no share buybacks by 

the Company.

UTILISATION OF PROCEEDS 

No proceeds were raised by the Company from any 

corporate proposal.

IMPOSITION OF SANCTION/PENALTY ON THE GROUP 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

There was no sanction or penalty imposed on the Group, 

Board Members and Management for the financial year 

ended 31 December 2014.

NON-AUDIT FEES

During the financial year ended 31 December 2014 

the amount of non-audit fees paid by the Group was 

RM133,774.00.
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Statement on Risk 
Management and 
Internal Control

INTRODUCTION

The Board of Directors of Suria is committed towards 

maintaining a sound system of risk management and 

internal control. This Statement on Risk Management 

and Internal Control outlines the scope and nature of 

risk management and internal controls of Suria and its 

subsidiaries (“Group”) for the financial year ended 31 

December 2014.

For the purpose of disclosure, this statement is prepared 

pursuant to Paragraph 15.26(b) of the Listing Requirements 

of Bursa Malaysia and is guided by the Statement on Risk 

Management & Internal Control: Guidelines for Directors of 

Listed Issuers.

BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES AND ACCOUNTABILITIES

The Board has established a process for identifying, 

evaluating, managing and monitoring key risks that 

may impede the achievement of the Group’s business 

objectives. The process is embedded in the Group’s risk 

management policy and internal control system. They are 

designed to manage, rather than eliminate the business 

risks. As such, they provide a reasonable but not an 

absolute assurance against material misstatement, fraud or 

loss. 

The Board of Directors as the Group’s ultimate governing 

body is responsible for providing overall risk oversight. It 

approves the risk management policy, risk appetite and 

performance targets for the Group. The oversight function 

is assigned to the Board Risk Management Committee 

(BRMC). The Group Managing Director and Chief Financial 

Officer are responsible to provide assurance to the Board 

that the risk management policy and internal control system 

are operating adequately and effectively, in all material 

aspect, within the Group.

RISK MANAGEMENT 

Having regard to managing risk as an inherent part of 

the Group’s activities, risk management and the on-

going improvement in the corresponding controls in all 

the significant areas of risk (such as operation, strategic, 

financial, health, safety and environment), remain the key 

focus of the Board in building a successful and sustainable 

business. Summarised below is a description of the key 

elements of the Group’s risk management system:

1. Group Risk Management Department (GRMD)

  The Group established the GRMD to assist the BRMC 

in implementing the Group’s risk management policy. 

GRMD serves to assist the holding and subsidiary 

companies in identifying their principal risks and 

providing assurance on effective implementation of 

risk management.

2. Risk Management System (RMS)

  The RMS was developed to capture and register all 

key risks, their causes and consequences; and the 

current controls that are in place. It also captures 

management action plans to achieve the range of 

risk tolerance acceptable by the Group. Risk owners 

provide assurance every quarterly that the risks have 

been reviewed and updated, and action plans are 

implemented within the agreed timeline to mitigate 

risks to an acceptable level. Risk registers are 

developed at all levels of the Group and appropriate 

responses are put in place to mitigate risks. The risk 

registers are monitored on quarterly basis. At the 

Group level, a corporate risk profile is established 

which outlines the significant risks faced by the Group 

covering strategic, financial, operational, compliance 

and reputational risks.
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3. Risk Management Policy 

  The main objective of the policy is to provide 

sound risk management to safeguard shareholders’ 

investments, the Group’s assets and other stakeholder 

interests. The Board is responsible for ensuring that 

this policy and framework is constantly in place, 

reviewed and monitored and is adequate to effectively 

manage the risks within the Group. 

4. Risk Management Roles and Responsibilities

 4.1  Board of Directors - The Board provides an 

oversight function and is responsible for the 

establishment and approval of the SuriaGroup 

ERM policy. 

 4.2  Board Risk Management Committee - 

The BRMC is responsible for reviewing the 

effectiveness of the Group’s risk management 

activities. Assessing and continuously improving 

internal controls and systems, particularly those 

related to key business risks. 

 4.3  Group Risk Management Department - The 

GRMD is responsible for the overall coordination 

and implementation of the Group’s Risk 

Management Policy. GRMD serves as the 

secretariat to the BRMC in implementing the ERM 

policy. 

 4.4  Risk Management Working Committee - 

RMWC is responsible for the management of 

risks in all business units and ensuring that 

necessary control mechanisms and improvement 

initiatives are delivered effectively.

 4.5  All employees - Responsible to identify, assess 

and manage risk within the scope of their 

assigned roles and responsibilities.

5. Risk Management Approach

  The Group has adopted a formal and structured 

approach of risk management described below:

 5.1  Strategies, goals and objectives - A review 

is done annually. Risks are identified, assessed 

and documented. Annual review is conducted at 

group level taking into accounts any changes in 

market conditions and significant business risks.

 5.2  Operating subsidiaries - A review on the risk 

profiles are done on quarterly basis. Quarterly 

reports are prepared which includes assessment 

of risks, actions undertaken and progress made. 

 5.3  Investment proposal, projects, tenders, etc. 

- Review is done as and when required. Tender 

Committee with cross functional representation 

to provide oversight on the tendering matters 

prior to approval by the approving authorities. 

Proposals are deliberated and evaluated at the 

Investment Committee prior to tabling to the 

Board.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Board recognises that the internal audit function is an 

integral component of the governance process. One of the 

key functions of the Group Internal Audit Department (GIAD) 

is to assist the Group in accomplishing it objectives by 

bringing a systematic and disciplined approach to evaluate 

and improve the effectiveness of risk management, internal 

control, processes and governance within the Group.

Monitoring the effectiveness of internal controls is 

embedded in the normal course of the business. The GIAD 

develops risk-based audit plan to determine the priorities 

of the internal audit activities. The Audit Committee reviews 

and approves the internal audit plans on an annual basis. 

GIAD independently reviews the internal controls in the 

key activities of the Group’s businesses implemented by 

the management, ascertains the extent of compliance with 

established policies, procedures and relevant statutory 

requirements, recommends improvements to the existing 

system of controls, and conducts follow-up reviews on 

previous audit reports to ensure that appropriate actions are 

taken to address issues reported. In addition, management 

letters from the external auditors are deliberated at the 

Audit Committee. 
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Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control (Cont’d)

KEY ELEMENTS OF INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The key elements of the Group’s internal control system are 

as follows:

1. Organisation Structure

  The Group has an organisational structure that is 

aligned to its business and operational requirements, 

with clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority 

levels. 

2. Corporate Culture and Core Values

  Our corporate culture is founded on the core values of 

the Group and is based on the concept of connecting 

our business to the stakeholders, community and 

environment in a balanced approach; being firm and 

friendly, business driven and responsible, progressive 

and practical. The Group’s core values are ‘Service 

Excellence’, ‘Unity of Purpose’, ‘Respect’, ‘Integrity’ 

and ‘Achievement’.

3. Strategic Business Plan and Annual Budget

  Strategic business plan and annual budget are 

prepared, presented and approved by the Board. 

Strategic business plans are reviewed periodically; 

taking into account any changes in market conditions 

and significant business risks. The actual performance 

of the Group is assessed against the approved budget 

on a quarterly basis where explanations, clarifications 

and corrective action taken for significant variances 

are reported by the Management to the Audit 

Committee and the Board.

4. Authority Limits and Procurement Procedures

  The Group has in place “Authority Limits and 

Procurement Procedures” that outline the principles 

and specific requirements related to the procurement 

processes. 

5. Code of Ethics

  The Group’s Employee Code of Conduct & Discipline 

Handbook was established to ensure the highest 

standards of integrity and behaviour in all activities 

conducted by the Group. 

6. Employees Competency

  The Group employs a Performance Management 

System that assesses employees’ competency and 

leadership skill, and also measures performance 

against key performance indicators which are aligned 

with business objectives and strategies. 

7. Communication

  There is a coordinated communication in the Group 

to ensure that information is cascaded down to all 

staff across the Group on timely manner. The Group 

is committed to open and effective communication to 

motivate the staff to deliver high quality services and 

exceptional value to customers and stakeholders.

8. Insurance

  Adequate insurance is in place to ensure that major 

Group’s assets are sufficiently covered. 

9. Whistleblowing

  The Group has in place a whistleblower policy with 

the objective of providing an avenue for employees to 

report any breach or suspected breach of any rules or 

regulations, including business principles, policies and 

procedures. Any concerns raised will be investigated 

and managed accordingly. The policy provides for 

confidentiality of the identity of the whistleblower and 

accords protection against any form of reprisal.

48



ADEQUACY AND EFFECTIVENESS OF RISK 

MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s 

risk management and internal control system for the 

year under review and up to the date of approval of this 

statement for inclusion in the annual report. 

The Board is of the view that the system of internal control 

instituted throughout the Group is sound and provides a 

level of confidence on which the Board relies for assurance. 

In the year under review, there was no significant control 

failure or weaknesses that would have resulted in material 

losses, contingencies or uncertainties requiring separate 

disclosure in the Annual Report. 

The Board has also received assurance from the Group 

Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer that the 

Group’s risk management and internal control system is 

operating adequately and effectively, in all material aspects, 

based on the risk management and internal control system 

of the Group.

REVIEW OF THE STATEMENT BY EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The external auditors have reviewed this Statement on 

Risk Management and Internal Control for the inclusion 

in the Annual Report of the Group for the year ended 31 

December 2014 and reported to the Board that nothing has 

come to their attention that causes them to believe that the 

statement is inconsistent with their understanding of the 

process adopted by the Board in reviewing the adequacy 

and integrity of the system of internal control within the 

Group.

This Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control 

is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board of 

Directors dated 16 April 2015. 

This statement is made in accordance with the resolution of 

the Board of Directors dated 16 April 2015.
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1. MEMBERS

  The Audit Committee (“AC”) members and their 

respective designations are as follows:

 • Vincent Chin Kiang Ming

   Chairman / Independent & Non-Executive 

Director

   (Member of the Malaysian Institute of 

Accountants)

 • Datuk Ismail Bin Awang Besar, J.P.

  Member / Independent & Non-Executive Director

 • Datuk Madius Bin Tangau, J.P.

  Member / Independent & Non-Executive Director

 • Kee Mustafa

  Member / Independent & Non-Executive Director

2. COMPOSITION

  The Board shall appoint the AC members from 

amongst themselves, comprising not less than 

three (3) in accordance with the requirement of 

Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (BMSB) Listing 

Requirements on Corporate Governance, Part C of 

Chapter 15.

  The AC comprises of four (4) members and all of 

whom are Non-Executive Directors. The Board adopts 

the definition of “independent director” as defined 

under the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa 

Malaysia Securities Berhad (“BMSB”). One (1) member 

of the AC is a member of the Malaysian Institute of 

Accountants (MIA) who is also the Chairman of the AC 

and an Independent Director.

  If any member of the AC resigns, dies, or for any 

reason ceases to be a member resulting in non-

compliance to the composition criteria as stated above 

in Clause 2, the vacancy shall be filled within three (3) 

months and the Nomination/Appointment Committee 

shall review and recommend for the Board’s approval 

another appropriate Director to fill the vacancy.

3. RIGHTS AND AUTHORITY

 The AC is authorised by the Board to:

 a)  Investigate any matter within its terms of 

reference;

 b)  Have the resources which are required to perform 

its duties;

 c)  Have full and unrestricted access to any 

information, records, property and personnel of 

the Company and any other companies within the 

Group;

 d)  Have direct communication channels with the 

External and Internal Auditors and Risk Manager;

 e)  Be able to convene meetings with the External 

and Internal Auditors and Risk Manager, 

excluding the attendance of the other directors 

and employees of the Company, where deemed 

necessary;

 f)  Invite other Directors and/or employees of the 

Company to attend any particular AC meeting to 

discuss specific issues; and

 g)  Be able to obtain outside legal or other 

independent professional advice, and invite 

external parties with relevant experience and 

expertise to attend the AC meetings for advice.

4. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

  The main objective of the AC is to assist the Directors 

in the effective discharge of its fiduciary responsibilities 

for corporate governance, timely and accurate financial 

reporting and development of sound internal controls. 

In compliance with BMSB Listing Requirements and 

Best Practices of the Code on Corporate Governance, 

it is the objective of the AC to assure the shareholders 

of the Company that the Directors have complied with 

specific financial standards and disclosure policies 

developed and administered by BMSB and other 

approved accounting standard bodies.

Audit Committee 
Report
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  The AC shall ensure consistency with BMSB 

commitments to encourage high standards of 

corporate disclosure and transparency. In addition, the 

AC shall evaluate the quality of audits performed by 

the Internal and external auditors.

  The principal duties and responsibilities of the AC shall 

include the following:

 4.1 Financial Reporting

  (a)  To review the quarterly interim results and 

annual financial statements of the Company, 

and thereafter submit them to the Board for 

approval, focusing particularly on:

   •  Any changes in implementation of new 

accounting policies and practices;

   •  Significant adjustments arising from the 

external audits and unusual events;

   •  True and fair view of the Company’s 

financial position and performance; and

   •  The going concern assumption and 

compliance with accounting standards 

as well as other legal requirements.

  (b)  To review any related party transactions and 

conflict of interest situation that may arise 

within the Company of its business units.

  (c)  To ensure prompt publication of annual 

audited financial statements.

 4.2 External Audit

  (a)  To review the competency, independence 

and suitability of the External Auditors 

for recommendation to the Board for re-

appointment and the audit fee thereof;

  (b)  To review and discuss the audit plan, audit 

strategy, the nature and scope of the audit 

with the External Auditors (before the audit 

commences) and ensure coordination (where 

more than one audit firm is involved);

  (c)  To review with the External Auditors, their 

evaluation of the system of internal controls 

and audit findings;

  (d)  To discuss issues and concerns arising 

from the interim and final audits, and any 

other matters the External Auditors wish to 

discuss, in the absence of management, if 

necessary;

  (e)  To review the External Auditors’ 

management letter, management’s response, 

and co-operation given by the Company, 

its business units and its officers to the 

auditors;

  (f)  To make appropriate recommendations 

to the Board on matters of resignation or 

dismissal of External Auditors; and

  (g)  To meet with the External Auditors twice 

yearly without any Executive Board members 

and Management Staffs present.

 4.3 Internal Audit

  (a)  To approve the Internal Audit Charter of 

internal audit function of the Group;

  (b)  To review and report the adequacy of 

internal audit plans and scope, functions, 

competency and resources of the internal 

audit function, and that it has the necessary 

authority to carry out its works;

  (c)  To review the internal audit process and 

where necessary ensure that appropriate 

action is taken by the management on 

the recommendations of the internal audit 

function;

  (d)  To review any appraisal or assessment of 

the performance of members of the internal 

audit function to ensure that they have the 

standing to exercise independence and 

professionalism in discharging their duties;

  (e)  To contribute to the improvement of 

risk management, internal control and 

governance system as spelled out in the 

Professional Practice of Internal Auditing 

contained in The International Professional 

Practices Framework;

  (f)  To review the major findings of internal audits 

and investigations, management’s response, 

remedial actions taken and follow-ups; and

  (g)  To direct any special investigation to be 

carried out by internal audit.
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Audit Committee Report (Cont’d)

5. MEETINGS

 5.1 Attendance of Meetings

   During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the AC held a total of six (6) meetings. Details of attendance 

of members who were in office during the financial year under review are as follows:

Name of AC Members

Number of

Meeting Attended

Vincent Chin Kiang Ming

Datuk Ismail Bin Awang Besar, J.P.

Datuk Madius Bin Tangau, J.P.

Kee Mustafa

2/2

6/6

2/6

2/2

 5.2 Frequency of Meetings

   The AC will meet at least four (4) times annually 

and may call such additional meetings as the 

Chairman of the AC decides necessary to fulfil its 

duties.

   Dates of the AC meetings held during the year are 

as follows:

  1. 26 February 2014

  2. 1 April 2014

  3. 15 May 2014

  4. 18 June 2014

  5. 18 August 2014

  6. 31 October 2014

   At least twice a year, the External Auditors were 

also invited to attend and participate in the 

deliberations on relevant items at the Committee 

meetings conducted during the year under review. 

Members of Senior Management including the 

Group Managing Director were also present by 

invitation. During the financial year 2014, the 

Committee carried out its duties as set out in 

the “duties and responsibilities” section. The 

total expenditure incurred by the Internal Audit 

Department for the financial year 2014 was 

RM414,000.

6. TRAINING

  For the year under review, the AC has attended 

the following conferences, seminars and training 

programmes:

 •  Salient Features of Goods and Services Tax 

in Malaysia Transitional Issues & Business 

Preparation

 •  Mandatory Accreditation Programme (MAP) for 

Directors of Public Listed Companies

 •  Conference & Working Visits “5th Resorts & 

Entertainment Macau, China”

 •  Annual ASEAN Corporate Governance Summit 

2014 “Governance and Regulatory Updates”

 •  Managing in Uncertainty : Surviving the 

Turbulence

 • National Tax Seminar 2014

 •  Qualified Risk Director Program (White & Yellow 

Belt)

 •  The New Landscape for Global Political Risk 

Management

 • MAP Program – Being postponement Charges

 •  Qualified Risk Director Program (Green & Brown 

Belt)

 •  MFRS and MPERS Financial Reporting – The Tax 

Impact

 • Qualified Risk Director Program (Black Belt)
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial statements of the Group and of the 

Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and property development.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities during the financial year.

RESULTS

Group

RM’000

Company

RM’000

Profit net of tax 52,119 27,802

Profit attributable to:

Owners of the Company 52,108 27,802

Non-controlling interests 11 –

52,119 27,802

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than as disclosed in the 

financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were 

not substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.

DIVIDENDS

The amounts of dividends paid by the Company since 31 December 2013 were as follows:

RM

In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2013 as reported  

 in the directors’ report of that year:

Final tax exempt dividend of 4%, on 283,327,992 ordinary shares,  

 declared on 24 June 2014 and paid on 25 July 2014 11,333,120

In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2014:

Interim tax exempt dividend of 3%, on 283,327,992 ordinary shares,  

 declared on 17 November 2014 and paid on 22 December 2014 8,499,840

19,832,960

Directors’ Report
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DIVIDENDS (CONT’D)

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a final tax exempt dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 

2014, of 4% on 283,327,992 ordinary shares, amounting to dividend payable of RM11,333,120 (4 sen per ordinary share) 

will be proposed for shareholders’ approval. The financial statements for the current financial year do not reflect this 

proposed dividend. Such dividend, if approved by the shareholders, will be accounted for in equity as an appropriation of 

retained earnings in the financial year ending 31 December 2015.

DIRECTORS

The names of the directors of the Company in office since the date of the last report and at the date of this report are:

Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof Hamdain Diego

Datuk Ismail Bin Awang Besar, J.P.

Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub Bin Hj. Johari, J.P.

Datuk Anthony Lai Vai Ming @ Lai Kheng Ming, J.P.        (Retired on 24 June 2014)

Datuk Mohd. Hasnol Bin Ayub

Datuk Dr. Mohamed Fowzi Hassan Bin Mohamed Razi

Hj. Salimi @ Mohd. Salimi Bin Maralim, J.P.          (Retired on 24 June 2014)

Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar @ Wahab Bin Hj. Abas

Muluk Bin Samad

Datuk Madius Bin Tangau, J.P.

Datuk Hj. Syed Abas Bin Syed Ali

Datuk Kee Mustafa               (Appointed on 1 July 2014)

Chin Kiang Ming               (Appointed on 1 July 2014)

ALTERNATE DIRECTOR

Mohamad Nor Bin Tahir              (Resigned on 27 February 2015)

(Alternate to Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar @ Wahab Bin Hj. Abas)

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS

Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that year, did there subsist any arrangement to which the 

Company was a party, whereby the directors might acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures 

of the Company or any other body corporate.

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other than 

benefits included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by the directors or the fixed 

salary of a full-time employee of the Company as shown in Note 10 to the financial statements) by reason of a contract 

made by the Company or a related corporation with any director or with a firm of which he is a member, or with a company 

in which he has a substantial financial interest.

Directors’ Report (Cont'd)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, the interests of directors in office at the end of the financial year in 

shares in the Company during the financial year were as follows:

Number of ordinary shares of RM1 each

Name of director 1.1.2014 Acquired Sold 31.12.2014

Direct Interest:

Ordinary shares of the Company

 Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar @ Wahab Bin Hj. Abas 57,503 – – 57,503

 Datuk Dr. Mohamed Fowzi Hassan Bin Mohamed Razi 20,000 – – 20,000

 Datuk Mohd. Hasnol Bin Ayub 2,500 – – 2,500

None of the other directors in office at the end of the financial year had any interest in shares in the Company or its related 

corporations during the financial year.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

a)  Before the statements of comprehensive income and statements of financial position of the Group and of the 

Company were made out, the directors took reasonable steps:

 i)  to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of 

provision for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been written off and that 

adequate provision had been made for doubtful debts; and

 ii)  to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their values as shown in the accounting records in 

the ordinary course of business had been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise.

b) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render:

 i)  the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the provision for doubtful debts in the financial statements 

of the Group and of the Company inadequate to any substantial extent; and

 ii)  the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company 

misleading.

c)  At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which would render 

adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or 

inappropriate.

Directors’ Report (Cont'd)
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION (CONT’D)

d)  At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report 

or financial statements of the Group and of the Company which would render any amount stated in the financial 

statements misleading.

e) At the date of this report, there does not exist:

 i)  any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year 

which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

 ii) any contingent liability of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year.

f) In the opinion of the directors:

 i)  no contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within the period 

of twelve months after the end of the financial year which will or may affect the ability of the Group or of the 

Company to meet their obligations when they fall due; and

 ii)  no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between the end of the 

financial year and the date of this report which is likely to affect substantially the results of the operations of the 

Group or of the Company for the financial year in which this report is made.

AUDITORS

The auditors, Ernst & Young, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 16 April 2015. 

Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof Hamdain Diego Datuk Dr. Mohamed Fowzi Hassan Bin Mohamed Razi

Directors’ Report (Cont'd)
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Statement by Directors 
Pursuant to Section 169(15) of the Companies Act 1965

We, Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof Hamdain Diego and Datuk Dr. Mohamed Fowzi Hassan Bin Mohamed Razi, 

being two of the directors of Suria Capital Holdings Berhad, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors, the 

accompanying financial statements set out on pages 61 to 153 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 

Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2014 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then 

ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the 

requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia.

The information set out in Note 43 to the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Guidance on 

Special Matter No.1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profit or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to 

Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 16 April 2015.

Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof Hamdain Diego Datuk Dr. Mohamed Fowzi Hassan Bin Mohamed Razi

Statutory Declaration 
Pursuant to Section 169(16) of the Companies Act 1965

I, Ng Kiat Min, being the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of Suria Capital Holdings Berhad, do 

solemnly and sincerely declare that the accompanying financial statements set out on pages 61 to 153 are in my opinion 

correct, and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of 

the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the

abovenamed Ng Kiat Min

at Kota Kinabalu in the State

of Sabah on 16 April 2015 Ng Kiat Min

Before me,
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the members of Suria Capital Holdings Berhad (Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the financial statements of Suria Capital Holdings Berhad, which comprise statements of financial position 

as at 31 December 2014 of the Group and of the Company, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes 

in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the year then ended, and a summary of 

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 61 to 153. 

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements so as to give a true and fair 

view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the 

requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as the 

directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 

in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 

free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of risks of material misstatement 

of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control 

relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 

the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 

financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company 

as at 31 December 2014 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 

Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the 

Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Cont'd)

to the members of Suria Capital Holdings Berhad (Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following:

(a)  In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company and 

its subsidiaries have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

(b)  We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the financial 

statements of the Company are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the 

consolidated financial statements and we have received satisfactory information and explanations required by us for 

those purposes.

(c)  The auditors’ reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries were not subject to any qualification and did not 

include any comment required to be made under Section 174(3) of the Act.

OTHER REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES

The supplementary information set out in Note 43 on page 153 is disclosed to meet the requirement of Bursa Malaysia 

Securities Berhad and is not part of the financial statements. The directors are responsible for the preparation of the 

supplementary information in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised 

Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as 

issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA Guidance”) and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. 

In our opinion, the supplementary information is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the MIA Guidance 

and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. 

OTHER MATTERS 

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the Companies 

Act 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this 

report.

Ernst & Young

AF: 0039

Chartered Accountants

Yong Voon Kar

1769/04/16(J/PH)

Chartered Accountant

Kota Kinabalu, Malaysia

16 April 2015
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Group Company

Note 2014

RM’000

2013

(Restated)

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Revenue 4 273,138 263,330 38,171 35,033

Cost of sales (165,291) (151,969) – –

Gross profit 107,847 111,361 38,171 35,033

Other items of income

 Interest income 5 2,684 1,687 50 174

 Other income 6 11,975 12,292 3 2

Other items of expense

 Administrative expenses (28,083) (24,303) (10,297) (9,503)

 Finance costs 7 (9,298) (11,065) – –

 Other expenses (12,315) (14,803) (125) (489)

Profit before tax 8 72,810 75,169 27,802 25,217

Income tax expense 11 (20,691) (18,308) – (38)

Profit net of tax 52,119 56,861 27,802 25,179

Other comprehensive (loss)/income:

Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in 

 subsequent periods

Remeasurement (loss)/gain on employee

 defined benefit liability 30 (3,998) 80 (173) 1

Income tax effect 17 956 (21) – –

(3,042) 59 (173) 1

Total comprehensive income for the year 49,077 56,920 27,629 25,180

Statements of Comprehensive Income
for the financial year ended 31 December 2014

SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD | ANNUAL REPORT 2014 61



Statements of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd)

for the financial year ended 31 December 2014

Group Company

Note 2014

RM’000

2013

(Restated)

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Profit net of tax attributable to:

Owners of the Company 52,108 56,690 27,802 25,179

Non-controlling interests 11 171 – –

52,119 56,861 27,802 25,179

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the Company 49,066 56,749 27,629 25,180

Non-controlling interests 11 171 – –

49,077 56,920 27,629 25,180

Earnings per ordinary share attributable to  

 owners of the Company (sen per share):

Basic 12 18.39 20.01

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information form an integral part of the financial statements.

62



Statements of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2014

Group Company

Note 2014

RM’000

2013

(Restated)

RM’000

As at 1

January 2013

(Restated)

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 13 64,008 65,881 68,783 48,089 48,808

Land held for property development 14 120,885 120,776 119,926 120,885 120,776

Concession assets 15 773,811 804,905 807,444 – –

Investments in subsidiaries 16 – – – 227,700 227,700

Deferred tax assets 17 – – 13,036 – –

958,704 991,562 1,009,189 396,674 397,284

Current assets

Inventories 18 5,051 5,149 6,988 – –

Trade and other receivables 19 32,372 29,173 39,251 4,395 4,157

Amount due from Sabah Ports  

 Authority – – 71 – –

Other current assets 20 3,343 2,329 6,306 34 7

Income tax refundable 18,836 18,973 19,004 326 525

Investment securities 21 107,916 130,392 133,312 24,026 48,996

Cash and bank balances 23 122,465 121,961 82,463 10,707 46,036

289,983 307,977 287,395 39,488 99,721

Total assets 1,248,687 1,299,539 1,296,584 436,162 497,005

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Borrowings 24 10,435 10,569 16,101 – –

Loan from Sabah Ports Authority 26 23,064 22,176 21,324 – –

Amount due to Sabah Ports Authority 2,000 – – – –

Amount due to Sabah State  

 Government 27 5,927 5,927 6,085 – –

Concession liabilities 28 9,772 9,589 7,412 – –

Trade and other payables 29 38,170 102,332 30,462 6,611 75,438

Other current liability – – 3,828 – –

Income tax payable 163 161 – – –

89,531 150,754 85,212 6,611 75,438

Net current assets 200,452 157,223 202,183 32,877 24,283
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Statements of Financial Position (Cont'd)

as at 31 December 2014

Group Company

Note 2014

RM’000

2013

(Restated)

RM’000

As at 1

January 2013

(Restated)

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings 24 20,022 30,003 40,040 – –

Loan from Sabah Ports Authority 26 101,856 124,920 147,096 – –

Amount due to Sabah State 

 Government 27 29,633 35,560 41,487 – –

Concession liabilities 28 119,352 120,676 121,743 – –

Employee defined benefit liability 30 14,289 8,415 7,663 456 268

Deferred tax liabilities 17 23,707 4,866 433 – –

Other payable 29 – 3,208 71,124 – –

308,859 327,648 429,586 456 268

Total liabilities 398,390 478,402 514,798 7,067 75,706

Net assets 850,297 821,137 781,786 429,095 421,299

Equity attributable to  

 owners of the Company

Share capital 31 283,328 283,328 283,328 283,328 283,328

Share premium 31 62,785 62,785 62,785 62,785 62,785

Retained earnings 502,230 472,997 433,673 82,982 75,186

Other reserve 32 (61) (61) (61) – –

848,282 819,049 779,725 429,095 421,299

Non-controlling interests 2,015 2,088 2,061 – –

Total equity 850,297 821,137 781,786 429,095 421,299

Total equity and liabilities 1,248,687 1,299,539 1,296,584 436,162 497,005

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information form an integral part of the financial statements.
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|-------------Attributable to owners of the Company-------------

Non-

distributable Distributable

Non-

distributable

Note

Equity,

total

RM’000

Equity

attributable

to owners of

the Company,

total

RM’000

Share

capital

RM’000

Share 

premium

RM’000

Retained 

earnings

RM’000

Other 

reserve

RM’000

Non-

controlling

interests

RM’000

Group

Opening balance at  

 1 January 2014 840,440 838,352 283,328 62,785 492,300 (61) 2,088

Prior year adjustments (19,303) (19,303) – – (19,303) – –

As restated 821,137 819,049 283,328 62,785 472,997 (61) 2,088

Profit net of tax 52,119 52,108 – – 52,108 – 11

Other comprehensive  

 income, net of tax (3,042) (3,042) – – (3,042) – –

Total comprehensive  

 income for the year 49,077 49,066 – – 49,066 – 11

Transactions with  

 owners

Dividends paid by a  

 subsidiary (84) – – – – – (84)

Dividends on ordinary  

 shares 40 (19,833) (19,833) – – (19,833) – –

Total transactions with  

 owners (19,917) (19,833) – – (19,833) – (84)

Closing balance at  

 31 December 2014 850,297 848,282 283,328 62,785 502,230 (61) 2,015

Statements of Changes in Equity
for the financial year ended 31 December 2014

|
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Statements of Changes in Equity (Cont'd)

for the financial year ended 31 December 2014

|-------------Attributable to owners of the Company-------------

Non-

distributable Distributable

Non-

distributable

Note

Equity,

total

RM’000

Equity

attributable

to owners of

the Company,

total

RM’000

Share

capital

RM’000

Share 

premium

RM’000

Retained 

earnings

RM’000

Other 

reserve

RM’000

Non-

controlling 

interests

RM’000

Group

Opening balance at 

 1 January 2013 796,682 794,621 283,328 62,785 448,569 (61) 2,061

Prior year adjustments (14,896) (14,896) – – (14,896) – –

As restated 781,786 779,725 283,328 62,785 433,673 (61) 2,061

Profit net of tax 56,861 56,690 – – 56,690 – 171

Other comprehensive  

 income, net of tax 59 59 – – 59 – –

Total comprehensive  

 income for the year 56,920 56,749 – – 56,749 – 171

Transactions with  

 owners

Dividends paid by a  

 subsidiary (144) – – – – – (144)

Dividends on ordinary  

 shares 40 (17,425) (17,425) – – (17,425) – –

Total transactions with  

 owners (17,569) (17,425) – – (17,425) – (144)

Closing balance at  

 31 December 2013 821,137 819,049 283,328 62,785 472,997 (61) 2,088

|
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Statements of Changes in Equity (Cont’d)

for the financial year ended 31 December 2014

Non–distributable Distributable

Note

Equity,

total

RM’000

Share

capital

RM’000

Share

premium

RM’000

Retained

earnings

RM’000

Company

Opening balance at 1 January 2014 421,299 283,328 62,785 75,186

Profit net of tax 27,802 – – 27,802

Other comprehensive income, net of tax (173) – – (173)

Total comprehensive income for the year 27,629 – – 27,629

Transactions with owners

Dividends on ordinary shares 40 (19,833) – – (19,833)

Total transactions with owners (19,833) – – (19,833)

Closing balance at 31 December 2014 429,095 283,328 62,785 82,982

Opening balance at 1 January 2013 413,544 283,328 62,785 67,431

Profit net of tax 25,179 – – 25,179

Other comprehensive income, net of tax  1 – – 1

Total comprehensive income for the year 25,180 – – 25,180

Transactions with owners

Dividends on ordinary shares 40 (17,425) – – (17,425)

Total transactions with owners (17,425) – – (17,425)

Closing balance at 31 December 2013 421,299 283,328 62,785 75,186

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows
for the financial year ended 31 December 2014

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Operating activities

Profit before tax 72,810 75,169 27,802 25,217

Adjustments for:

Amortisation of:

- concession assets 41,189 38,013 – –

Allowance for impairment loss on 

- trade receivables 96 71 – –

- other receivables 372 – – 1

Concession assets written off 3 37 – –

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,422 2,022 940 946

Dividend income from Subsidiaries – – (32,154) (27,982)

Employee defined benefit expense 2,266 1,527 51 36

Employee leave entitlement 77 76 62 27

Finance costs 9,298 11,065 – –

Gain on disposal of concession assets (128) (25) – –

Gain on disposal of property, plant equipment – (296) – –

Impairment loss on concession assets 589 – – –

Interest income (3,291) (2,641) (657) (1,128)

Inventories written down 116 146 – –

Investment income from investment securities (3,582) (3,195) (624) (1,097)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3 – – –

Net fair value gains on investment securities (202) (913) (256) (470)

Plant and equipment written off 56 2 – –

Provision for dredging costs 223 159 – –

Unrealised exchange gain (116) (449) – –

Unrealised exchange loss 20 – – –

Unwinding of discount on concession liabilities 8,448 8,522 – –

Waiver of amounts due to creditors (92) (31) – –

Total adjustments 57,767 54,090 (32,638) (29,667)

Operating cash flows before changes in working capital 130,577 129,259 (4,836) (4,450)
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Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Changes in working capital:

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (18) 1,693 – –

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (3,666) 10,090 (238) 16,907

(Increase)/decrease in other current assets (1,014) 3,977 (27) 2

(Increase)/decrease in cash at banks pledged and  

 deposits with maturity more than 3 months (4,829) 91 – –

Decrease in amount due to Sabah Ports Authority 2,000 71 – –

(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (67,598) 3,738 (68,889) (9,737)

Decrease in other current liability – (3,828) – –

Payment of concession liabilities (9,589) (7,412) – –

Payment of employee defined benefit liability (390) (695) (36) (33)

Total changes in working capital (85,104) 7,725 (69,190) 7,139

Cash flows from/(used in) operations 45,473 136,984 (74,026) 2,689

Interest received 456 349 – –

Income tax paid (1,437) (1,085) (171) (170)

Income tax refunded 681 417 370 –

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities 45,173 136,665 (73,827) 2,519

Investing activities

Increase in concession assets (10,690) (31,786) – –

Increase in land held for property development (109) (850) (109) (850)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 5 800 – –

Proceeds from disposal of Concession assets 131 25 – –

Proceeds from disposal of investments in subsidiary – – – 2,000

Proceeds from disposal of investment securities 120,850 67,800 58,850 4,800

Purchase of investment securities (97,548) (63,967) (33,000) (10,597)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (581) (3,347) (221) (245)

Investment income received from investment securities 2,958 3,195 – 1,097

Interest received 2,835 2,292 657 1,128

Dividends received – – 32,154 27,982

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities 17,851 (25,838) 58,331 25,315

Statements of Cash Flows (Cont’d)

for the financial year ended 31 December 2014
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Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Financing activities

Dividends paid (19,833) (17,425) (19,833) (17,425)

Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholder (84) (144) – –

Interest paid (9,436) (11,358) – –

Repayment of Islamic Debt Securities (10,000) (10,000) – –

Repayment of loan from Sabah Ports Authority (22,176) (21,324) – –

Repayment of amount due to Sabah State Government (5,927) (5,927) – –

Repayment of borrowings – (5,414) – –

Repayment of obligations under finance leases (9) (24) – –

Net cash flows used in financing activities (67,465) (71,616) (19,833) (17,425)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (4,441) 39,211 (35,329) 10,409

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and  

 cash equivalents 116 378 – –

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 110,604 71,015 46,036 35,627

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December (Note 23) 106,279 110,604 10,707 46,036

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information form an integral part of the financial statements.

Statements of Cash Flows (Cont’d)

for the financial year ended 31 December 2014
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

  Suria Capital Holdings Berhad (“the Company”) is a public limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in 

Malaysia, and is listed on the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The registered office of the Company is located at 1st 

& 2nd Floor, Menara Jubili, No.53, Jalan Gaya, 88000 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia.

  The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and property development. The principal activities 

of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements. There have been no significant changes in the 

nature of the principal activities during the financial year. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 2.1 Basis of preparation

   The financial statements of the Group and the Company have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian 

Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS”), International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the 

Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia.

   The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as disclosed in the accounting 

policies below. The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM) and all values are rounded to the 

nearest thousand (RM’000) except when otherwise indicated.

 2.2 Changes in accounting policies

   The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as discussed 

below.

   In the current financial year, the Group and the Company adopted all the Standards and Interpretations which are 

effective for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

   Effective for annual periods  

  Description beginning or after

  Amendments to MFRS 132: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities  1 January 2014

  Amendments to MFRS 10, MFRS 12 and MFRS 127: Investment Entities  1 January 2014

  Amendments to MFRS 136: Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets  1 January 2014

  Amendments to MFRS 139: Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting 1 January 2014

  IC Interpretation 21 Levies  1 January 2014

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2014
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

 2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

   The adoption of these standards and interpretations did not have any effect on the financial performance or 

position of the Group and the Company.

 2.3 Standards issued but not yet effective 

   The standards and interpretations that are issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Group’s 

and the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Group and the Company intend to adopt 

these standards, if applicable, when they become effective. 

   Effective for annual periods  

  Description beginning or after

  Amendments to MFRS 119: Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions  1 July 2014

  Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle  1 July 2014

  Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle  1 July 2014

  Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle  1 January 2016

   Amendments to MFRS 116 and MFRS 138: Clarification of Acceptable Methods  

 of Depreciation and Amortisation   1 January 2016

  Amendments to MFRS 116 and MFRS 141: Agriculture: Bearer Plants 1 January 2016

   Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128: Sale or Contribution of Assets  

 between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture 1 January 2016

  Amendments to MFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations 1 January 2016

  Amendments to MFRS 127: Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2016

  Amendments to MFRS 101: Disclosure Initiatives  1 January 2016

  Amendments to MFRS 10, MFRS 12 and MFRS 128: 

   Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception 1 January 2016

  MFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016

  MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2017

  MFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018

   Amendments to MFRS 116 and MFRS 138: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and 

Amortisation

   The amendments clarify that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are generated from operating 

a business (of which the asset is part) rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through the use of 

an asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and 

may only be used in very limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The amendments are effective 

prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted. These 

amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Group as the Group has not used a revenue-based 

method to depreciate its non-current assets. 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont’d)

for the financial year ended 31 December 2014

72



2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

 2.3 Standards issued but not yet effective (Cont’d)

  Amendments to MFRS 127: Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 

   The amendments will allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint 

ventures and associate in their separate financial statements. Entities already applying MFRS and electing to 

change to the equity method in its separate financial statements will have to apply this change retrospectively. 

For first-time adopters of MFRS electing to use the equity method in its separate financial statements, they will 

be required to apply this method from the date of transition to MFRS. The amendments are effective for annual 

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments will not have 

any impact on the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements. 

  Amendments to MFRS 101: Disclosure Initiatives

   The amendments to MFRS 101 include narrow-focus improvements in the following five areas:

  • Materiality

  • Disaggregation and subtotals

  • Notes structure

  • Disclosure of accounting policies

  • Presentation of items of other comprehensive income arising from equity accounted investments

   The Directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of these amendments will have a material 

impact on the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements. 

  MFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

   MFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to rate-regulations, to 

continue applying most of its existing accounting policies for regulatory deferral account balances upon its first-

time adoption of MFRS. Entities that adopt MFRS 14 must present the regulatory deferral accounts as separate 

line items on the statement of financial position and present movements in the account balances as separate line 

items in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The standard requires disclosures on 

the nature of, and risks associated with, the entity’s rate-regulation and the effects of that rate-regulation on its 

financial statements. Since the Group is an existing MFRS preparer, this standard would not apply. 

  MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

   MFRS 15 establishes a new five-step models that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with customers. 

MFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including MFRS 118 Revenue, MFRS 111 

Construction Contracts and the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

   The core principle of MFRS 15 is an entity should recognise revenue which depict the transfer of promised 

goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity to be entitled in 

exchange for those goods or services.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

 2.3 Standards issued but not yet effective (Cont’d)

  MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Cont’d)

   Under MFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when 

“control” of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

   Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 

2017 with early adoption permitted. The Directors anticipate that the application of MFRS 15 will have a material 

impact on the amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements. 

The Group is currently assessing the impact of MFRS 15 and plans to adopt the new standard on the required 

effective date.

  MFRS 9 Financial Instruments

   In November 2014, MASB issued the final version of MFRS 9 Financial Instruments which reflects all phases of 

the financial instruments project and replaces MFRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 

and all previous versions of MFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification and 

measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. MFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or 

after 1 January 2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but comparative 

information is not compulsory. The adoption of MFRS 9 might have an effect on the classification and 

measurement of the Group’s financial assets, but no impact on the classification and measurement of the 

Group’s financial liabilities. 

  Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2010–2012 Cycle

   The Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle include a number of amendments to various MFRSs. 

The Directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of these amendments will have a significant 

impact on the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements.

  MFRS 8 Operating segments

  The amendments are to be applied retrospectively and clarify that:

  -  an entity must disclose the judgements made by management in applying the aggregation criteria in 

MFRS 8, including a brief description of operating segments that have been aggregated and the economic 

characteristics used to assess whether the segments are similar; and 

  -  the reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is only required to be disclosed if the reconciliation is 

reported to the chief operating decision maker.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

 2.3 Standards issued but not yet effective (Cont’d)

  Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2010–2012 Cycle (Cont’d)

  MFRS 124 Related Party Disclosures

   The amendments clarify that a management entity providing key management personnel services to a reporting 

entity is a related party of the reporting entity. The reporting entity should disclose as related party transactions 

the amounts incurred for the service paid or payable to the management entity for the provision of key 

management personnel services.

  Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

   The Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle include a number of amendments to various MFRSs. 

The Directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of these amendments will have a significant 

impact on the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements.

  MFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

   The amendments to MFRS 13 clarify that the portfolio exception in MFRS 13 can be applied not only to 

financial assets and financial liabilities, but also to other contracts within the scope of MFRS 9 (or MFRS 139 as 

applicable).

  Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

   The Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle include a number of amendments to various MFRSs. 

The Directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of these amendments will have a significant 

impact on the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements.

  MFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

   The amendment clarifies that a servicing contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a 

financial asset. An entity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance for continuing 

involvement in MFRS 7 in order to assess whether the disclosures are required. 

   In addition, the amendment also clarifies that the disclosures in respect of offsetting of financial assets and 

financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim financial report. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.3 Standards issued but not yet effective (Cont’d)

Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle (Cont’d)

  MFRS 119 Employee Benefits

The amendment to MFRS 119 clarifies that market depth of high quality corporate bonds is assessed based 

on the currency in which the obligation is denominated, rather than the country where the obligation is located. 

When there is no deep market for high quality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates must be 

used.

  MFRS 134 Interim Financial Reporting

MFRS 134 requires entitles to disclose information in the notes to the interim financial statements if not 

disclosed elsewhere in the interim financial report.

The amendment states that the required interim disclosures must either be in the interim financial statements or 

incorporated by cross-reference between the interim financial statements and wherever they are included within 

the greater interim financial report (e.g., in the management commentary or risk report). The other information 

within the interim financial report must be available to users on the same terms as the interim financial 

statements and at the same time.

2.4 Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries 

as at the reporting date. The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the preparation of the consolidated 

financial statements are prepared for the same reporting date as the Company. Consistent accounting policies 

are applied for like transactions and events in similar circumstances. 

The Company controls an investee if and only if the Company has all the following:

(i)  power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of 

the investee);

(ii)  exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its investment with the investee; and 

(iii)  the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, the Company considers the 

following in assessing whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power 

over the investee:

(i)  the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the 

other vote holders; 

(ii)  potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;

(iii) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and 

(iv)  any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current 

ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns 

at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Subsidiaries are consolidated when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the 

Company loses control of the subsidiary. All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains 

and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interests even if that results in a deficit balance. 

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over 

the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and 

the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. The 

resulting difference is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company. 

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss calculated as the difference between (i) the 

aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) 

the previous carrying amount of the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest, 

is recognised in profit or loss. The subsidiary’s cumulative gain or loss which has been recognised in other 

comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss or where applicable, 

transferred directly to retained earnings. The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the 

date control is lost is regarded as the cost on initial recognition of the investment. 

Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is 

measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and the 

amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. The Group elects on a transaction-by-transaction basis 

whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share 

of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Transaction costs incurred are expensed and included in administrative 

expenses. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont’d)

for the financial year ended 31 December 2014

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition 

date. Subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset 

or liability, will be recognised in accordance with MFRS 139 either in profit or loss or as a change to other 

comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it will not be remeasured. 

Subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. In instances where the contingent consideration does not 

fall within the scope of MFRS 139, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate MFRS.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate 

classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent 

conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by 

the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held 

equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through profit or loss. 

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and 

the amount recognised for non-controlling interests over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities 

assumed. If this consideration is lower than fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference 

is recognised in profit or loss. The accounting policy for goodwill is set out in Note 2.9(a).

2.5 Transactions with non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interest represents the equity in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to owners of 

the Company, and are presented separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and within 

equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, separately from equity attributable to owners of the 

Company.

Changes in the Company owners’ ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are 

accounted for as equity transactions. In such circumstances, the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-

controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference 

between the amount by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid 

or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.6 Foreign currencies

a) Functional and presentation currency

The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the currency of the 

primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The financial 

statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is also the Company’s functional currency.

b) Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional currencies of the Company 

and its subsidiary and are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency at exchange rates 

approximating those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 

foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Non-monetary items 

denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange 

rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies 

measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was 

determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at the 

reporting date are recognised in profit or loss, except for exchange differences arising on monetary items 

that form part of the Group’s net investment in foreign operations, which are recognised initially in other 

comprehensive income and accumulated under foreign currency translation reserve in equity. The foreign 

currency translation reserve is reclassified from equity to profit or loss of the Group on disposal of the 

foreign operation.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in 

profit or loss for the period except for the differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items in 

respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity. Exchange differences arising from such 

non-monetary items are also recognised directly in equity.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent to recognition, property, 

plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

The cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs that are 

directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying property, plant and equipment. 

The accounting policy for borrowing costs is set out in Note 2.21. The cost of an item of property, plant and 

equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 

the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the Group 

recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation, respectively. Likewise, 

when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment 

as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in 

profit or loss as incurred. 

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: 

• Long term leasehold land: remaining lease periods

• Buildings: 5 to 50 years

• Ferry terminal: 5 to 21 years

• Motor vehicles, furniture, equipment and renovation: 2.5 to 10 years

Assets under construction included in plant and equipment are not depreciated as these assets are not yet 

available for use. 

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in 

circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. 

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end, and adjusted 

prospectively, if appropriate. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 

are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the asset is included in the profit or 

loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

2.8 Service concession arrangements

The Company, Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd. (a subsidiary of the Company), the State Government of Sabah and 

Sabah Ports Authority have entered into the Privatisation Agreement on 23 September 2003 (“Privatisation 

Agreement”) to privatise the business of port undertakings of Sabah Ports Authority at the seven ports of Sabah 

for a period 30 years and can be extended for a further period of 30 years. 

The terms of the Privatisation Agreement allow the subsidiary to charge and collect from the port users in relation 

to any services or facilities provided by the subsidiary in accordance with the tariffs prescribed pursuant to the 

Sabah Ports Authority Enactment 1981 and the Sabah Ports (Privatisation) Enactment 1998, as amended from 

time to time and including all and any rules made there under (“Port Enactments”). The subsidiary shall apply 

to Sabah Ports Authority to amend, vary or introduce port dues and charges from time to time in accordance 

with Port Enactments based on the financial need of the seven ports as well as the financial performance of the 

subsidiary. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.8 Service concession arrangements (Cont’d)

The Group recognises the consideration receivable as an intangible asset to the extent that it receives a right 

to charge users for the public service. Intangible assets are accounted for in accordance with the accounting 

policy set out in Note 2.9. Concession assets received as consideration for providing construction or upgrade 

services in a service concession arrangement is measured at fair value on initial recognition. Subsequent to 

initial recognition, the concession assets are measured at cost, less accumulated amortisation and accumulated 

impairment losses.

The Group also recognises concession assets (and the corresponding concession liabilities) arising from the 

annual concession fee payables and the lease rental payable for the existing port infrastructures, facilities and 

land under the Privatisation Agreement at the present value of the obligations at the inception date of the service 

concession arrangement. 

Concession assets are amortised over the concession period using the straight line method less impairment 

loss, if any. 

When the Company has contractual obligations that it must fulfill as a condition of its license to: a) maintain the 

infrastructure to a specified standard or, b) to restore the infrastructure when the infrastructure has deteriorated 

below a specified condition, it recognises and measures these contractual obligations in accordance with the 

accounting policy for provisions in Note 2.18. Repairs and maintenance and other expenses that are routine in 

nature are expensed and recognised in the profit or loss as incurred.

2.9 Intangible assets

a) Goodwill

Goodwill is initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less 

accumulated impairment losses. 

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition 

date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the 

synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned 

to those units.

The cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually and 

whenever there is an indication that the cash-generating unit may be impaired. Impairment is determined 

for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit (or group of cash-

generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 

is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised in the profit or loss. Impairment losses 

recognised for goodwill are not reversed in subsequent periods. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

2.9 Intangible assets (Cont’d)

a) Goodwill (Cont’d)

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that cash-generating 

unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying 

amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed 

of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative fair values of the operations disposed of and the 

portion of the cash-generating unit retained. 

b) Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured initially at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired 

in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial acquisition, 

intangible assets are measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment 

losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over the estimated useful lives and assessed for 

impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation 

period and the amortisation method are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes in the 

expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the 

asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as 

changes in accounting estimates. 

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives or not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually, 

or more frequently if the events and circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired either 

individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life 

of an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is reviewed annually to determine whether the useful life 

assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on 

a prospective basis. 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between 

the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss when 

the asset is derecognised. 

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If 

any such indication exists, or when an annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an 

estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont’d)

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs of 

disposal and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash 

flows that are largely independent of those from other asses or group of assets. For the purpose of assessing 

impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-

generating units (“CGU”)). 

Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 

impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 

flows expected to be generated by the asset are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount 

rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In 

determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If 

no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. Impairment losses recognised 

in respect of a CGU or groups of CGUs are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit or 

groups of units on a pro-rata basis.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared 

separately for each of the Group’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These 

budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term 

growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. 

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised 

impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exist, the Group estimates 

the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has 

been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment 

loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. 

That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had 

no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss. Impairment loss on 

goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

2.11 Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has all the following:

(i)  power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of 

the investee);

(ii)  exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its investment with the investee; and 

(iii)  the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns. 

In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less 

impairment losses. On disposal of such investments, the difference between net disposal proceeds and their 

carrying amounts is included in profit or loss. 

2.12 Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions 

of the financial instrument. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial assets 

not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. 

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading or are 

designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are 

acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. This category includes derivative 

financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge 

relationships as defined by MFRS 139. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives are also 

classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 

The Group has not designated any financial assets upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair 

value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial assets are recognised in 

profit or loss. Net gains or net losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss do not include 

exchange differences, interest and dividend income. Exchange differences, interest and dividend income 

on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised separately in profit or loss as part of 

other losses or other income. 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont’d)

for the financial year ended 31 December 2014

84



2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

2.12 Financial assets (Cont’d)

Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows: (Cont'd)

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Cont’d)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss could be presented as current or non-current. Financial 

assets that are held primarily for trading purposes are presented as current whereas financial assets that 

are not held primarily for trading purposes are presented as current or non-current based on the settlement 

date. 

b) Loans and receivables

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market 

are classified as loans and receivables.

Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective 

interest method, less impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and 

receivables are derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process. 

Loans and receivables are classified as current assets, except for those having maturity dates later than 12 

months after the reporting date which are classified as non-current.

c) Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as 

held-to-maturity when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold the investment to maturity. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using the 

effective interest method, less impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the held-

to-maturity investments are derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process. 

Held-to-maturity investments are classified as non-current assets, except for those having maturity within 

12 months after the reporting date which are classified as current.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

2.12 Financial assets (Cont’d)

Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows: (Cont'd)

d) Available-for-sale financial assets 

Available-for-sale financial assets include equity and debt securities. Equity investments classified as 

available-for-sale are those, which are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value 

through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those which are intended to be held for an 

indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes 

in the market conditions. 

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Any gains or 

losses from changes in fair value of the financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income, 

except that impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments and interest 

calculated using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss. The cumulative gain or loss 

previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a 

reclassification adjustment when the financial asset is derecognised. Interest income calculated using the 

effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on an available-for-sale equity instrument 

are recognised in profit or loss when the Group and the Company’s right to receive payment is established.

Investments in equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less 

impairment loss. 

Available-for-sale financial assets are classified as non-current assets unless they are expected to be 

realised within 12 months after the reporting date.

De-recognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired. 

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of 

the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive 

income is recognised in profit or loss. 

Regular way purchase or sale of a financial assets

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised or derecognised on the trade date i.e., the 

date that the Group and the Company commit to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are 

purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by 

regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

2.13 Impairment of financial assets 

The Group and the Company assess at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a 

financial asset is impaired.

a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses whether objective evidence of 

impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial 

assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment 

exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group 

of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. 

Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to 

be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortised cost has 

been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount 

and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective 

interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the 

current effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance 

account. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

When the asset becomes uncollectible, the carrying amount of impaired financial asset is reduced directly 

or if an amount was charged to the allowance account, the amounts charged to the allowance account are 

written off against the carrying value of the financial asset.

To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets has been 

incurred, the Group considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial 

difficulties of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments. 

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be 

related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised 

impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its 

amortised cost at the reversal date. The amount of reversal is recognised in profit or loss. 

b) Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence (such as significant adverse changes in the business environment where the 

issuer operates, probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the issuer) that an impairment 

loss on financial assets carried at cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the 

difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows 

discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not 

reversed in subsequent periods.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

c) Available-for-sale financial assets 

Significant or prolonged decline in fair value below cost, significant financial difficulties of the issuer or 

obligor, and the disappearance of an active trading market are considerations to determine whether there is 

objective evidence that investment securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets are impaired. 

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its 

cost (net of any principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss 

previously recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from equity to profit or loss. 

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments are not reversed in profit or loss in the 

subsequent periods. Increase in fair value, if any, subsequent to impairment loss is recognised in other 

comprehensive income. For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently 

reversed in profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an 

event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss in profit or loss.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits, and short-term, highly liquid 

investments that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of 

changes in value. These also include bank overdrafts that form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

2.15 Construction contracts

The Group principally operates fixed price contracts. Contract revenue and contract costs are recognised 

as revenue and expenses respectively by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the 

reporting date (the percentage of completion method), when the outcome of a construction contract can be 

estimated reliably. 

The outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably when: (i) total contract revenue can be 

measured reliably; (ii) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the contract will flow to the 

entity; (iii) the costs to complete the contract and the stage of completion can be measured reliably; and (iv) the 

contract costs attributable to the contract can be clearly identified and measured reliably so that actual contract 

costs incurred can be compared with prior estimates.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably (principally during early stages of 

a contract), contract revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be 

recoverable and contract costs are recognised as expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

An expected loss on the construction contract is recognised as an expense immediately when it is probable that 

total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

2.15 Construction contracts (Cont’d)

In applying the percentage of completion method, revenue recognised corresponds to the total contract revenue 

(as defined below) multiplied by the actual completion rate based on the proportion of total contract costs (as 

defined below) incurred to date to the estimated costs to complete.

Contract revenue – Contract revenue corresponds to the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract and any 

variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments to the extent that it is probable that they will result in 

revenue; and they can be reliably measured. 

Contract costs – Contract costs include costs that relate directly to the specific contract and costs that are 

attributable to contract activity in general and can be allocated to the contract. 

2.16 Land held for property development and property development costs

(i) Land held for property development

Land held for property development consists of land where no development activities have been carried 

out or where development activities are not expected to be completed within the normal operating cycle. 

Such land is classified within non-current assets and is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment 

losses.

Land held for property development is reclassified as property development costs at the point when 

development activities have commenced and where it can be demonstrated that the development activities 

can be completed within the normal operating cycle. 

(ii) Property development costs

Property development costs comprise all costs that are directly attributable to development activities or 

that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to such activities.

When the financial outcome of a development activity can be reliably estimated, property development 

revenue and expenses are recognised in profit or loss by using the stage of completion method. The 

stage of completion is determined by the proportion that property development costs incurred for work 

performed to date bear to the estimated total property development costs. 

Where the financial outcome of a development activity cannot be reliably estimated, property development 

revenue is recognised only to the extent of property development costs incurred that is probable will be 

recoverable, and property development costs on properties sold are recognised as an expense in the 

period in which they are incurred. 

Any expected loss on a development project, including costs to be incurred over the defects liability 

period, is recognised as an expense immediately. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

2.16 Land held for property development and property development costs (Cont’d)

(ii) Property development costs (Cont’d)

Property development costs not recognised as an expense are recognised as an asset, which is measured 

at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

The excess of revenue recognised in the profit or loss over billings to purchasers is classified as accrued 

billings within trade receivables and the excess of billings to purchasers over revenue recognised in profit 

or loss is classified as progress billings within trade payables. 

2.17 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 

their present location and condition comprise purchase costs and are accounted for on a first-in first-out basis.

Where necessary, allowance is provided for damaged, obsolete and slow moving items to adjust the carrying 

value of inventories to the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of 

completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 

event, it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation and the 

amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably. 

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer 

probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate that 

reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the 

provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

2.19 Financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the financial instrument. The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial 

recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus in the case of financial liabilities not at fair value 

through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. 

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial 

liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the 

near term. This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not 

designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships. Separated embedded derivatives are also 

classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair 

value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial liabilities are recognised in 

profit or loss.

The Group has not designated any financial liabilities upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or 

loss.

b) Financial liabilities at amortised costs

After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through profit or loss are 

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are 

recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised, and through the amortisation process.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer 

settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

2.19 Financial liabilities (Cont’d)

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. 

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, 

or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a 

derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective 

carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

2.20 Financial guarantee

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the 

holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the 

terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are 

directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial guarantees are 

recognised as income in profit or loss over the period of the guarantee. If it is probable that the liability will be 

higher than the amount initially recognised less amortisation, the liability is recorded at the higher amount with 

the difference charged to profit or loss.

2.21 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying asset if they are directly attributable to the 

acquisition, construction or production of that asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when the 

activities to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress and the expenditures and borrowing 

costs are incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalised until the assets are substantially completed for their intended 

use or sale. 

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist 

of interest and other costs that the Group incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

2.22 Employee benefits 

a) Defined contribution plans

The Malaysian companies in the Group make contributions to the Employee Provident Fund (“EPF”) in 

Malaysia, a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes 

are recognised as an expense in the period in which the related service is performed.

b) Employee defined benefit liability

The Group and the Company operate unfunded defined benefit plan for its eligible employees that provides 

retirement benefit to employees upon retirement. On the date of retirement, eligible employees are entitled 

to 0.5 to 1.0 month last drawn basic salary for each completed year of service.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit 

method.

Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

• service cost;

• interest on the defined benefit liability; and

• remeasurements of defined benefit liability.

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on curtailment 

and non-routine settlements are recognised as expense in profit or loss. Past service costs are recognised 

when plan amendment or curtailment occurs.

Interest on the defined benefit liability is calculated by applying the discount rate based on high quality 

corporate bonds to the defined benefit liability. Interest on the defined benefit liability is recognised as 

expense in profit or loss.

Remeasurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, are recognised immediately in the statement of 

financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive 

income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in 

subsequent periods.

c) Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised as a liability when they accrue to the employees. 

The undiscounted liability for leave expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the reporting 

date is recognised for services rendered by employees up to the reporting date. The liability for leave 

expected to be settled beyond twelve months from the end of the reporting date is determined using the 

projected unit credit method. The net total of service costs, net interest on the liability and remeasurement 

of the liability are recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

2.23 Leases 

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the 

arrangement at inception date: whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset 

or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an 

arrangement.

a) As lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership 

of the leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or, if 

lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Any initial direct costs are also added to the 

amount capitalised. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the 

lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance 

charges are charged to profit or loss. Contingent rents, if any, are charged as expenses in the periods in 

which they are incurred. 

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the 

lease term, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease 

term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the 

lease term. The aggregate benefit of incentives provided by the lessor is recognised as a reduction of rental 

expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis. 

b) As lessor

Leases where the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are 

classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to 

the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same bases as rental 

income. The accounting policy for rental income is set out in Note 2.24(h). Contingent rents are recognised 

as revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

2.24 Revenue

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the 

revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is made. Revenue is measured at the fair 

value of consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and 

excluding taxes or duty. The Group assesses its revenue arrangements to determine if it is acting as principal or 

agent. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

a) Sales of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised net of sales taxes upon transfer of significant risks and rewards 

of ownership of the goods to the customer, usually on delivery of goods. Revenue is not recognised to the 

extent where there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due, associated 

costs or the possible return of goods.

b) Revenue from contracts

Revenue from contracts is accounted for by the stage of completion method as described in Note 2.15.

c) Revenue from port operations

Revenue from port operations are recognised on an accrual basis.

d) Revenue from services

Revenue from services rendered is recognised net of discounts as and when the services are rendered.

e) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

f) Management fees

Management fees are recognised when services are rendered.

g) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

h) Rental income

Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. The aggregate cost of 

incentives provided to lessees is recognised as a reduction of rental income over the lease on a straight-

line basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

2.25 Taxes

a) Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount 

expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to 

compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Current income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items 

recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management 

periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax 

regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date between 

the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, except:

•  where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in 

a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the 

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

•  in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the 

timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the 

temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax 

credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 

which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax 

losses can be utilised except: 

•  where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial 

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time 

of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and 

•  in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred 

tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will 

reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary 

differences can be utilised. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

2.25 Taxes (Cont’d)

b) Deferred tax (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent 

that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred 

tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are 

recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax 

assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when 

the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 

substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred 

tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income 

or directly in equity and deferred tax arising from a business combination is adjusted against goodwill on 

acquisition. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off 

current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and 

the same taxation authority.

c) Sales tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax except: 

•  Where the sales tax incurred in a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation 

authority, in which case the sales tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as 

part of the expense item as applicable; and

•  Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of 

receivables or payables in the statements of financial position.

2.26 Share capital and share issuance expenses

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after 

deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are equity instruments.

Ordinary shares are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable incremental transaction costs. 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in 

which they are declared.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

2.27 Contingencies

A contingent liability is:

a)  a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 

Group; or

b)  a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

(i)  it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 

the obligation; or 

(ii)  the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only 

by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 

Group. 

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised in the statements of financial position of the Group. 

2.28 Segment reporting

For management purposes, the Group is organised into operating segments based on their products 

and services which are independently managed by the respective segment managers responsible for the 

performance of the respective segments under their charge. The segment managers report directly to the 

management of the Company who regularly review the segment results in order to allocate resources to the 

segments and to assess the segment performance. Additional disclosures on each of these segments are 

shown in Note 39, including the factors used to identify the reportable segments and the measurement basis of 

segment information.  

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure 

of contingent liabilities at the reporting date. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in 

outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future 

periods.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT’D)

3.1 Judgement made in applying accounting policies

There are no critical judgements made by management in the process of applying the Group’s accounting 

policies on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting are 

discussed below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial 

statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may 

change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are 

reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

a) Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial 

asset is impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment, the Group considers 

factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default or 

significant delay in payments.

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash flows are estimated 

based on historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics. The carrying amount 

of the Group’s loans and receivable at the reporting date is disclosed in Note 19. If the present value of 

estimated future cash flows varies by 10% from management’s estimates, the Group’s allowance for 

impairment will increase by RM215,000 (2013: RM179,000).

b) Employee defined benefit liability

The cost of defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. The valuation 

involves making various assumptions. These include the determination of discount rate and future salary 

increases (taking into account ceiling of each salary scales). Due to the complexity of the valuation, the 

underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, employee defined benefit liability is highly sensitive to 

changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. Details on employee 

defined benefit liability and its sensitivity analysis are as disclosed in Note 30.

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of high quality 

corporate bonds with at least AA rating, with extrapolated maturities corresponding to the expected 

duration of the employee defined benefit obligation.

Future salary increases are based on expected future inflation rates.
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4. REVENUE

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Income from port operations:

– At wharves 217,143 206,121 – –

– Anchorage 14,454 14,381 – –

– Ferry terminal 3,040 3,225 – –

Contract income 269 3,412 – –

Dividend income from subsidiaries – – 32,154 27,982

Equipment maintenance fee – 35 – –

Interest income from deposits 607 954 607 954

Investment income from investment securities 624 1,097 624 1,097

Management fees – – 4,440 4,440

Miscellaneous income 2,226 1,642 – –

Net fair value gains on financial instruments:

– Investment securities 256 470 256 470

Rental income 950 795 90 90

Sale of equipment 59 3,338 – –

Sale of fuel and lubricants 30,395 21,338 – –

Transportation and handling fee 3,115 6,522 – –

273,138 263,330 38,171 35,033

5. INTEREST INCOME

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Interest income from:

 Deposits with financial institutions 2,317 1,338 – –

 Other loans and receivables 367 349 50 174

2,684 1,687 50 174
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6. OTHER INCOME

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Bad debts recovered 5 – – –

Gain on disposal of concession assets 128 25 – –

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment – 296

Hiring income 70 43 – –

Investment income from investment securities 2,958 2,098 – –

Land leasing income 2,815 3,281 – –

Net fair value gains on financial instruments:

– investment securities – 443 – –

Net foreign exchange gain

– realised 17 46 – –

– unrealised 116 449 – –

Rental income 2,678 1,997 – –

Reversal of allowance for impairment loss on:

– trade receivables 28 163 – –

Sundry income 3,068 3,420 3 2

Waiver of amounts due to creditors 92 31 – –

11,975 12,292 3 2

7. FINANCE COSTS

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Interest expense on:

 Obligations under finance leases 5 1 – –

 Revolving credit financing – 11 – –

 Term loan and trade loan – 48 – –

 Loan from Sabah Ports Authority 5,884 6,737 – –

 Amount due to Sabah State Government 1,422 1,659 – –

 Islamic Debt Securities 1,987 2,609 – –

Total finance costs 9,298 11,065 – –
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8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The following items have been included in arriving at profit before tax:

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Employee benefits expense (Note 9) 60,455 54,501 4,888 4,486

Non-executive directors’ remuneration (Note 10) 1,217 909 913 587

Allowance for impairment loss on:

– trade receivables (Note 19) 96 71 – –

– other receivables (Note 19) 372 – – 1

Amortisation of: 

– concession assets (Note 15) 41,189 38,013 – –

Auditors’ remuneration:

 Statutory audit:

 – current year 180 173 62 62

 – under/(over) provision in respect of previous year 8 3 (1) 2

 Other services:

 – current year 408 69 361 33

 – under provision in respect of previous year – 4 – 4

Concession assets written off 3 37 – –

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 13) 2,422 2,022 940 946

Net fair value gains on financial instruments:

– investment securities 54 – – –

Hiring of equipment and motor vehicles 747 1,324 418 401

Impairment on concession assets 589 – – –

Inventories written down 116 146 – –

Leasing of port land 10,040 9,391 – –

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3 – – –

Plant and equipment written off 56 2 – –

Realised gain on foreign exchange, net (17) (5) – –

Rental of office premises 1,143 1,045 574 495

Reversal of allowance for impairment loss on trade and  

 other receivables (10) (54) – (54)

Unrealised exchange loss 20 – – –

Unwinding of discount on concession liabilities 8,448 8,522 – –
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9. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Salaries, wages and allowances 43,348 41,142 3,247 3,002

Contributions to defined contribution plan 6,688 6,252 553 530

Bonuses

– current year 6,919 6,681 838 728

– over provision in respect of previous year (1,523) (3,142) (60) (40)

Employee defined benefit expense 2,266 1,527 51 36

Social security contributions 544 523 28 27

Interest subsidies 211 241 6 7

Medical expenses 1,925 1,811 163 169

Employee leave entitlement 77 76 62 27

60,455 55,111 4,888 4,486

Less:  Employee benefits expense capitalised in  

 contract work-in-progress – (610) – –

60,455 54,501 4,888 4,486

Included in employee benefits expense of the Group and of the Company are executive directors’ remuneration 

amounting to RM875,000 (2013: RM1,051,000) and RM611,000 (2013: RM606,000) respectively as further disclosed in 

Note 10.

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Executive directors’ remuneration (Note 9):

 Fees – – – –

 Other emoluments 875 1,051 611 606

875 1,051 611 606

Non-executive directors’ remuneration (Note 8):

 Fees 735 446 600 296

 Other emoluments 482 463 313 291

1,217 909 913 587
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT’D)

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Total directors’ remuneration (Note 33(b)) 2,092 1,960 1,524 1,193

Estimated money value of benefits-in-kind 39 79 18 23

Total directors’ remuneration including benefits-in-kind 2,131 2,039 1,542 1,216

The details of remuneration receivable by directors of the Company during the year are as follows:

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Executive:

 Salaries and allowances 366 366 366 366

 Bonus 162 135 162 135

 Defined contribution plan 83 105 83 105

 Estimated money value of benefits-in-kind 18 23 18 23

629 629 629 629

Non-Executive:

 Fees 669 356 600 296

 Other emoluments 326 303 313 291

995 659 913 587

1,624 1,288 1,542 1,216
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT’D)

The number of directors of the Company whose total remuneration during the financial year fell within the following 

bands is analysed below:

Number of Directors

2014 2013

Executive directors:

RM600,001 – RM650,000 1 1

Non-executive directors:

Below RM50,000 3 7

RM50,001   – RM100,000 7 3

RM100,001 – RM150,000 1 –

RM200,001 – RM250,000 1 1

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Major components of income tax expense

The major components of income tax expense for the financial years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 are:

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

(Restated)

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Statement of comprehensive income

Current income tax:

– Malaysian income tax 1,167 847 – –

– (Over)/under provision in respect of previous year (273) 13 – 38

894 860 – 38

Deferred income tax (Note17):

– Origination and reversal of temporary differences 19,560 19,017 – –

– Relating to change in tax rate 6 (1,561) – –

– Under/(over) provision in respect of previous year 231 (8) – –

19,797 17,448 – –

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 20,691 18,308 – 38
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT'D)

Major components of income tax expense (Cont'd)

A subsidiary of the Company, Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd. had obtained approval from the Minister of Finance for this 

subsidiary’s port operations to be regarded as an approved service project under Schedule 7B of the Income Tax Act, 

1967, whereby this subsidiary is entitled to claim investment allowance tax incentive at the rate of 100% on capital 

expenditure incurred for the period of five years from 1 September 2004 to 31 August 2009.

As at 31 December 2014, the total investment allowance claimed by this subsidiary arising from this approval was 

approximately RM689,195,000 and utilised as follows:

RM’000

Total investment allowance claimed for years of assessment 2004 to 2009 689,195

Less: Utilised for:

– previous years (495,302)

– current year (80,206)

(575,508)

Unabsorbed investment allowance carried forward for future years 113,687

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit

The reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the corporate tax rate for 

the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

(Restated)

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Profit before tax 72,810 75,169 27,802 25,217

Tax at Malaysian statutory tax rate of 25% (2013: 25%) 18,203 18,792 6,951 6,304

Adjustments:

  Income not subject to taxation (1,015) (967) (8,260) (7,260)

  Non-deductible expenses 2,390 1,720 284 346

  Effect of change in tax rate on deferred tax 6 (1,561) – –

  Deferred tax assets not recognised 1,286 632 1,025 610

  Benefits from previously unrecognised tax losses  

   and unabsorbed allowances (137) (313) – –

  (Over)/under provision of income tax in respect of  

   previous years (273) 13 – 38

  Under/(over) provision of deferred income tax in  

   respect of previous year 231 (8) – –

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 20,691 18,308 – 38
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT’D)

Domestic income tax is calculated at the Malaysian statutory tax rate of 25% (2013: 25%) of the estimated assessable 

profit for the year. The domestic statutory tax rate will be reduced to 24% from the current year’s rate of 25% effective 

year of assessment 2016. The computation of deferred tax as at 31 December 2014 has reflected the change. 

Tax savings during the financial year arising from:

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Utilisation of current year tax losses 187 304 – 304

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses 137 313 – –

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing profit net of tax, attributable to owners of the Company by the 

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year. 

The Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares. 

The following tables reflect the profit and share data used in the computation of basic earnings per share for the years 

ended 31 December:

Group

2014

RM’000

2013

(Restated)

RM’000

Profit net of tax attributable to owners of the Company used in the computation of  

 basic earnings per share 52,108 56,690

Number of 

shares

‘000

Number of 

shares

‘000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share computation 283,328 283,328

Basic earnings per ordinary share (sen) 18.39 20.01
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

Long term
leasehold

land
RM’000

Buildings
RM’000

Ferry
 terminal

RM’000

Motor
vehicles,

vessel,
furniture,

equipment
and renovation

RM’000
Total

RM’000

Cost:

At 1 January 2013 54,231 272 13,153 14,906 82,562

Additions 306 – 2,400 645 3,351

Disposals – – – (1,008) (1,008)

Write off – – – (16) (16)

Transfer to concession assets – (272) – (4,145) (4,417)

At 31 December 2013  
 and 1 January 2014 54,537 – 15,553 10,382 80,472

Additions – – 17 596 613

Disposals – – – (13) (13)

Write off – – – (385) (385)

At 31 December 2014 54,537 – 15,570 10,580 80,687

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 January 2013 1,842 82 3,594 8,261 13,779

Depreciation charge for the year 530 – 482 1,010 2,022

Disposals – – – (504) (504)

Write off – – – (14) (14)

Transfer to concession assets – (82) – (610) (692)

At 31 December 2013  
 and 1 January 2014 2,372 – 4,076 8,143 14,591

Depreciation charge for the year 574 – 912 936 2,422

Disposals – – – (5) (5)

Write off – – – (329) (329)

At 31 December 2014 2,946 – 4,988 8,745 16,679

Net carrying amount:

At 1 January 2013 52,389 190 9,559 6,645 68,783

At 31 December 2013 52,165 – 11,477 2,239 65,881

At 31 December 2014 51,591 – 10,582 1,835 64,008
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

Company

Long term

leasehold

 land

RM’000

Buildings

RM’000

Office

equipment

RM’000

Furniture 

and office 

renovation

RM’000

Motor

vehicles

RM’000

Total

RM’000

Cost:

At 1 January 2013 50,017 – 1,673 1,252 87 53,029

Additions – – 245 – – 245

At 31 December 2013 

  and 1 January 2014 50,017 – 1,918 1,252 87 53,274

Additions – – 96 50 75 221

At 31 December 2014 50,017 – 2,014 1,302 162 53,495

Accumulated 

Depreciation:

At 1 January 2013 1,535 – 1,265 680 40 3,520

Depreciation charge  

 for the year (Note 8) 506 – 193 232 15 946

At 31 December 2013  

 and 1 January 2014 2,041 – 1,458 912 55 4,466

Depreciation charge  

 for the year (Note 8) 506 – 182 230 22 940

At 31 December 2014 2,547 – 1,640 1,142 77 5,406

Net carrying amount:

At 31 December 2013 47,976 – 460 340 32 48,808

At 31 December 2014 47,470 – 374 160 85 48,089

 Assets held under finance leases

During the financial year, the Group acquired office equipment with an aggregate cost of RM32,000 (2013: RM4,000) 

by means of finance lease. The cash outflow on acquisition of property, plant and equipment amounted to RM581,000 

(2013: RM3,347,000). 

The carrying amounts of office equipment of the Group held under finance leases at the reporting date were RM11,000 

(2013: RM9,000).

Leased assets are pledged as security for the related finance lease liabilities (Note 24).

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont’d)

for the financial year ended 31 December 2014

SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD | ANNUAL REPORT 2014 109



14. LAND HELD FOR PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT 

Long term

 leasehold

land

RM’000

Property

development 

costs

RM’000

Total

RM’000

Group and Company

Cost:

2014

At 1 January 2014 114,981 5,795 120,776

Additions – 109 109

At 31 December 2014 114,981 5,904 120,885

2013

At 1 January 2013 114,981 4,945 119,926

Additions – 850 850

At 31 December 2013 114,981 5,795 120,776

The relevant authority has issued the offer letter to alienate the land to the Company for a land premium payable of 

RM142,100,000 and the said land is for the purpose of mixed commercial/tourism-related development. A portion 

of the said land that will be retained for its own use or for future investment is classified under property, plant and 

equipment.

On 21 May 2013, the Company entered into a Joint Venture Agreement in respect of the Jesselton Quay Project with 

SBC Corporation Berhad for the development of the land held for property development. 
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15. CONCESSION ASSETS

Group

Port 

concession

 rights

RM’000

Leased

port

infrastructure

 and facilities

RM’000

Capital

 expenditure

RM’000

Total

RM’000

Cost:

At 1 January 2013 (as previously stated) 115,101 – 7,389 122,490

Prior year adjustments 98,578 45,296 797,874 941,748

At 1 January 2013 (restated) 213,679 45,296 805,263 1,064,238

Additions – – 31,786 31,786

Disposal – – (99) (99)

Transfer from property, plant and equipment – – 3,725 3,725

Write off – – (91) (91)

At 31 December 2013 (restated) 213,679 45,296 840,584 1,099,559

At 1 January 2014 (as previously stated) 115,101 – 7,502 122,603

Prior year adjustments 98,578 45,296 833,082 976,956

At 1 January 2014 (restated) 213,679 45,296 840,584 1,099,559

Addition – – 10,690 10,690

Disposal – – (1,334) (1,334)

Write off – – (76) (76)

At 31 December 2014 213,679 45,296 849,864 1,108,839
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15. CONCESSION ASSETS (CONT’D)

Port 

concession

 rights

RM’000

Leased

port

infrastructure

 and facilities

RM’000

Capital

 expenditure

RM’000

Total

RM’000

Accumulated amortisation:

At 1 January 2013 (as previously stated) 30,725 – 7,228 37,953

Prior year adjustments 27,383 12,582 178,876 218,841

At 1 January 2013 (restated) 58,108 12,582 186,104 256,794

Amortisation 6,973 1,510 29,530 38,013

Disposal – – (99) (99)

Write off – – (54) (54)

At 31 December 2013 (restated) 65,081 14,092 215,481 294,654

At 1 January 2014 (as previously stated) 34,412 – 7,293 41,705

Prior year adjustments 30,669 14,092 208,188 252,949

At 1 January 2014 (restated) 65,081 14,092 215,481 294,654

Amortisation 6,973 1,510 32,706 41,189

Disposal – – (1,331) (1,331)

Write off – – (73) (73)

Impairment – – 589 589

At 31 December 2014 72,054 15,602 247,372 335,028

Net carrying amount:

At 1 January 2013 (restated) 155,571 32,714 619,159 807,444

At 31 December 2013 (restated) 148,598 31,204 625,103 804,905

At 31 December 2014 141,625 29,694 602,492 773,811

Capital expenditures recognised as concession assets are to be handed over at no costs to Sabah Ports Authority 

upon the expiry of the concession period.
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Shares, at cost

Unquoted ordinary shares 113,400 113,700

Irredeemable preference shares 90,000 90,000

Redeemable preference shares 24,300 24,300

227,700 228,000

Impairment loss – (300)

227,700 227,700

a) Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Name

Country of 

incorporation/ 

principal place 

of business Principal Activities

% of 

ownership 

interest held 

by the Group*

% of ownership 

interest held by 

non-controlling 

interests*

2014 2013 2014 2013

Held by the Company:

Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Provision and maintenance of 

port services and facilities, and 

the regulation and control of the 

management of ports 100 100 – –

Suria Bumiria Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Property developer and ferry 

terminal operator 100 100 – –

SCHB Engineering  

 Services Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia Construction contractor, provision 

of project management and 

technical support services 100 100 – –

S.P. Satria Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Distribution of port cargo handling 

equipment and related spare 

parts, and provision of equipment 

maintenance services 70 70 30 30

Tricubes Suria Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Dissolved on 25 August 2014 – 60 – 40
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

a) Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

Name

Country of 

incorporation/ 

principal place 

of business Principal Activities

% of 

ownership 

interest held 

by the Group*

% of ownership 

interest held by 

non-controlling 

interests*

2014 2013 2014 2013

Held through Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd.:

S.P. Satria Logistics  

 Sdn. Bhd. 

Malaysia Provision of bunkering and related 

services 100 100 – –

* Equals to the proportion of voting rights held.

The non-controlling interests in respect of the subsidiaries of the Group are not material to the Group.

b)  Summarised financial information of the subsidiaries which has non-controlling interests that is material to the 

Group.

The summarised financial information presented below are the amounts before inter-company elimination.

(i) Summarised statements of financial position

S.P. Satria Sdn. Bhd. Tricubes Suria Sdn. Bhd. Total

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Non-current assets 300 355 – – 300 355

Current assets 10,571 10,277 – 1 10,571 10,278

Total assets 10,871 10,632 – 1 10,871 10,633

Non-current liabilities 32 42 – – 32 42

Current liabilities 4,126 3,632 – 2,078 4,126 5,710

Total liabilities 4,158 3,674 – 2,078 4,158 5,752

Net assets / (liabilities) 6,713 6,958 – (2,077) 6,713 4,881
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

b)  Summarised financial information of the subsidiaries which has non-controlling interests that is material to the 

Group. (Cont’d)

The summarised financial information presented below are the amounts before inter-company elimination. 

(Cont’d)

(ii) Summarised statements of comprehensive income

S.P. Satria Sdn. Bhd. Tricubes Suria Sdn. Bhd. Total

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Revenue 12,487 14,986 – – 12,487 14,986

Profit/(loss) for the year 36 569 – (2) 36 567

Profit/(loss) attributable to  

 owners of the Company 25 398 – (2) 25 396

Profit attributable to the  

 non-controlling interests 11 171 – – 11 171

Other comprehensive  

  income attributable to 

owners of the Company – – – – – –

Other comprehensive  

  income attributable to the 

non-controlling interests – – – – – –

Other comprehensive  

 income for the year – – – – – –

Total comprehensive  

 income/(loss) 36 569 – (2) 36 567

Total comprehensive  

  income/(loss) attributable to 

owners of the Company 25 398 – (2) 25 396

Total comprehensive  

  income/(loss) attributable 

to the non-controlling 

interests 11 171 – – 11 171

36 569 – (2) 36 567

Dividend paid to non- 

 controlling interests 84 144 – – 84 144
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

b)  Summarised financial information of the subsidiaries which has non-controlling interests that is material to the 

Group. (Cont'd)

(iii) Summarised cash flows

S.P. Satria Sdn. Bhd. Tricubes Suria Sdn. Bhd. Total

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Net cash generated from  

 operating activities 9 (40) – – 9 (40)

Net cash used in investing  

 activity (67) (163) – – (67) (163)

Net cash used in financing  

 activities (280) (480) – – (280) (480)

Net increase in cash and  

 cash equivalents (338) (683) – – (338) (683)

Cash and cash equivalents  

 at beginning of the year 543 1,226 1 1 544 1,227

Cash and cash equivalents  

 at end of the year 205 543 1 1 206 544
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17. DEFERRED TAX (CONT’D)

Group

2014

RM’000

2013

(Restated)

RM’000

As at 

1 January

 2013

(Restated)

RM’000

Presented after appropriate offsetting as follows:

Deferred tax assets – – 13,036

Deferred tax liability (23,707) (4,866) (433)

(23,707) (4,866) 12,603

Unrecognised temporary differences 

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Unrecognised tax losses 13,476 9,350 11,100 7,500

Unabsorbed capital allowances 3,014 2,912 2,932 2,800

Other temporary differences 548 180 548 180

17,038 12,442 14,580 10,480

18. INVENTORIES

Group

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Cost

Fuel and lubricants 305 544

Spare parts 4,746 4,223

5,051 4,767

Net realisable value

Fuel and lubricants – 382

5,051 5,149

Inventories recognised as an expense in profit or loss 40,217 33,969
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Current

Trade receivables

Third parties 24,332 23,824 – –

Amounts due from subsidiaries – – 1,173 1,751

24,332 23,824 1,173 1,751

Less: Allowance for impairment

Third parties (1,603) (1,611) – –

Amount due from subsidiary – – – (753)

Trade receivables, net 22,729 22,213 1,173 998

Other receivables

Amounts due from subsidiaries – – 1,805 3,344

Refundable deposits 4,218 4,526 212 205

Sundry receivables 5,974 2,611 1,382 949

10,192 7,137 3,399 4,498

Less: Allowance for impairment

Third parties (549) (177) (177) (177)

Amount due from subsidiary – – – (1,162)

Other receivables, net 9,643 6,960 3,222 3,159

32,372 29,173 4,395 4,157

Total trade and other receivables 32,372 29,173 4,395 4,157

Add: Cash and bank balances (Note 23) 122,465 121,961 10,707 46,036

Total loans and receivables 154,837 151,134 15,102 50,193
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

(a) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 to 90 days (2013: 30 to 90 days) terms. They 

are recognised at their original invoice amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition. 

Trade receivables of the Group amounting to RM10,612,000 (2013: RM8,823,000) are secured by bank 

guarantees made in favour of the Group.

Ageing analysis of trade receivables

The ageing analysis of the Group’s and the Company’s trade receivables are as follows: 

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Neither past due nor impaired 14,354 13,292 63 63

1 to 30 days past due not impaired 1,832 2,239 48 63

31 to 60 days past due not impaired 647 537 48 63

61 to 90 days past due not impaired 529 685 20 35

More than 91 days past due not impaired 5,367 5,460 994 774

8,375 8,921 1,110 935

22,729 22,213 1,173 998

Impaired 1,603 1,611 – 753

24,332 23,824 1,173 1,751

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired 

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy debtors with good payment records 

with the Group and the Company. 

None of the Group’s and the Company’s trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have been 

renegotiated during the financial year.

Receivables that are past due but not impaired

The Group has trade receivables amounting to RM8,375,000 (2013: RM8,921,000) that are past due at the 

reporting date but not impaired. 
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

(a) Trade receivables (Cont’d)

Receivables that are impaired

The Group’s and the Company’s trade receivables that are impaired at the reporting date and the movement of 

the allowance accounts used to record the impairment are as follows:

Individually impaired

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Group

Trade receivables – nominal amounts 1,603 1,611

Less: Allowances for impairment (1,603) (1,611)

– –

Company

Trade receivables – nominal amounts – 753

Less: Allowances for impairment – (753)

– –

Movement in allowance accounts:

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

At 1 January 1,611 1,725 753 753

Charge for the year (Note 8) 96 71 – –

Written off (66) (22) (753) –

Reversal of impairment loss (38) (163) – –

At 31 December 1,603 1,611 – 753

Trade receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the reporting date relate to debtors that 

have in significant financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments. 

(b) Other receivables

These amounts are non-interest bearing. Other receivables are normally settled on 30-days (2013: 30-days) 

terms.
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

(c) Amount due from subsidiaries

Amounts due from subsidiaries are non-interest bearing except for amounts due from certain subsidiaries which 

bear interest ranging from 3.5% to 7.10% (2013: from 3.5% to 7.10%) per annum. These amounts are unsecured 

and repayable upon demand. 

Other receivables that are impaired

At the reporting date, the Group and the Company have provided an allowance of RM549,000 (2013: RM177,000) and 

RM177,000 (2013: RM1,339,000) respectively for impairment of other receivables.

Movement in allowance accounts:

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

At 1 January: 177 231 1,339 1,392

Charge for the year (Note 8) 372 – – 1

Written off – – (1,162) –

Reversal of impairment loss (Note 8) – (54) – (54)

At 31 December 549 177 177 1,339

20. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Prepaid operating expenses 2,081 648 34 7

Non-refundable deposits 99 20 – –

Prepaid capital expenditure 794 502 – –

Amount due from customers for contract (Note 22) – 1,077 – –

Accrued billings in respect of completed contracts 369 82 – –

3,343 2,329 34 7
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21. INVESTMENT SECURITIES

2014 2013

Carrying

 amount

RM’000

Market

 value of 

quoted

investments

RM’000

Carrying

 amount

RM’000

Market 

value of

 quoted 

investments

RM’000

Group

Held for trading investments

– Unit trust funds (quoted in Malaysia) 107,916 107,916 130,392 130,392

Company

Held for trading investments

– Unit trust funds (quoted in Malaysia) 24,026 24,026 48,996 48,996

22. AMOUNT DUE FROM/(TO) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Cost

Construction contract costs incurred to date – 5,080 – –

Attributable profits – 505 – –

– 5,585 – –

Less: Progress billings – (4,508) –

– 1,077 – –

Presented as:

Amount due from customers for contract (Note 20) – 1,077 – –

– 1,077 – –

Retention sums on construction contract included in  

  trade receivables 18 2 – –
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23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Cash at banks and on hand 24,592 35,040 1,754 18,891

Cash at banks pledged as securities for Islamic Debts  

 Securities 10,897 6,154 – –

Short term deposits with:

– licensed banks 50,634 45,534 8,953 27,145

– other financial institutions 31,053 30,030 – –

Deposits with maturity more than 3 months 5,289 5,203 – –

Total cash and bank balances (Note 19) 122,465 121,961 10,707 46,036

Less:  Cash at bank pledged as securities for Islamic  

 Debts Securities (10,897) (6,154) – –

 Deposits with maturity more than 3 months (5,289) (5,203) – –

Cash and cash equivalent 106,279 110,604 10,707 46,036

Short term deposits are made for varying periods of between 1 day and 3 months depending on the immediate 

cash requirements of the Group and the Company, and earn interests at the respective short term deposit rates. The 

weighted average effective interest rates as at 31 December 2014 for the Group and the Company were 3.4% (2013: 

3.3%) and 3.3% (2013: 3.2%) respectively.

Deposits more than 3 months are made for a period of 1 year (2013: 1 year) and the weighted average effective 

interest as at 31 December for the Group were 3.7% (2013: 3.6%). 

Deposits with other financial institution with maturity more than 3 months of the Group are held under lien to secure 

bank guarantees which includes guarantees made in favour of the Sabah Ports Authority against lease rental of port 

land payable to Sabah Ports Authority and the due maintenance of Sabah Ports’ properties and facilities.
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24. BORROWINGS 

Group Company

Maturity 2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Current

Secured:

Islamic Debt Securities (Note 25) 2015 10,427 10,565 – –

Obligations under finance leases (Note 34(c)) 2015 8 4 – –

10,435 10,569 – –

Non-current

Secured:

Islamic Debt Securities (Note 25) 2017 20,000 30,000 – –

Obligations under finance leases (Note 34(c)) 2018 22 3 – –

20,022 30,003 – –

Total borrowings 30,457 40,572 – –

Total borrowings 30,457 40,572 – –

Add: Loan from Sabah Ports Authority (Note 26) 124,920 147,096 – –

Add:  Amount due to Sabah State  

 Government (Note 27) 35,560 41,487 – –

Total loans and borrowings (Note 29) 190,937 229,155 – –

The remaining maturities of the loans and borrowings as at 31 December 2014 are as follows:

Group

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

On demand or within one year 39,426 38,672

More than 1 year and less than 2 years 39,919 38,993

More than 2 years and less than 5 years 105,665 112,655

5 years or more 5,927 38,835

190,937 229,155

Obligations under finance leases

These obligations are secured by a charge over the leased assets (Note 13). The average discount rate implicit in the 

leases is 1.78% per annum (2013: 5.1% per annum).
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25. ISLAMIC DEBT SECURITIES 

Group

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Secured:

BAIDS

Current 10,427 10,565

Non-current 20,000 30,000

Total 30,427 40,565

(a) RM80 million Bai’ Bithaman Ajil Islamic Debt Securities (“BAIDS”) 

Group

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Nominal value of BAIDS facility 30,000 40,000

Accrued finance costs 427 565

30,427 40,565

On 2 April 2007, a subsidiary of the Company, Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd. issued BAIDS of RM80,000,000.

The BAIDS comprised tranches as follows:

Coupon

 Rates Tenure RM

Tranche 1 5.15% 3 years 10,000,000

Tranche 2 5.25% 4 years 10,000,000

Tranche 3 5.35% 5 years 10,000,000

Tranche 4 5.45% 6 years 10,000,000

Tranche 5 5.55% 7 years 10,000,000

Tranche 6 5.65% 8 years 10,000,000

Tranche 7 5.75% 9 years 10,000,000

Tranche 8 5.85% 10 years 10,000,000

80,000,000
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25. ISLAMIC DEBT SECURITIES (CONT’D)

b)   RM70 million Murabahah Underwritten Notes Issuance Facility/Islamic Medium Term Notes Facility 

(“MUNIF/IMTN”)

The subsidiary of the Company, Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd., has also obtained RM70 million MUNIF Notes/IMTN 

facilities. The MUNIF/IMTN facilities will expire 7 years from the date of first issue.

The BAIDS and MUNIF/IMTN share security on a pari passu basis over:

i)  assignment and charge of the Designated Accounts and monies standing to the credit of the accounts, including 

permitted investments; and 

ii) an undertaking from the Company.

26. LOAN FROM SABAH PORTS AUTHORITY 

Group

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Cumulative:

Amounts drawndown 193,000 193,000

Accrued interest 72,222 66,338

Repayment (140,302) (112,242)

124,920 147,096

Current 23,064 22,176

Non-current 101,856 124,920

124,920 147,096

On 5 February 2005, a subsidiary of the Company, Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd., entered into a loan agreement with Sabah 

Ports Authority, to secure a loan facility of RM193 million from Sabah Ports Authority. This loan to Sabah Ports Sdn. 

Bhd. was made in pursuant to the Loan Agreement entered between the Government of Malaysia and Sabah Ports 

Authority dated 31 December 2004, wherein, the Government of Malaysia has agreed to make available a sum of 

RM193 million to Sabah Ports Authority to be on-lend to Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd. for the purpose of part financing the 

purchase of cargo handling equipment and construction of the Sapangar Bay Container Terminal.
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26. LOAN FROM SABAH PORTS AUTHORITY (CONT’D)

The principal terms of the loan are as follows:

Repayment: Over a period of ten years commencing from the sixth year after the date of the first drawdown.

Interest: Shall bear interest at a rate of 4% per annum, and interest for the first five years after the date of the 

first drawdown shall be capitalised.

There was no drawdown (2013: nil) during the financial year.

27. AMOUNT DUE TO SABAH STATE GOVERNMENT

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Current 5,927 5,927

Non-current 29,633 35,560

35,560 41,487

This represents reimbursements payable to Sabah Ports Authority in respect of payments of capital expenditure made 

by Sabah Ports Authority prior to the takeover date pursuant to the terms of the Privatisation Agreement.

On 24 January 2006, the repayment of this amount due to Sabah Ports Authority was restructured in the following 

manner:

i) immediate repayment of RM20 million, which has been settled in 2006;

ii)  the balance of the RM59 million is repayable over ten years commencing from the sixth year after the loan has 

been restructured; and

iii) interest bearing at 4% per annum and is payable annually.

Subsequently, the Sabah State Government has approved the novation of this amount from Sabah Ports Authority to 

the Sabah State Government. The agreement to formalise the novation and restructured terms is pending finalisation 

and execution by parties involved.
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28. CONCESSION LIABILITIES

Group

2014

RM’000

2013

(Restated)

RM’000

As at 

1 January

 2013

(Restated)

RM’000

At 1 January 130,265 129,155 127,949

Unwinding of discount 8,448 8,522 8,449

Payments (9,589) (7,412) (7,245)

At 31 December 129,124 130,265 129,155

Current 9,772 9,589 7,412

Non current:

More than 1 year and less than 2 years 9,311 9,133 8,961

More than 2 years and less than 5 years 25,413 24,907 24,421

5 years or more 84,628 86,636 88,361

119,352 120,676 121,743

129,124 130,265 129,155

This represent provision for annual fixed periodic lease payments and concession fees payable to the Sabah Ports 

Authority.
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29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

(Restated)

RM’000

As at 1

 January 

2013

(Restated)

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Current

Trade payables

Third parties 12,876 13,802 10,740 – –

Other payables

Amount due to subsidiary – – – 2,433 2,403

Accrued operating expenses 9,454 8,698 11,198 1,298 1,401

Deposits received 4,790 4,297 2,157 2,000 2,000

Amounts due to contractors 51 3,253 2,104 – –

Retention monies of contractors 780 1,462 2,008 – –

Provision for dredging costs 4,500 – – – –

Sundry payables 5,719 1,729 2,255 880 543

Land premium payable – 69,091 – – 69,091

25,294 88,530 19,722 6,611 75,438

38,170 102,332 30,462 6,611 75,438

Non-current

Other payable

Provision for dredging costs – 3,208 2,033 – –

Land premium payable – – 69,091 – –

– 3,208 71,124 – –

Total trade and other payables 38,170 105,540 101,586 6,611 75,438

Add: Amount due to Sabah Ports Authority 2,000 – – – –

Add: Loans and borrowings (Note 24) 190,937 229,155 272,133 – –

Add: Concession liabilities (Note 28) 129,124 130,265 129,155 – –

Less: Provision for dredging costs (4,500) (3,208) (2,033) – –

Total financial liabilities carried at  

 amortised cost 355,731 461,752 500,841 6,611 75,438
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29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONT’D)

a) Trade and other payables

These amounts are non-interest bearing. Trade payables are normally settled on 30-days (2013: 30-days) terms.

b) Amounts due to subsidiaries

These amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable upon demand.

c) Other payables

These amounts are non-interest bearing. Other payables are normally settled on an average term of one month 

(2013: average term of one month). 

d) Provision for dredging costs

Group

2014

RM’000

2013

(Restated)

RM’000

As at 

1 January

 2013

(Restated)

RM’000

At 1 January 3,208 2,033 966

Provision for the year 1,069 1,016 966

Unwinding of discount 223 159 101

At 31 December 4,500 3,208 2,033

Current 4,500 – –

Non-current – 3,208 2,033

4,500 3,208 2,033
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30. EMPLOYEE DEFINED BENEFIT LIABILITY

The Group and the Company operate unfunded defined benefit plan for its eligible employees that provides retirement 

benefit to employees upon retirement. On the date of retirement, eligible employees are entitled to 0.5 to 1.0 month 

last drawn basic salary for each completed year of service.

The following tables summarise the components of benefit expense recognised in profit or loss and the amount 

recognised in the statement of financial position for the plan.

Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows:

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

At 1 January 8,415 7,663 268 266

Included in profit or loss:

Current service cost 1,561 1,083 29 21

Loss on settlements 36 16 – –

Interest cost 669 428 22 15

2,266 1,527 51 36

Included in other comprehensive income:

Remeasurement gains:

 Arising from changes in financial assumptions 3,874 – 137 –

 Arising from experience adjustments 124 (80) 36 (1)

3,998 (80) 173 (1)

Benefits paid (390) (695) (36) (33)

At 31 December 14,289 8,415 456 268

Benefit expense recognised in profit or loss is included in the following line items:

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Cost of sales 955 1,341 – –

Administrative expenses 1,311 186 51 36

2,266 1,527 51 36
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30. EMPLOYEE DEFINED BENEFIT LIABILITY (CONT’D)

The cost of defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. The valuation involves making 

various assumptions.

The principal assumptions used in determining employee defined benefit liability are shown below:

Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

Discount rate 5.5% 5.6% 5.5% 5.6%

Future salary increases (subject to ceiling of each  

 salary scales) 5.0% 3.0% - 5.0% 5.0% 4.0%

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of each significant 

assumption on the employee defined benefit liability as of the reporting date, assuming if all other assumptions were 

held constant:

Increase/

(decrease)

Group 

RM’000

Company 

RM’000

2014

Discount rates +100 basis point (13,088) (393)

-100 basis point 15,666 470

Future salary increase +1% 12,944 388

-1% (15,811) (474)

The average duration of the employee defined benefit liability of the Group and the Company at the reporting date is 9 

years (2013: 10 years) and 9 years (2013: 10 years) respectively.

31. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

Group and Company

Number of ordinary  

shares of RM1 each Amount

2014

’000

2013

’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Share capital

Authorised

At 1 January and 31 December 800,000 800,000 800,000 800,000

Issued and fully paid

At 1 January and 31 December 283,328 283,328 283,328 283,328
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31. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (CONT’D)

Group and Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Share premium

At 1 January and 31 December 62,785 62,785

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company. All ordinary 

shares carry one vote per share without restrictions and rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

32. OTHER RESERVE

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Group

At 1 January/31 December (61) (61)

This represents premium paid on acquisition of non-controlling interests in 2012.

33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

a) Rendering and receiving services

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the following 

significant transactions between the Company and related parties took place at terms agreed between the 

parties during the financial year:

Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Subsidiaries:

– Dividend income 32,154 27,982

– Interest income 50 174

– Management fees income 4,440 4,440

– Rental income 90 90

– Disposal of 2,000,000 ordinary shares in S.P. Satria Logistics Sdn. Bhd. – 2,000
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33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

b) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other member of key management during the financial year was as follows:

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Short-term employee benefits 3,178 3,367 1,035 1,433

Defined contribution plan 422 381 151 156

3,600 3,748 1,186 1,589

Included in the total remuneration of key management personnel are:

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Directors’ remuneration (Note 10) 2,092 1,960 1,524 1,193

34. COMMITMENTS

a) Capital commitments

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Capital expenditure

Approved and contracted for:

Bulk fertilizer storage facilities for Sandakan 1,504 1,825 – –

Sapangar Bay bunkering line 518 1,859 – –

Purchase of other property, plant and equipment 5,368 1,208 – –

7,390 4,892 – –

Approved but not contracted for:

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 371,652 372,886 209 332

Improvement to port infrastructure facilities 250,626 261,193 – –

622,278 634,079 209 332

629,668 638,971 209 332
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34. COMMITMENTS (CONT’D)

b) Operating lease commitments - as lessor

The Group has entered into non-cancellable operating lease agreements on its land and office building. These 

leases have remaining lease terms of between 1 and 20 years. 

Future minimum rental receivable under operating leases as at the reporting date are as follows:

Group

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Future minimum rental payments receivable:

Not later than 1 year 2,224 2,178

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 4,962 6,020

Later than 5 years 11,640 12,697

18,826 20,895

The rental income recognised in profit or loss during the financial year is disclosed in Note 6.

c) Finance lease commitments

The Group has finance leases for certain items of plant and equipment (Note 13). 

Future minimum lease payments under finance leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease 

payments are as follows: 

Group

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Minimum lease payments:

Not later than 1 year 12 5

Later than 1 year but not later than 2 years 8 2

Later than 2 years but not later than 5 years 18 –

Total minimum lease payments 38 7

Less: Amount representing finance charges (8) –

Present value of minimum lease payments 30 7
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34. COMMITMENTS (CONT’D)

c) Finance lease commitments (Cont’d)

The Group has finance leases for certain items of plant and equipment (Note 13). (Cont’d)

Future minimum lease payments under finance leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease 

payments are as follows: (Cont'd)

Group

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Present value of payments:

Not later than 1 year 8 4

Later than 1 year but not later than 2 years 6 3

Later than 2 years but not later than 5 years 16 –

Present value of minimum lease payments 30 7

Less: Amount due within 1 year (Note 24) (8) (4)

Amount due after 1 year (Note 24) 22 3

35 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Arbitration

Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, received a Notice of Arbitration on 25 November 

2011 from the lawyer acting for Zublin International (M) Sdn. Bhd., claiming for a sum of RM31,645,537 in respect 

of the construction of Phase 1A, Sapangar Bay Container Port. The claimant has subsequently increased the total 

amount claimed to RM32,894,067. The Arbitration’s hearing has been concluded in February 2015. The legal counsel 

is of the view that most of the claimant’s claim put forward are unsustainable as the claimant had failed to prove that 

it had suffered losess with the necessary documentary evidence. The status of the proceedings is that the lawyers of 

each parties were given time until May 2015 to submit their written submission to the Arbitration Panel. The Group has 

been advised by its legal counsel that the Group has a reasonable defence to the claimant’s claims. Accordingly, no 

provision for any liability has been made in these financial statements.
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36. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

A. Fair value hierarchy

The Group categories fair value measurement using a fair value hierarchy that is dependent on the valuation 

inputs used as follows:

– Level 1 – Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can 

access at the measurement date,

– Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 

liability, either directly or indirectly; and

– Level 3 – Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

Fair value measurements that use inputs of different hierarchy levels are categorised in its entirety in the same 

level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. 

B. Assets measured at fair value

The following table shows an analysis of the class of asset measured at fair value at the reporting date: 

Fair value measurements at the reporting date using

Level 1

RM’000

Level 2

RM’000

Level 3

RM’000

Total

RM’000

Recurring fair value measurements

Asset – financial assets

Group

Investment securities (Note 21)

– 2014 107,916 – – 107,916

– 2013 130,392 – – 130,392

Company

Investment securities (Note 21)

– 2014 24,026 – – 24,026

– 2013 48,996 – – 48,996
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36. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

C. Assets and liabilities not carried at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed 

The following table shows an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities not measured at fair value at the 

reporting date but for which fair value is disclosed:

Fair value measurements at the reporting period using

Level 1

RM’000

Level 2

RM’000

Level 3

RM’000

Total

RM’000

Carrying

 Amount

RM’000

Group

At 31 December 2014

Liabilities (non-current):

Borrowings

– Islamic Debt Securities – 19,714 – 19,714 20,000

–  Obligations under finance leases – 22 – 22 22

Loan from Sabah Ports Authority – 116,182 – 116,182 101,856

Amount due to Sabah State  

 Government – 31,794 – 31,794 29,633

At 31 December 2013

Liabilities (non-current):

Borrowings

– Islamic Debt Securities – 29,785 – 29,785 30,000

– Obligations under finance leases – 3 – 3 3

Loan from Sabah Port Authority – 118,315 – 118,315 124,920

Amount due to Sabah State  

 Government – 32,200 – 32,200 35,560

Determination of fair value

Borrowings, loan from Sabah Ports Authority and amount due to Sabah State Government

The fair value disclosed in the table above are estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently 

available for debts on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
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36. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

D.  Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying 
amounts are not reasonable approximation of fair value

2014 2013

Note

Carrying

 amount

RM’000

Fair value

RM’000

Carrying

amount

RM’000

Fair value

RM’000

Group

Financial liabilities (non-current):

Borrowings

– Islamic Debt Securities 24 20,000 19,714 30,000 29,785

– Obligations under finance leases 24 22 22 3 3

Loan from Sabah Ports Authority 26 101,856 116,182 124,920 118,315

Amount due to Sabah State Government 27 29,633 31,794 35,560 32,200

Concession liabilities 28 119,352 139,260 120,676 140,966

*  Fair value information has not been disclosed for this financial instrument carried at cost because fair value 

cannot be measured reliably.

E.  Financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are 
reasonable approximation of fair value

The following are classes of financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts 

are reasonable approximation of fair value:

 Note

Trade and other receivables (current)  19

Cash and bank balances  23

Borrowings (current)  24

Loan from Sabah Ports Authority (current)  26

Amount due from/(to) Sabah Ports Authority (current) –

Amount due to Sabah State Government (current)  27

Concession liabilities (current) 28

Trade and other payables (current)  29

The carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities are reasonable approximation of fair values due to 

the short-term maturities of these instruments.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group and the Company are exposed to financial risks arising from their operations and the use of financial 

instruments. The key financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. 

The Board Risk Management Committee reviews and agrees policies and procedures for the management of these 

risks, which are executed by the management committee. The audit committee provides independent oversight to the 

effectiveness of the risk management process.

It is, and has been throughout the current and previous financial year, the Group’s policy that no derivatives for 

speculative purposes shall be undertaken. 

The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s and the Company’s exposure to the above-mentioned 

financial risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the management of these risks.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to these financial risks or the manner in which it manages and 

measures the risks.

a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a counterparty default 

on its obligations. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade and other 

receivables. For other financial assets (including investment securities, and cash and bank balances), the Group 

and the Company minimise credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties. 

The Group’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses incurred due to increased 

credit risk exposure. The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s 

policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In 

addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure to bad 

debts is not significant. 

Exposure to credit risk 

At the reporting date, the Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the 

carrying amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the statements of financial position.

Credit risk concentration profile

The Group does not have any significant exposure to individual customer or counter party nor does it have any 

major concentration of credit risk related to any financial assets.

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Information regarding trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired is disclosed in Note 19. 

Cash, deposits with licensed banks and other financial institutions, and investment securities that are neither 

past due nor impaired are placed with or entered into with reputable financial institutions or companies with high 

credit ratings and no history of default.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D)

a) Credit risk (Cont’d)

Financial assets that are either past due or impaired

Information regarding financial assets that are either past due or impaired is disclosed in Note 19.

b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group and the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations 

due to shortage of funds. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from 

mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Group’s and the Company’s objective is to 

maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of stand-by credit facilities. The 

Group’s and the Company’s liquidity risk management policy is to maintain sufficient liquid financial assets and 

stand-by credit facilities.

At the reporting date, approximately 21% (2013: 17%) of the Group’s loans and borrowings (Note 24) will mature 

in less than one year based on the carrying amount reflected in the financial statements. 

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets and liabilities 

at the reporting date based on contractual undiscounted amounts:

On demand 

or within 

one year

RM’000

Two to five

 years

RM’000

Over five

 years

 RM’000

Total

RM’000

Group

2014

Financial assets:

Trade and other receivables 32,372 – – 32,372

Investment securities 107,916 – – 107,916

Cash and bank balances 122,465 – – 122,465

Total undiscounted financial assets 262,753 – – 262,753

Financial liabilities:

Trade and other payables 38,170 – – 38,170

Concession liabilities 9,772 41,076 186,262 237,110

Amount due to Sabah Ports Authority 2,000 – – 2,000

Loans and borrowings 39,426 159,490 5,943 204,859

Total undiscounted financial liabilities 89,368 200,566 192,205 482,139

Total net undiscounted financial assets/(liabilities) 173,385 (200,566) (192,205) (219,386)
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D)

b) Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

On demand 

or within 

one year

RM’000

Two to five

 years

RM’000

Over five

 years

 RM’000

Total

RM’000

Group

2013

Financial assets:

Trade and other receivables 29,173 – – 29,173

Investment securities 130,392 – – 130,392

Cash and bank balances 121,961 – – 121,961

Total undiscounted financial assets 281,526 – – 281,526

Financial liabilities:

Trade and other payables 102,332 – – 102,332

Concession liabilities 9,589 40,265 196,845 246,699

Loans and borrowings 38,672 171,876 40,151 250,699

Total undiscounted financial liabilities 150,593 212,141 236,996 599,730

Total net undiscounted financial assets/(liabilities) 130,933 (212,141) (236,996) (318,204)

Company

2014

Financial assets:

Trade and other receivables 4,395 – – 4,395

Investment securities 24,026 – – 24,026

Cash and bank balances 10,707 – – 10,707

Total undiscounted financial assets 39,128 – – 39,128

Financial liabilities:

Trade and other payables 6,611 – – 6,611

Total undiscounted financial liabilities 6,611 – – 6,611

Total net undiscounted financial assets/(liabilities) 32,517 – – 32,517
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D)

b) Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

On demand 

or within 

one year

RM’000

Two to five

 years

RM’000

Over five

 years

 RM’000

Total

RM’000

Company

2013

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables 4,334 – – 4,334

Investment securities 48,996 – – 48,996

Cash and bank balances 46,036 – – 46,036

Total undiscounted financial assets 99,366 – – 99,366

Financial liabilities:

Trade and other payables 75,438 – – 75,438

Total undiscounted financial liabilities 75,438 – – 75,438

Total net undiscounted financial assets/(liabilities) 23,928 – – 23,928

c) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s and the Company’s financial 

instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 

The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily from their loans and borrowings. 

The Group’s policy is to manage interest cost using mainly fixed rate debts. At the reporting date, all (2013: 

100%) of the Group’s borrowings are at fixed rates of interest.

d) Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures arising from purchases that are denominated in a currency 

other than the functional currency of the Group entities, primarily RM. The foreign currencies in which these 

transactions are dominated are mainly US Dollars (“USD”), Euro (“EUR”) and Singapore Dollar (“SGD”).

Approximately 6% (2013: 6%) and 18% (2013: 4%) of the Group’s receivable and payable balances at the 

reporting are dominated in foreign currencies. 

The Group also holds cash denominated in foreign currencies for working capital purposes. At the reporting 

date, such foreign currency balances (in USD) amounted to RM2,511,000 (2013: RM3,634,000) for the Group.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D)

d) Foreign currency risk (Cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s profit before tax to a reasonably possible change 

in the USD, EUR and SGD exchange rates against the functional currency of the Group entities, with all other 

variables held constant.

Group

Change in 

currency rate

Increase/(decrease) in 

profit before tax

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

USD/RM +5% 79 143

EUR/RM +5% (5) (14)

SGD/RM +5% (101) (48)

An equivalent decrease in each of the currencies shown above would have resulted in an equivalent, but 

opposite, impact.

e) Market Price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s financial instruments will 

fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than interest or exchange rates). 

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from its investment in unit trusts. These instruments are 

classified as held for trading or available-for-sale financial assets. The Group does not have exposure to 

commodity price risk. 

Sensitivity analysis for equity price risk

At the reporting date, if the market price had been 5% higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, the 

Group’s profit net of tax would have been RM5,396,000 (2013:RM6,520,000) higher/lower, arising as a result of 

higher/lower fair value gains on held for trading investments in equity instruments. 
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38. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and 

healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder’s value. 

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. 

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or issue new 

shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 December 2014 

and 31 December 2013. 

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group’s 

policy is to keep the gearing ratio below 50%. The Group includes within net debt, loans and borrowings. Capital 

includes equity attributable to the owners of the Company. 

Group

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Loans and borrowings 190,937 229,155

Net debt (Note 24) 190,937 229,155

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company 848,282 819,049

Total capital 848,282 819,049

Capital and net debt 1,039,219 1,048,204

Gearing ratio 18% 22%
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39. SEGMENT INFORMATION 

For management purpose, the Group is organised into business units based on its products and services, and has five 

reportable operating segments as follow:

i.  Investment holding - investments in deposits and investment securities for interest, dividend and investment 

income.

ii.  Property development and ferry terminal operations - the development of residential and commercial properties, 

and operating of ferry terminal.

iii.  Port operations - provision and maintenance of port services and facilities, the regulation and control of the 

management of ports, distributor of port cargo handling equipment and related spare parts, and provision of 

equipment maintenance services.

iv. Logistics and bunkering - provision of bunkering and related services.

v.  Contract and engineering - construction contractor, provision of project management and technical support 

services.

Except as indicated above, no operating segments has been aggregated to form the above reportable operating 

segments.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about 

resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or 

loss which, in certain respects as explained in the table below, is measured differently from operating profit or loss in 

the consolidated financial statements. 

Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third 

parties.
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39. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue, results, assets, liabilities and other information by 

business segment:

Investment

 holding

RM’000

Property

 development 

and ferry 

terminal 

operations

RM’000

Port 

operations 

RM’000

Logistics 

and

 bunkering 

services 

RM’000

Contract 

and

engineering

RM’000

Adjustments

and

eliminations

RM’000

Note

Per 

consolidated 

financial

statements

RM’000

31 December 2014

Revenue:

External customers 1,577 5,726 232,037 33,530 268 – 273,138

Inter-segment 36,594 – – 4,850 372 (41,816) A –

Total revenue 38,171 5,726 232,037 38,380 640 (41,816) 273,138

Results:

Interest income 50 50 2,595 16 23 (50) A 2,684

Depreciation and  

 amortisation 940 1,013 41,437 202 19 – 43,611

Impairment of non  

 financial assets – – 589 – – – B 589

Other non-cash expenses – – 1,362 172 – – B 1,534

Segment profit/(loss) 27,802 1,015 77,507 (28) (1,332) (32,154) B 72,810

Assets:

Additions to non-current  

 assets 330 118 10,816 148 – – C 11,412

Segment assets 315,277 138,554 1,008,124 9,121 12,241 (234,630) D 1,248,687

Segment liabilities 4,810 3,233 388,244 7,940 841 (6,678) E 398,390
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39. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 

Investment

 holding

RM’000

Property

 development 

and ferry 

terminal 

operations

RM’000

Port 

operations 

RM’000

Logistics 

and

 bunkering 

services 

RM’000

Contract 

and

engineering

RM’000

Adjustments

and

eliminations

RM’000

Note

Per 

consolidated 

financial

statements

RM’000

31 December 2013 

Revenue:

External customers 2,521 5,174 224,256 27,967 3,412 – 263,330

Inter-segment 32,512 – – 5,081 834 (38,427) A –

Total revenue 35,033 5,174 224,256 33,048 4,246 (38,427) 263,330

Results:

Interest income 174 15 1,652 – 20 (174) A 1,687

Depreciation and  

 amortisation 946 642 38,197 229 21 – 40,035

Other non-cash 

 expenses 64 22 1,595 179 – (1) B 1,859

Segment profit/(loss) 25,217 1,485 77,175 (672) (55) (27,981) B 75,169

Assets:

Additions to non-current  

 assets 245 3,359 38,449 50 23 (2,414) C 39,712

Segment assets 376,229 138,375 996,822 10,940 14,013 (236,840) D 1,299,539

Segment liabilities 25,159 51,168 399,790 10,022 1,316 (9,053) E 478,402
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39. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Note Nature of adjustments and eliminations to arrive at amounts reported in the consolidated financial 

statements

A Inter-segment revenues and interest income are eliminated on consolidation.

B The following items are deducted from segment profit to arrive at profit before tax presented in the 

consolidated statement of comprehensive income:

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Dividend income from subsidiaries (32,154) (27,982)

Allowance for impairment loss on trade and other receivable – 1

(32,154) (27,981)

C Additions to non-current assets consist of:

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Property, plant and equipment 613 3,351

Land held for property development 109 850

Intangible assets 10,690 35,511

11,412 39,712

D The following item is deducted from segment assets to arrive at total assets reported in the consolidated 

statement of financial position:

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Inter-segment assets (234,630) (236,840)

E The following item is deducted from segment liabilities to arrive at total assets reported in the consolidated 

statement of financial position:

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Inter-segment liabilities (6,678) (9,053)
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40. DIVIDENDS

Group and Company

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Recognised during the financial year:

Dividends on ordinary shares:

– Final tax exempt dividend for year 2013: 4.00 sen (2012: 3.15 sen) per share 11,333 8,925

– Interim tax exempt dividend for year 2014: 3.00 sen (2013: 3.00 sen) per share 8,500 8,500

19,833 17,425

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a final tax exempt dividend in respect of financial year ended 31 

December 2014, of 4% on 283,327,992 ordinary shares, amounting to dividend payable of RM11,333,120 (4 sen per 

ordinary share) will be proposed for shareholders’ approval. The financial statements for the current financial year do 

not reflect this proposed dividend. Such dividend, if approved by the shareholders, will be accounted for in equity as 

an appropriation of retained earnings in the financial year ending 31 December 2015.

41. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS

Prior to 1 January 2014, expenditure incurred in relation to the assets taken over from Sabah Ports Authority and 

infrastructures and assets constructed for the purpose of the port operations were classified as property, plant and 

equipment. For addition, annual fixed periodic port lease rental and concession fee payable to Sabah Ports Authority 

were recognised in profit or loss as operating leases. During the year, pursuant to the requirements of IC Interpretation 

12: Service Concession Arrangements (“IC 12”), as disclosed in Note 2.8, these expenditures were reclassified as 

concession assets and the total port lease rental and concession fee obligations were accrued and recognised as 

concession liabilities with a corresponding concession assets. Concession assets are amortised on a straight-line 

basis over the port concession period.
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41. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (CONT’D)

The effects of the above prior year adjustments are as follows:

As 

previously 

stated

RM’000

Adjustments

RM’000

As restated

RM’000

Group

Statement of financial position

At 1 January 2013

Property, plant and equipment 659,868 (591,085) 68,783

Deferred tax assets 27,386 (14,350) 13,036

Concession assets 84,537 722,907 807,444

Other current assets 7,486 (1,180) 6,306

Other payables 69,091 2,033 71,124

Concession liabilities – 129,155 129,155

Retained earnings 448,569 (14,896) 433,673

At 31 December 2013

Property, plant and equipment 664,104 (598,223) 65,881

Deferred tax assets 6,951 (6,951) –

Concession assets 80,898 724,007 804,905

Trade and other payables – 3,208 3,208

Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities 203 4,663 4,866

Concession liabilities – 130,265 130,265

Retained earnings 492,300 (19,303) 472,997

Statement of comprehensive income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2013

Cost of sales 149,622 2,347 151,969

Other expenses 10,007 4,796 14,803

Income tax expense 21,044 (2,736) 18,308

Profit net of tax 61,268 (4,407) 56,861
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42. AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR ISSUE 

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 were authorised for issue in accordance with a 

resolution of the directors on 16 April 2015. 

43. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - BREAKDOWN OF RETAINED EARNINGS INTO REALISED AND UNREALISED 

The breakdown of the retained earnings of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2014 into realised 

and unrealised profits is presented in accordance with the directive issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad 

dated 25 March 2010 and prepared in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No.1, Determination of Realised 

and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing 

Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

Group Company

2014

RM’000

2013

(Restated)

RM’000

2014

RM’000

2013

RM’000

Total retained earnings of the Company and its  

 subsidiaries

– Realised 536,867 470,980 82,158 74,428

– Unrealised (35,453) 1,028 824 758

501,414 472,008 82,982 75,186

Less: Consolidation adjustments 816 989 – –

502,230 472,997 82,982 75,186

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont’d)

for the financial year ended 31 December 2014
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List of Properties

Location Postal Address Description Current Use Tenure

Remaining 

Lease Period 

(Expiry Date)

Age of 

Property

Land Area 

/ Built-up 

Area

Date of 

Acquisition

Net Book 

Value 

(RM'000)

SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD

1 Kota Kinabalu Port area 

under Town Lease 

No. 017561689

1st and 2nd Floor 

Menara Jubili

No. 53 Jalan Gaya 

88000 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah

Future 

Property 

Development

Container 

Yard and 

Godown

99 94 years 

(31.12.2108)

5 years 23.25 acres 01.01.2010 168,086

2 Lot A24, Country Lease 

065323266, Mount 

Kinabalu Golf Course 

Complex, Kundasang

1st and 2nd Floor

Menara Jubili 

No. 53 Jalan Gaya 

88000 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah

Vacant 

Residential 

Lot

Idle 99 79 years 

(31.12.2093)

21 years 1 acre 18.05.2006 269

SURIA BUMIRIA SDN BHD

1 Kota Kinabalu Ferry 

Terminal known as 

Jesselton Point

4th Floor 

Wisma Perkasa Jalan Gaya 

88821 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah

K.K. Ferry 

Terminal 

Building

Ferry 

Passengers 

Terminal

30 20 Years 

(31.08.2034)

46 years Land Area: 

3.4 acres 

Built-up Area: 

43,164 sq. ft.

01.09.2004 8,713

2 Kota Kinabalu Port 4th Floor 

Wisma Perkasa Jalan Gaya 

88821 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah

Renovation Cruise 

Passengers 

Terminal

– – – Built-up Area: 

17,879 sq. ft.

31.12.2013 1,870*

SABAH PORTS SDN BHD

1 Lahad Datu Port, Jalan 

Kastam Baru Lahad Datu

P. O. Box No. 143 

91007 Lahad Datu, Sabah

Wharves & 

Approaches

Vessel 30 20 Years 

(31.08.2034)

18 Years 

(01.08.1997)
37 acres

01.09.2004 1,360*

2 Lahad Datu Port, Jalan 

Kastam Baru Lahad Datu

P. O. Box No. 143 

91007 Lahad Datu, Sabah

Office 

Building

Office 30 20 Years 

(31.08.2034)

8 Years 01.09.2004 1,410*

3 Lahad Datu Port, Jalan 

Kastam Baru Lahad Datu

P. O. Box No. 143 

91007 Lahad Datu, Sabah

Oil Storage 

Tank

Gas Oil 99 56 years 

(31.12.2070)

43 years

0.9 acres

01.12.2013 3,252

4 Lahad Datu Port, Jalan 

Kastam Baru Lahad Datu

P. O. Box No. 143 

91007 Lahad Datu, Sabah

Wharves & 

Approaches

Storage 

Depot

99 56 years 

(31.12.2070)

43 years 01.12.2013 2,369

5 Sandakan Oil Jetty at 

Karamunting

Wisma Pelabuhan, Jalan 

Pelabuhan, Karamunting Baru 

P. O. Box No. 1368 

90715 Sandakan, Sabah

Oil Jetty Bulk Oil and 

Palm Oil

30 20 Years 

(31.08.2034)

8 Years 16.8 acres 01.09.2004  28,332* 

6 Sandakan Oil Jetty at Sg. 

Mowtas

Wisma Pelabuhan, Jalan 

Pelabuhan, Karamunting Baru 

P. O. Box No. 1368 

90715 Sandakan, Sabah

Oil Jetty  Palm Oil 30 20 Years 

(31.08.2034)

11 Years 350 acres 01.09.2004 13,668* 

7 Wisma Pelabuhan, Jalan 

Pelabuhan, Karamunting 

Baru Sandakan

Wisma Pelabuhan, Jalan 

Pelabuhan, Karamunting Baru 

P. O. Box No. 1368 

90715 Sandakan, Sabah

Wharves & 

Approaches

Container 30 20 Years 

(31.08.2034)

11 Years 

445 acres

01.09.2004 6,971* 

8 Wisma Pelabuhan, Jalan 

Pelabuhan, Karamunting 

Baru, Sandakan

Wisma Pelabuhan, Jalan 

Pelabuhan, Karamunting Baru 

P. O. Box No. 1368 

90715 Sandakan, Sabah

Sandakan 

Ferry 

Terminal 

Building

Ferry 

Passengers

30 20 Years 

(31.08.2034)

46 Years 01.09.2004 628* 
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Location Postal Address Description Current Use Tenure

Remaining 

Lease Period 

(Expiry Date)

Age of 

Property

Land Area 

/ Built-up 

Area

Date of 

Acquisition

Net Book 

Value 

(RM'000)

9 Kunak Oil Jetty Jalan Ke Pangkalan 

Kg. Pangkalan 

91207 Kunak, Sabah

Oil Jetty Palm Oil 30 20 Years 

(31.08.2034)

8 Years

100 acres

01.09.2004 26,322*

10 Kunak Oil Jetty Jalan Ke Pangkalan 

Kg. Pangkalan 

91207 Kunak, Sabah

Office 

Building

Office 30 20 Years 

(31.08.2034)

8 Years 01.09.2004 2,534* 

11 Wisma Pelabuhan, Jalan 

Dunlop, Tawau

P. O. Box 335 

91107 Tawau, Sabah

Wharves & 

Approaches

Storage of 

Cargo

30 20 Years 

(31.08.2034)

9 Years 

(31/12/2005)

70 acres 01.09.2004 1,326* 

12  Kota Kinabalu Port Wisma Pelabuhan 

Jalan Tun Fuad Tanjung Lipat 

Locked Bag 75 

88992 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah

Wharves & 

Approaches

Storage of 

Cargo

30 20 Years 

(31.08.2034) 

8 Years 290 acres 01.09.2004 657 *

13 Sapangar Bay Oil 

Terminal, Jln Sapangar 

Sapangar Bay 

Sabah Ports Sdn Bhd

P. O. Box 57, Pejabat Pos 

Indah Permai 

88450 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah

Oil Jetty Bulk Oil 30 20 years 

(31.08.2034)

8 Years 340 acres 01.09.2004 1,144* 

14 Headquarters and 

Sapangar Bay Container 

Port's Operation Building 

Jln Sapangar

Sapangar Bay

Sabah Ports Sdn Bhd 

P. O. Box 203, Pejabat Pos 

Mini Indah Permai 

88450 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah

Office 

Building

Office and 

Operation 

Building

30 20 Years 

(31.08.2034)

8 Years

1,530 acres

01.09.2004 14,363* 

15 Sapangar Bay Container 

Port, Jln Sapangar 

Sapangar Bay

Sabah Ports Sdn Bhd 

P. O. Box 203, Pejabat Pos 

Mini Indah Permai 

88450 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah

Container 

Port

Vessel and 

Container

30 20 Years 

(31.08.2034)

8 Years 01.09.2004 208,314* 

16 Town Lease 017530415 

at Kg Banjaran

Kota Kinabalu

Headquarters & Operation 

Building, Sapangar Bay 

Container Port, Sapangar Bay 

Kota Kinabalu, Sabah 

Vacant Land Idle 68 59 Years 

(31.12.2073)

11 Years 0.98 acre 01.09.2004 853  

17 Lot AA7, Country Lease 

065323408, Mount 

Kinabalu Golf Course 

Complex, Kundasang

Headquarters & Operation 

Building, Sapangar Bay 

Container Port, Sapangar Bay 

Kota Kinabalu, Sabah 

Vacant 

Residential 

Lot

Idle 90 81 Years 

(31.12.2095)

11 Years 4.996 acres 01.09.2004 900  

Total :  493,341 

(*)  These are land areas gazetted by the State Government of Sabah to Sabah Ports Authority which have been leased to Sabah Ports Sdn Bhd for a 

period of 30 years under the Privatisation Agreement between the State Government of Sabah, Sabah Ports Authority, Suria Capital Holdings Berhad 

and Sabah Ports Sdn Bhd. These lands now categorised under Concession Assets are to be handed over at no costs to Sabah Ports Authority upon 

the expiry of the concession period.

The Net Book Value of these assets as at 31.12.2014 are costs of new structures and upgrading as well as renovation to the existing structures

that have been capitalised subsequent to 1 September 2004.

SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD | ANNUAL REPORT 2014 155

List of Properties



Shareholders’ 
Information
As at 30 April 2015

1. ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

 AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL : RM800,000,000

 ISSUED AND FULLY PAID-UP  : RM283,327,992

 CLASS OF SHARES   : Ordinary shares of One Ringgit Malaysia each

 NO. OF SHAREHOLDERS  : 15,728

2. DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 30 APRIL 2015

No. Name of Directors 
Shareholdings  

(Direct Interest) %

1. Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof Hamdain Diego – –

2. Datuk Dr. Mohamed Fowzi Hassan Bin Mohamed Razi 20,000 0.007

3. Datuk Ismail Awang Besar, J.P. – –

4. Datuk Dr. Mohd Yaakub Hj. Johari, J.P. – –

5. Datuk Mohd Hasnol Bin Ayub 2,500 0.001

6. Datuk Hj. Abu Bakar @ Wahab Bin Hj. Abas 57,503 0.020

7. Hj. Muluk Bin Samad – –

8. Datuk Madius Bin Tangau, J.P. – –

9. Datuk Hj. S. Abas Bin Hj. S. Ali – –

10. Vincent Chin Kiang Ming – –

11. Kee Mustafa – –

TOTAL 80,003 0.028

3. ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 30 APRIL 2015 ( MALAYSIAN & FOREIGN - COMBINE)

Size of Shareholdings No. of Shareholders % No. of Shares %

1 - 99 57 0.362 2,056 0.000

100 - 1,000 9,579 60.904 6,376,205 2.250

1,001 - 10,000 5,200 33.062 18,113,162 6.393

10,001 - 100,000 774 4.921 22,421,067 7.913

100,001 - 14,166,398 (*) 116 0.737 78,811,798 27.816

14,166,399 And Above (**) 2 0.012 157,603,704 55.625

TOTAL 15,728 100.000 283,327,992 100.000

 Remark: * less than 5% of issued shares

   ** 5% and above of issued shares
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4. ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 30 APRIL 2015 (MALAYSIAN & FOREIGN - SEPARATE)

Size of Shareholdings 

No. of Shareholders No. of Shares %

Malaysian Foreign Malaysian ForeignMalaysian Foreign

1 - 99 55 2 2,031 25 0.000 0.000

100 - 1,000 9,480 99 6,301,455 74,750 2.224 0.026

1,001 - 10,000 4,986 214 17,201,512 911,650 6.071 0.321

10,001 - 100,000 651 123 17,973,367 4,443,700 6.343 1.569

100,001 - 14,166,398* 91 25 64,646,148 14,165,650    22.816 4.999

14,166,399 And Above** 2 0 157,603,704 0 55.625 0.000

TOTAL 15,265 463 263,728,217 19,599,775     93.079 6.915

No. of Shareholders No. of Shares %

GRAND TOTAL 15,728 283,327,992 100.000

 Remark: *  Less than 5% of issued shares

   ** 5% and above of issued shares

5. SHAREHOLDERS WITH SHAREHOLDINGS OF 5% AND ABOVE AS AT 30 APRIL 2015

No. Name Holdings %

1. Warisan Harta Sabah Sdn Bhd 130,827,504 46.175

2. Lembaga Tabung Haji 26,776,200 9.450
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6. LIST OF TOP 30 SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 30 APRIL 2015

No. Name

Nationality/
Country of 

Incorporation No. of Shares %

1. Warisan Harta Sabah Sdn Bhd Malaysian/

Malaysia

130,827,504 46.175

2. Lembaga Tabung Haji Malaysian/

Malaysia

26,776,200 9.450

3. Yayasan Sabah Malaysian/

Malaysia

10,571,000 3,731

4. DB (Malaysia) Nominee (Tempatan) Sendirian Berhad 

Icapital.Biz Berhad

Malaysian/

Malaysia

9,244,400 3.262

5. Citigroup Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd

Exempt An For Citibank New York (Norges Bank 12)

Malaysian/

Malaysia

4,991,100 1.761

6. Chief Minister, State Of Sabah Malaysian/

Malaysia

4,800,000 1.694

7. Amanahraya Trustees Berhad

Public Islamic Opportunities Fund

Malaysian/

Malaysia

3,297,700 1.163

8. Kumpulan Wang Persaraan (Diperbadankan) Malaysian/

Malaysia

3,123,600 1.102

9. Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

Pledged Securities Account For Siaw Teck Siong

Malaysian/

Malaysia

2,745,000 0.968

10. Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

Pledged Securities Account For Cheam Heng Ming

(E-KTN/RAU)

Malaysian/

Malaysia

1,772,000 0.625

11. Cheam Heng Ming Malaysian/

Malaysia

1,576,400 0.556

12. Amanahraya Trustees Berhad

Public Strategic Smallcap Fund

Malaysian/

Malaysia

1,537,600 0.542

13. Liew Yam Fee Malaysian/

Malaysia

1,300,000 0.458

14. Citigroup Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd 

Exempt An For Citibank New York (Norges Bank 1)

Malaysian/

Malaysia

1,294,400 0.456

15. DB (Malaysia) Nominee (Tempatan) Sendirian Berhad 

Deutsche Trustees Malaysia Berhad For Eastspring 

Investmentssmall-Cap Fund

Malaysian/

Malaysia

1,277,100 0.450

16. DB (Malaysia) Nominee (Tempatan) Sendirian Berhad 

Deutsche Trustees Malaysia Berhad For Eastspring 

Investments Equity Income Fund

Malaysian/

Malaysia

1,209,000 0.426

17. Affin Hwang Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd 

DBS Vickers Secs (S) Pte Ltd For Lim Meng Seng

Malaysian/

Malaysia

1,200,000 0.423

Shareholders’ Information cont’d
As at 30 April 2015
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 LIST OF TOP 30 SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 30 APRIL 2015 (CONT’D)

No. Name

Nationality/
Country of 

Incorporation No. of Shares %

18. HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 

HSBC (M) Trustee For Pertubuhan Keselamatan Sosial 

(UOB AMM 6939-406)

Malaysian/

Malaysia

1,180,000 0.416

19. UOB Kay Hian Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd 

Exempt An For UOB Kay Hian Pte Ltd (A/C Clients)

Malaysian/

Malaysia

1,126,700 0.397

20. CIMB Group Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 

CIMB Commerce Trustee Berhad-AMB Smallcap Trust 

Fund

Malaysian/

Malaysia

1,100,000 0.388

21. HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 

HSBC (M) Trustee Bhd For RHB-OSK Small Cap 

Opportunity Unit Trust (3548)

Malaysian/

Malaysia

1,000,000 0.352

22. HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 

HSBC (M) Trustee Bhd For Manulife Investment Progress 

Fund (4082)

Malaysian/

Malaysia

890,400 0.314

23. Citigroup Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd 

CBNY For Dimensional Emerging Markets Value Fund

Malaysian/

Malaysia

824,400 0.290

24. Lee Hau Hian Malaysian/

Malaysia

820,000 0.289

25. Citigroup Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd 

CBNY For DFA Emerging Markets Small Cap Series

Malaysian/

Malaysia

715,500 0.252

26. Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 

Capital Dynamics Asset Management Sdn Bhd 

For KESM Industries Berhad (CDAM30-990472)

Malaysian/

Malaysia

713,000 0.251

27. Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 

Pledged Secutrities Account For Siaw Teck Siong (E-PDG)

Malaysian/

Malaysia

640,000 0.225

28. UOBM Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 

UOB Asset Management (Malaysia) Berhad 

For Gibraltar BSN Aggressive Fund

Malaysian/

Malaysia

527,700 0.186

29. UOBM Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 

UOB Asset Management (Malaysia) Berhad 

For Gibraltar BSN Life Berhad (Par Fund)

Malaysian/

Malaysia

524,000 0.184

30. Cheam Heng Ming Malaysian/

Malaysia

470,600 0.166

Summary

Total No. of Holders  : 30

Total Holdings    : 218,075,304

Total Percentage (%)  : 76.969
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AGENDA

As Ordinary Business

1.  To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 and the 

Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2.  To re-elect the following Directors who retire by rotation pursuant to Article 89 of the Company’s 

Articles of Association:

 (a) Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub Bin Hj. Johari, J.P.

 (b) Datuk Mohd. Hasnol Bin Ayub

 (c) Datuk Madius Bin Tangau, J.P.

3.  To re-elect the following Directors who retire pursuant to Article 93 of the Company’s Articles of 

Association:

 (a) Kee Mustafa

 (b) Vincent Chin Kiang Ming

4.  To re-appoint Datuk Ismail Bin Awang Besar, J.P. as a Director pursuant to Section 129(6) of the 

Companies Act, 1965 and to hold office until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting.

5.  To approve the final tax exempt dividend of 4% (4 sen per ordinary share), in respect of the financial 

year ended 31 December 2014.

6.  To approve the payment of Directors’ fees amounting to RM600,000.00 for the financial year ending 

31 December 2014.

7.  To re-appoint Messrs. Ernst & Young as Auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors to 

determine their remuneration.

Resolution 1

Resolution 2

Resolution 3

Resolution 4

Resolution 5

Resolution 6

Resolution 7

Resolution 8

Resolution 9

Notice of Annual 
General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Thirty Second (32nd) Annual General Meeting 

(AGM) of the Company will be held at Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd.’s Training Centre, 1st Floor, 

Headquarters & Operation Building, Sapangar Bay Container Port, Sapangar Bay, Kota 

Kinabalu, Sabah, on Monday, 15 June 2015 at 10.00 am for the following purposes:
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Resolution 10

As Special Business

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the followings as ordinary resolution:

8. Authority to the Directors to allot and issue shares:

  “THAT, pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965, the Directors be and are hereby 

authorised to allot and issue shares in the Company, at any time, at such issue price, until the 

conclusion of the next annual general meeting and upon such terms and conditions terms and 

conditions and for such proposes as the Directors may, in their absolute discretion, deem fit, 

provided that the aggregate number of shares to be issued does not exceed ten per centum (10%) 

of the issued capital of the Company at the time of issue AND THAT the Directors be and are and 

also empowered to obtain the approval for the listing and quotation of the additional shares so 

issued, subject to the approval from the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and other relevant bodies 

where such approval is necessary.”

9.  To transact any other business for which due notice shall have been given in accordance with the 

Companies Act, 1965.

NOTICE OF BOOK CLOSURE AND DIVIDEND ENTITLEMENT

NOTICE IS ALSO HEREBY GIVEN subject to the shareholders’ approval for the payment of that the final 

tax exempt dividend of 4% (4 sen per ordinary share) in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 

2014, the dividend will be paid to the shareholders on 31 July 2015.

The entitlement date shall be fixed on 10 July 2015 and a Depositor shall qualify for entitlement only in 

respect of:-

(a)  Shares transferred into the Depositor’s Securities Account before 4.00 p.m. on 10 July 2015 in 

respect of transfers.

(b)  Shares bought on the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on a cum entitlement basis according to the 

Rules of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

By Order Of the Board.

SURYANI BINTI MOHD. SAIDI (LS. 0005574)

Company Secretary

Dated on this 22 May 2015.

Kota Kinabalu, Sabah

SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD | ANNUAL REPORT 2014 161

Notice of Annual General Meeting



Notice of Annual General Meeting cont’d

Explanatory Notes: 

(i)  Resolution 10, if passed, would, subject to the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities 

Berhad, enable the Directors to issue up to a maximum of ten per centum (10%) of the total issued and paid up share 

capital of the Company for such purpose as the Directors considers would be in the best interest of the Company. This 

authority unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, will expire at the next AGM. No new shares had been issued 

by the Company since obtaining the authority from the shareholders at the last AGM held on 24 June 2014.

  The Company is seeking the approval from the shareholders on the above mandate for the purpose of possible fund 

raising exercise(s) including but not limited to the further placement of funds for future investments, acquisitions and/

or to meet working capital requirements.

Notes:

1.  A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at this Meeting is entitled to appoint up to two (2) proxies to attend and vote 

instead of him/her. A proxy may but not need to a member of the Company.

2.  Where a member appoints two (2) proxies, the appointments shall be invalid unless the member specifies the proportion of his/her 

shareholdings to be represented by each proxy. 

3.  In the case of a corporate body, the proxy appointed must be in accordance with the Memorandum and Articles of Association, and 

the instrument appointing a proxy shall be given under the company’s common seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly 

authorised. 

4.  Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industries (Central Depositories 

Act 1991) which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), 

there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it 

holds.

5.  The instrument appointing a proxy shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at 1st & 2nd, Menara Jubili, No. 53, 

Jalan Gaya, 88000 Kota Kinabalu at least forty-eight (48) hours before the time for holding the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

162



(1)  Directors retiring by rotation pursuant to Article 89 of the Company’s Article of Association and are eligible for re-

election are:

 a. Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub Bin Hj. Johari, J.P.

 b. Datuk Mohd. Hasnol Bin Ayub

 c. Datuk Madius Bin Tangau, J.P.

(2) Directors retiring pursuant to Article 93 of the Company’s Article of Association and are eligible for re-election are:

 a. Kee Mustafa

 b. Vincent Chin Kiang Ming

(3)  Datuk Ismail Bin Awang Besar, J.P. retiring pursuant to Section 129 of the Companies Act, 1965 and is seeking  

re-appointment.

Further details of the Directors seeking re-election are provided in the Directors’s Profile on page 19 of the Annual Report.

Statement Accompanying 
Notice of Annual General 
Meeting
(Pursuant to Paragraph 8.27 (2) of the Main Market Listing Requirements  
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad)
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Proxy Form

I/We  NRIC No./Co.No.: 
 (FULL NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS) 

of 
(FULL ADDRESS)

being a Member of SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD, hereby appoint 
 (FULL NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS) 

 NRIC No.: 

of 
(ADDRESS)

or failing him,  NRIC No.: 
 (FULL NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS)

of 
(ADDRESS)

As my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Thirty Second (32nd) Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 

Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd.’s Training Centre, 1st Floor, Headquarters & Operation Building, Sapangar Bay Container Port, Sapangar 

Bay, Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, on Monday, 15 June 2015 at 10.00 a.m. or at any adjournment thereof in respect of my/our holding of 

 shares in the manner as indicated below:

NO. RESOLUTION FOR AGAINST

1. AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 together 
with the Reports of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To re-elect the following Directors pursuant to Article 89 of the Company’s Articles of Association:

a. Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub Bin Hj. Yaakub, J.P.

b. Datuk Mohd. Hasnol Bin Ayub

c. Datuk Madius Bin Tangau, J.P.

3. To re-elect the following Directors who retire pursuant to Article 93 of the Company’s Articles of 
Association:

a. Kee Bin Mustafa

b. Vincent Chin Kiang Ming

4. To re-appoint Datuk Ismail Bin Awang Besar, J.P. as a Director pursuant to Section 129(6) of the 
Companies Act, 1965.

5. To approve the final tax exempt dividend of 4% (4 sen per ordinary share), in respect of the financial 
year ended 31 December 2014.

6. To approve the payment of Directors’ Fees amounting to RM600,000.00 for the financial year ended 
31 December 2014.

7. To re-appoint Messrs. Ernst & Young as Auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors to 
determine their remuneration.

8. To authorise the Directors to Allot and Issue Shares under Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965.

(Please indicate with a cross [X] in the spaces provided whether you wish your votes to be cast for or against the Resolutions. In the absence 

of specific directions, your proxy will vote or abstain as he thinks fit.)

Dated this ……………………………………. day of ……………………………….., 2015  

Signature/Common Seal of Member(s)

Notes:

NO. OF SHARES HELD

SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD
(CO. NO. 96895-W)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

1.  A member of the company entitled to attend and vote at this Meeting is 
entitled to appoint up to two (2) proxies to attend and vote instead of him/
her. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company.

2.  Where a member appoints two (2) proxies, the appointment shall be invalid 
unless the member specifies the proportion of his/her shareholdings to be 
represented by each proxy.

3.  In the case of a corporate body, the proxy appointed must be in 
accordance with the Memorandum and Articles of Association, and 
the instrument appointing a proxy shall be given under the Company’s 
Common Seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

4.  Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee as 
defined under the Securities Industries (Central Depositories) Act 1991 
which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial 
owners in the securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to 
the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint 
in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

5.  The instrument appointing a proxy shall be deposited at the Registered 
Office of the Company at 1st & 2nd Floor Menara Jubili, 53 Jalan Gaya, 
88000 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah at least forty-eight (48) hours before the time 
set for holding the Meeting or any adjournment thereof. 



Company Secretary

SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD (96895-W)

1st & 2nd Floor, Menara Jubili

No. 53, Jalan Gaya

88000 Kota Kinabalu

Sabah, Malaysia

STAMP
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Group Corporate Directory

SABAH PORTS SDN. BHD.

(583073-H)

SPSB Headquarters & Operation 

Building 

Sapangar Bay Container Port

Jalan Sapangar, Sapangar Bay

Pejabat Pos Mini, Indah Permai, 

P.O. Box 203

88450 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia.

Tel :  +6 088-483 390-399  

(10 lines)

Fax : +6 088-489 912-914

Email : sabports@spsb.com.my

Website :  www.suriagroup.com.my/

spsb

S.P. SATRIA LOGISTICS SDN. BHD. 

(722286-V)

(A wholly-owned subsidiary of Sabah Ports 

Sdn. Bhd.)

4th Floor (Level 5) Wisma SEDCO 

Lorong Wawasan, Off Coastal Highway

88300 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia.

Tel :  +6 088-231 026, 253 026, 

 250 026

Fax : +6 088-223 288

Email : enquiry@spslogistics.com.my

Website : www.spslogistics.com.my

1st & 2nd Floor, Menara Jubili, 53, Jalan Gaya, 88000 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia.

Tel: +6 088-257 788 (4 lines) Fax: +6 088-260 355, 231 032

Website: www.suriagroup.com.my Email: info@suriaplc.com.my

SUBSIDIARY 

COMPANIES

REGISTERED 

OFFICE

OUR PORTS

SCHB ENGINEERING SERVICES 

SDN. BHD. (645642-W)

4th Floor, Wisma Perkasa, Jalan Gaya

88821 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia

Tel : +6 088-235 787 (4 lines)

Fax : +6 088-231 050

Email : schbeng@suriaplc.com.my

Website :  www.suriagroup.com.my/

schbengineering

S.P. SATRIA SDN. BHD. (622494-V)

Suite 6-8, 11th Floor, Menara Jubili

53, Jalan Gaya

88000 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia

Tel : +6 088-316 696

Fax : +6 088-231 086

Email : allesandra@spsatria.com.my

Website :  www.suriagroup.com.my/

spsatria

SAPANGAR BAY CONTAINER PORT

Senior Manager

Jalan Sapangar, Sapangar Bay

Pejabat Pos Mini, Indah Permai, 

P. O. Box 203

88450 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia. 

Tel : +6 088-489 904

Fax : +6 088-489 925

Email : fnlai@spsb.com.my

KOTA KINABALU PORT

Port Manager

Wisma Pelabuhan, Jalan Tun Fuad

Tanjung Lipat, Locked Bag 75

88992 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia. 

Tel : +6 088-538 500

Fax : +6 088-254 089

Email : suhaili.k@spsb.com.my

SAPANGAR BAY OIL TERMINAL

Port Manager

Pejabat Pos Mini Indah Permai,

P. O. Box 57

88450 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia

Tel : +6 088-411 069

Fax : +6 088-411 130

Email : victor@spsb.com.my

SANDAKAN PORT

Senior Manager

Wisma Pelabuhan, Jalan Karamunting

P. O. Box 1368

90715 Sandakan, Sabah, Malaysia.

Tel : +6 089-612 411

Fax : +6 089-612 975

Email : raiman.ali@spsb.com.my

TAWAU PORT

Port Manager

Wisma Pelabuhan, Jalan Dunlop

P. O. Box 335

91007 Tawau, Sabah, Malaysia. 

Tel : +6 089-773 700

Fax : +6 089-761 808

Email : subardjoe@spsb.com.my

LAHAD DATU PORT / KUNAK PORT

Port Manager

Jalan Kastam Baru

P. O. Box 60143

91111 Lahad Datu, Sabah, Malaysia.

Tel : +6 089-889 722

Fax : +6 089-882 749

Email : clarence@spsb.com.my

KUDAT PORT 

Officer-In-Charge 

P. O. Box 228

89058 Kudat, Sabah, Malaysia  

Tel : +6 088-611 261

Fax : +6 088-621 320

Email : andyliew@spsb.com.my



SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD 96895-W

1st & 2nd Floor, Menara Jubili 

No. 53, Jalan Gaya 

88000 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia

Tel : +6 088 257 788 (4 lines)    

Fax : +6 088 260 355, 231 032    

E-mail : info@suriaplc.com.my

www.suriagroup.com.my


